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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014
OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 1-4221
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Rights
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Indicate by check mark whether the Regigthas submitted electronically and posted oodtporate Web site, if any, every Interactive
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that the Registrant was required to submit and past files). YesX No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure ofiaiguent filers pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiK is not contained herein, and will not be
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Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 104K.
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DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K ("Form 10-K") ind&s "forward-looking statements" within the mearofithe Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, and the Securities Exchange Act of, B83mended. All statements other than statenoéistorical facts included in this
Form 1(-K, including, without limitation, statements redarg the Registrant's future financial positionsmess strategy, budgets, projected
costs and plans and objectives of management fiorefwperations, are forward-looking statementsadidition, forward-looking statements
generally can be identified by the use of forwlooking terminology such as "may", "will", "exp&ctintend”, "estimate", "anticipate",
"believe", or "continue" or the negative thereofsamilar terminology. Although the Registrant beéie that the expectations reflected in such
forward-looking statements are reasonable, it can give sgueance that such expectations will prove to breect. Important factors that cou
cause actual results to differ materially from fRegistrant's expectations or results discussetiérfarwardiooking statements are discloset
this Form 10-K under Item 1A—"Risk Factors", ashaslin Item 7—"Management's Discussion and AnslgEFinancial Condition and
Results of Operations." All subsequent written arad forward-looking statements attributable to the Registrantpersons acting on its
behalf, are expressly qualified in their entirefyduch cautionary statements. The Registrant assameuty to update or revise its forward-
looking statements based on changes in internahagts, expectations or otherwise, except as reguiy law.
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PART |
tem 1. BUSINESS

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. (hereafter referte@s the "Company"”, "we", "us" or "our"), wasangorated under the laws of the State of
Delaware on February 3, 1940, and is successobtsiaess originally organized in 1920. We are gritm engaged in contract drilling of oil
and gas wells for others and this business accdongmost all of our operating revenues.

Our contract drilling business is composéthree reportable business segments: U.S. Lafish@e and International Land. During fis
2014, our U.S. Land operations drilled primarilydklahoma, California, Texas, Wyoming, Coloradouisiana, Mississippi, Pennsylvania,
Ohio, Utah, New Mexico, Montana, North Dakota, WéBginia and Nevada. Offshore operations were cated in the Gulf of Mexico and
Equatorial Guinea. Our International Land segme@etrated in seven international locations duringafi2014: Ecuador, Colombia, Argentina,
Tunisia, Bahrain, United Arab Emirates ("UAE") akidzambique.

We are also engaged in the ownership, dpwednt and operation of commercial real estatetamdesearch and development of rotary
steerable technology. Each of the businesses egdaratependently of the others through wholly-owsgssidiaries. This operating
decentralization is balanced by centralized finzamue legal organizations.

Our real estate investments located exgdlisivithin Tulsa, Oklahoma, include a shoppingteecontaining approximately 441,000
leasable square feet, multi-tenant industrial wawsk properties containing approximately one mmilleasable square feet and approximately
210 acres of undeveloped real estate.

Our subsidiary, TerraVici Drilling Solutisninc. ("TerraVici"), continues to develop patehtetary steerable technology to enhance
horizontal and directional drilling operations. fi@rici complements our existing drilling rig techagy and allows us to offer directional
drilling services to customers. By combining théswntechnology with our existing capabilities, weegt to improve drilling productivity and
reduce total well cost to the customer.

CONTRACT DRILLING
General

We believe that we are one of the majod land offshore platform drilling contractors in thestern hemisphere. Operating principally in
North and South America, we specialize in shalloweep drilling in oil and gas producing basinshef United States and in drilling for oil a
gas in international locations. In the United Statee draw our customers primarily from the majbcompanies and the larger independen
companies. In South America, our current custorimeisde major international and national oil comigan

In fiscal 2014, we received approximatebypercent of our consolidated operating revenuss four ten largest contract drilling
customers. Occidental Oil and Gas Corporation, karmand BHP Billiton (respectively, "Oxy", "Marath" and "BHP"), including their
affiliates, are our three largest contract drilloygstomers. We perform drilling services for Oxyaoworldwide basis and Marathon and BHF
U.S. land operations. Revenues from drilling sersiperformed for Oxy, Marathon and BHP in fiscal2@ccounted for approximately
11 percent, 8 percent and 7 percent, respectigélyir consolidated operating revenues for the saenied.

Rigs, Equipment and Facilities

We provide drilling rigs, equipment, peraehand camps on a contract basis. These serviegs@ided so that our customers may
explore for and develop oil and gas from onshoeasand from
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fixed platforms, tension-leg platforms and spareffishore areas. Each of the drilling rigs considtengines, drawworks, a mast, pumps,
blowout preventers, a drill string and related pqueént. The intended well depth and the drilling sibnditions are the principal factors that
determine the size and type of rig most suitablefparticular drilling job. A land drilling rig nyabe moved from location to location without
modification to the rig. A platform rig is speciéity designed to perform drilling operations upopaaticular platform. While a platform rig
may be moved from its original platform, signifit@xpense is incurred to modify a platform rig é@eration on each subsequent platform. In
addition to traditional platform rigs, we operagdfsnoving platform drilling rigs and drilling rigd be used on tension-leg platforms and spar
The self-moving rig is designed to be moved withibgt use of expensive derrick barges. The tengigrplatforms and spars allow drilling
operations to be conducted in much deeper waterttaditional fixed platforms.

Mechanical rigs rely on belts, pulleys arider mechanical devices to control drilling spaad other rig processes. As such, mechanical
rigs are not highly efficient or precise in theresation. In contrast to mechanical rigs, SCR réhg on direct current for power. This enables
motor speed to be controlled by changing electsioitbge. Compared to mechanical rigs, SCR rigsaipevith greater efficiency, more power
and better control. AC rigs provide for even greaficiency and flexibility than what can be ackee with mechanical or SCR rigs. AC rigs
use a variable frequency drive that allows motaesjpto be manipulated via changes to electricqguiacy. The variable frequency drive
permits greater control of motor speed for moreigien. Among other attributes, AC rigs are el@etiy more efficient, produce more torque,
utilize regenerative braking, have digital contraisl AC motors require less maintenance.

During the mid-1990's, we undertook arniative to use our land and offshore platform driliexperience to develop a new generation of
drilling rigs that would be safer, faster-movingdanore capable than mechanical rigs. In 1998, wegwork a new generation of highly
mobile/depth flexible land drilling rigs (individilg the "FlexRig®"). Since the introduction of oktexRigs, we have focused on designing an
building high-performance, high-efficiency rigshie used exclusively in our contract drilling busis.eWe believed that over time FlexRigs
would displace older less capable rigs. With theeati of unconventional shale plays, our AC drivexRigs have proven to be particularly v
suited for more complex horizontal drilling requirents. The FlexRig has been able to significamtiuce average rig move and drilling times
compared to similar depth-rated traditional lamg$ riin addition, the FlexRig allows greater dephibility and provides greater operating
efficiency. The original rigs were designated axRlig1l and FlexRig2 rigs and were designed to dells with a depth of between 8,000 and
18,000 feet. In 2001, we announced that we wouild Itive next generation of FlexRigs, known as "R&3", which incorporated new drilling
technology and new environmental and safety dedibis. new design included integrated top drive, @€xtric drive, hydraulic BOP handling
system, hydraulic tubular make-up and break-ouesyssplit crown and traveling blocks and an erddrdrill floor that enables simultaneous
crew activities. FlexRig3s were designed to tavgelt depths of between 8,000 and 22,000 feet.

In 2006, we placed into service our firxXRig4. While FlexRig4s are similar to our FlexBgg the FlexRig4s are designed to efficiently
drill more shallow depth wells of between 4,000 48¢D00 feet. The FlexRig4 design includes a trigidgel version and a skidding version,
which incorporate additional environmental and safiesign. This design permits the installatiomgfipe handling system which allows the
rig to be more efficiently operated and elimindtes need for a casing stabber in the mast. Whild-taxRig4 trailerized version provides for
more efficient well site to well site rig movesethkidding version allows for drilling of up to 2&lls from a single pad which results in
reduced environmental impact. In 2011, we annoutivedhtroduction of the FlexRig5 design. The Fl@aRis suited for long lateral drilling «
multiple wells from a single location, which is Wwetlited for unconventional shale reservoirs. Tee design preserves the key performance
features
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of FlexRig3 combined with a bi-directional pad liind) system and equipment capacities suitable fadtsin excess of 25,000 feet of measurec
depth.

Industry trends toward more complex drglimave accelerated the retirement of less capabthamical rigs. Over the past few years our
mechanical rigs have been sold as we added newri&€ rilgs to our fleet. The retirement of our remag seven mechanical rigs in fiscal 2(
marked the end of a multi-year evolution in thehhiggading of our fleet from mechanical rigs to higfficiency, high-performance rigs.

Since 1998, we have built and delivered Bi4Rigs, including 207 FlexRig3s, 88 FlexRig4sd 82 FlexRig5s. Of the total FlexRigs
built through September 30, 2014, 161 have bedhibuhe last five years. As of November 13, 2044 additional 41 new FlexRigs remained
under construction.

The effective use of technology is impottanthe maintenance of our competitive positiothimi the drilling industry. We expect to
continue to refine our existing technology and dey@ew technology in the future.

We assemble new FlexRigs at our gulf ctaslity near Houston, Texas. We also have a 1ZBg¥uare foot fabrication facility located
on approximately 11 acres near Tulsa, Oklahomaitia@lly, we lease a 150,000 square foot indulstaicility near Tulsa, Oklahoma, for the
purpose of overhauling/repairing rig equipment asslociated component parts.

Drilling Contracts

Our drilling contracts are obtained throwgimpetitive bidding or as a result of negotiatiarith customers, and often cover mudtell anc
multi-year projects. Each drilling rig operates and separate drilling contract. During fiscal 204Kt drilling services were performed on a
"daywork" contract basis, under which we chargixedfrate per day, with the price determined byltieation, depth and complexity of the
well to be drilled, operating conditions, the dioatof the contract, and the competitive forcethef market. We have previously performed
contracts on a combination "footage" and "daywdr&sis, under which we charged a fixed rate perdbbable drilled to a stated depth, usually
no deeper than 15,000 feet, and a fixed rate pefatahe remainder of the hole. Contracts perfairae a "footage" basis involve a greater
element of risk to the contractor than do contraetsormed on a "daywork" basis. Also, we have jmesly accepted "turnkey" contracts un
which we charge a fixed sum to deliver a hole stated depth and agree to furnish services sutdstisg, coring and casing the hole which
not normally done on a "footage" basis. "Turnkegtittacts entail varying degrees of risk greaten th@ usual "footage" contract. We have
accepted any "footage" or "turnkey" contracts ierofifteen years. We believe that under currentkeiaconditions, "footage" and "turnkey"
contract rates do not adequately compensate ubdadded risks. The duration of our drilling cants are "well-to-well" or for a fixed term.
"Well-to-well" contracts are cancelable at the optof either party upon the completion of drilliagany one site. Fixed-term contracts
generally have a minimum term of at least six msfitht customarily provide for termination at theatlon of the customer, with an "early
termination payment” to be paid to us if a contiad¢erminated prior to the expiration of the fixedm. However, under certain limited
circumstances such as destruction of a drillingaig bankruptcy, sustained unacceptable performbgas or delivery of a rig beyond certain
grace and/or liquidated damage periods, no eamyit@tion payment would be paid to us.

Contracts generally contain renewal or esiten provisions exercisable at the option of thet@mer at prices mutually agreeable to us an
the customer. In most instances contracts prodadditional payments for mobilization and demiahtion.

As of September 30, 2014, we had 193 exjgigs under fixed-term contracts. While the ar@iduration for these current fixed-term
contracts are for six-month to seven-year perieds)e fixed-term
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and well-to-well contracts are expected to be edeerfor longer periods than the original terms. ldeer, the contracting parties have no legal
obligation to extend these contracts.

Backlog

Our contract drilling backlog, being thepegted future revenue from executed contracts evitfinal terms in excess of one year, as of
September 30, 2014 and 2013 was $5.0 billion an@ §iflion, respectively. The increase in backlogaptember 30, 2014 from September
2013, is primarily due to the execution of additibfixed-term contracts for the operation of newxXRigs. Approximately 63.6 percent of the
total September 30, 2014 backlog is not reasorelpgcted to be filled in fiscal 2015. A portiontbé& backlog represents term contracts for
new rigs that will be constructed in the future.

The following table sets forth the totatklag by reportable segment as of September 304 28dl 2013, and the percentage of the
September 30, 2014 backlog not reasonably expéetee filled in fiscal 2015:

Total Backlog Revenue Percentage Not Reasonabl
Reportable Segmen 9/30/2014 9/30/201% Expected to be Filled in Fiscal 2015
(in billions)
U.S. Land $ 3 % 24 59.4%
Offshore 0.1 0.1 70.9%
International 1.1 0.4 76.9%

$ 5 §$ 2.8

We obtain certain key rig components frosirgle or limited number of vendors or fabricat@ertain of these vendors or fabricators are
thinly capitalized independent companies locatetheriTexas gulf coast. Therefore, disruptionsgncomponent deliveries may occur.
Accordingly, the actual amount of revenue earney waaly from the backlog reported. For further imh@tion, see Item 1A—"Risk Factors".

U.S. Land Dirilling

At the end of September 2014, 2013, an@2@# had 329, 302 and 282, respectively, of aud kégs available for work in the United
States. The total number of rigs at the end o&fi2014 increased by a net of 27 rigs from theafrfescal 2013. The increase is due to 42 new
FlexRigs being placed into service, six FlexRigmbdransferred to the International Land segmentr@ine older conventional rigs being
removed from service. Our U.S. Land operationsrdautied approximately 83 percent ($3.1 billion)oafr consolidated operating revenues
during fiscal 2014, compared with approximatelypg2cent ($2.8 billion) of consolidated operatingereues during fiscal 2013 and
approximately 85 percent ($2.7 billion) of consatield operating revenues during fiscal 2012. Rigation was approximately 86 percent in
fiscal 2014, approximately 82 percent in fiscal 2@hd approximately 89 percent in fiscal 2012. {ret of FlexRigs had an average
utilization of approximately 91 percent during €014, while our conventional rigs had an avernatgzation of approximately 3 percent. A
rig is considered to be utilized when it is opedate being mobilized or demobilized under contré¢tthe close of fiscal 2014, 294 out of an
available 329 land rigs were working.

Offshore Dirilling

Our Offshore operations contributed apprately 7 percent in fiscal year 2014 ($250.8 mil)iof our consolidated operating revenues
compared to approximately 7 percent ($221.9 mijlioihconsolidated operating revenues during fi@€dl3 and 6 percent ($189.1 million) of
consolidated
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operating revenues during fiscal 2012. Rig utilaatin fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013 was approxima89 percent compared to approximately
79 percent in fiscal 2012. At the end of fiscal 20d/e had eight of our nine offshore platform nigngler contract and continued to work under
management contracts for three customened rigs. The ninth rig commenced operationsrdyifie first fiscal quarter of 2015. Revenues 1
drilling services performed for our largest offshairilling customer totaled approximately 52 peta#roffshore revenues during fiscal 2014.

International Land Drilling

General

Our International Land operations contrizliapproximately 10 percent ($355.5 million) of oansolidated operating revenues during
fiscal 2014, compared with approximately 11 per¢®866.8 million) of consolidated operating revenidering fiscal 2013 and 9 percent
($270.0 million) of consolidated operating revendasang fiscal 2012. Rig utilization in fiscal 20Whs 76 percent, 82 percent in fiscal 2013
and 77 percent in fiscal 2012.

Argentina

At the end of fiscal 2014, we had 14 rig@\rgentina. Our utilization rate was approximat@/percent during fiscal 2014, approximately
62 percent during fiscal 2013 and approximatelp&&ent during fiscal 2012. Revenues generatedrggriine drilling operations contributed
approximately 3 percent in fiscal 2014 ($107.9 iwril) of our consolidated operating revenues conpayepproximately 2 percent
($73.2 million) of our consolidated operating rewes during fiscal 2013 and approximately 2 per¢&5#.3 million) of our consolidated
operating revenues during fiscal 2012. Revenuen ftolling services performed for our two largegstomers in Argentina totaled
approximately 2 percent of consolidated operatéwgenues and approximately 21 percent of internatioperating revenues during fiscal 2(
The Argentine drilling contracts are primarily witirge international or national oil companies.

Colombia

At the end of fiscal 2014, we had eighsrig Colombia. Our utilization rate was approxing&S3 percent during fiscal 2014,
approximately 82 percent during fiscal 2013 andraximately 79 percent during fiscal 2012. Revergeserated by Colombian drilling
operations contributed approximately 2 percentscal 2014 ($85.2 million) of our consolidated cgterg revenues compared to approxima
3 percent ($100.1 million) of our consolidated @tierg revenues during fiscal 2013 and approxima@ghgrcent ($82.2 million) of our
consolidated operating revenues during fiscal 2&RE¥enues from drilling services performed for taw customers in Colombia totaled
approximately 2 percent of consolidated operatéwgenues and approximately 24 percent of internatioperating revenues during fiscal 2(
The Colombian drilling contracts are primarily widrge international or national oil companies.

Ecuador

At the end of fiscal 2014, we had six fig€Ecuador. The utilization rate in Ecuador wag8gcent in fiscal 2014, compared to 95 percen
in fiscal 2013 and 97 percent in fiscal 2012. Rexengenerated by Ecuadorian drilling operationgritmried approximately two percent in
each of the three fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 20d8r consolidated operating revenues ($69.2 om)l567.9 million and $56.4 million,
respectively). Revenues from drilling services parfed for the largest customer in Ecuador totapgat@imately 1 percent of consolidated
operating revenues and approximately 11 percemtefational operating revenues during fiscal 20l Ecuadorian drilling contracts are
primarily with large international or national @bmpanies.
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Other Locations

In addition to our operations discussedvabat the end of fiscal 2014 we had two rigs imi$ia, three rigs in Bahrain, two rigs in the
UAE and one rig in Mozambique.

FINANCIAL

For information relating to revenues, t@ssets and operating income by reportable opgraigments, see Note 14—"Segment
Information" included in Item 8—"Financial Statenteand Supplementary Data" of this Form 10-K.

EMPLOYEES

We had 10,352 employees within the UnitedeS (13 of which were part-time employees) ab82 employees in international
operations as of September 30, 2014.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Our website is locatedwatvw.hpinc.com Annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reportsdqamm 10-Q, current reports on FornK8anc
amendments to those reports, earnings releasefinandial statements are made available free afgghon the investor relations section of
website as soon as reasonably practicable aft@leetronically file such materials with, or furnigho, the SEC. The information contained on
our website, or available by hyperlink from our \8ib, is not incorporated into this Form 10-K dnextdocuments we file with, or furnish to,
the SEC. Annual reports, quarterly reports, currepbrts, amendments to those reports, earningases, financial statements and our various
corporate governance documents are also availa®ef charge upon written request.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the risk factors discusseswhere in this Form 10-K, we caution that théofwing "Risk Factors" could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.

Our business depends on the level of activity in the oil and natural gas industry, which is significantly impacted by the volatility of oil and
natural gas prices and other factors.

Our business depends on the conditionseofand and offshore oil and natural gas indufgmand for our services depends on oil and
natural gas industry exploration and productioivagtand expenditure levels, which are directlfeated by trends in oil and natural gas pri
Oil and natural gas prices, and market expectatiegarding potential changes to these prices, fiigntly affect oil and natural gas industry
activity. Higher oil and natural gas prices do netessarily translate into increased activity bsealemand for our services is typically driven
by our customers' expectations of future commaglityes. Commaodity prices have historically beeratitd. Oil and natural gas prices are
impacted by many factors beyond our control, inicigd

. the demand for oil and natural gas;

. the cost of exploring for, developing, producamd delivering oil and natural gas;
. the worldwide economy;

. expectations about future prices;

. domestic and international tax policies;
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. political and military conflicts in oil producingegions or other geographical areas or acts ofrisman the U.S. or elsewhere;
. technological advances;

. the development and exploitation of alternativdsue

. local and international political, economic and tirea conditions;

. the ability of The Organization of Petroleum ExjpagtCountries ("OPEC") to set and maintain produtievels and pricing;

. the level of production by OPEC and non-OPEChtoes; and

. the environmental and other laws and governnheagalations regarding exploration and developnuémtl and natural gas
reserves.

The level of land and offshore exploratidayelopment and production activity and the pficenil and natural gas is volatile and is likely
to continue to be volatile in the future. A declinghe worldwide demand for oil and natural gapaionged low oil or natural gas prices in
the future would likely result in reduced explooatiand development of land and offshore areas alwtline in the demand for our services.
Even during periods of high prices for oil and matgas, companies exploring for oil and gas mancehor curtail programs, or reduce their
levels of capital expenditures for exploration @ndduction for a variety of reasons. These faatordd cause our revenues and margins to
decline, reduce day rates and utilization of ogs and limit our future growth prospects. In shany prolonged reduction in demand for our
services could have a material adverse effect ofasiness, financial condition and results of atiens.

Our offshore and land operations are subject to a number of operational risks, including environmental and weather risks, which could
expose us to significant losses and damage claims. We are not fully insured against all of theserisksand our contractual indemnity
provisions may not fully protect us.

Our drilling operations are subject to thany hazards inherent in the business, includiogment weather, blowouts, well fires, loss of
well control, pollution, and reservoir damage. Tehbhazards could cause significant environmentaladgmnpersonal injury and death,
suspension of drilling operations, serious damag#estruction of equipment and property and sulistasamage to producing formations and
surrounding lands and waters.

Our Offshore drilling operations are alsbject to potentially greater environmental liailincluding pollution of offshore waters and
related negative impact on wildlife and habitatyexde sea conditions and platform damage or deéstnudue to collision with aircraft or
marine vessels. Our Offshore operations may alstebatively affected by blowouts or uncontrollekbase of oil by third parties whose
offshore operations are unrelated to our operatidfesoperate several platform rigs in the Gulf abito. The Gulf of Mexico experiences
hurricanes and other extreme weather conditiors foequent basis, the frequency of which may irggegith any climate change. Damage
caused by high winds and turbulent seas could fiatigrcurtail operations on such platform rigs ggnificant periods of time until the
damage can be repaired. Moreover, even if ourglatfigs are not directly damaged by such stornesmay experience disruptions in
operations due to damage to customer platform®#ret related facilities in the area.

We have a new-build rig assembly facildgdted near the Houston, Texas ship channel, angrimeipal fabricator and other vendors are
also located in the gulf coast region. Due to thaiation, these facilities are exposed to potéptgaeater hurricane damage.

We have indemnification agreements with ynainour customers and we also maintain liabilityg ather forms of insurance. In general,
our drilling contracts contain provisions requiriogr
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customers to indemnify us for, among other thipgdlution and reservoir damage. However, our canti@ rights to indemnification may be
unenforceable or limited due to negligent or willfigts by us, our subcontractors and/or suppli@s.customers may also dispute, or be ur
to meet, their contractual indemnification obligas to us. Accordingly, we may be unable to tramntfese risks to our drilling customers by
contract or indemnification agreements. Incurrirgahility for which we are not fully indemnifiedransured could have a material adverse

effect on our business, financial condition andiltisof operations.

With the exception of "named wind stornskrin the Gulf of Mexico, we insure rigs and rethezuipment at values that approximate the
current replacement cost on the inception dateepblicy. However, we self-insure a large dedletés well as a significant portion of the
estimated replacement cost of our offshore rigsamdand rigs and equipment. We also carry instgamith varying deductibles and coverage
limits with respect to offshore platform rigs amthfned wind storm" risk in the Gulf of Mexico.

We have insurance coverage for comprehergawneral liability, automobile liability, worket®mpensation and employer's liability, and
certain other specific risks. Insurance is purctiaseer deductibles to reduce our exposure to cafatst events. We retain a significant port
of our expected losses under our worker's compiemsateneral liability and automobile liability pggeams. The Company setfsures a numb
of other risks including loss of earnings and bestinterruption. We are unable to obtain signifiGanounts of insurance to cover risks of
underground reservoir damage.

If a significant accident or other eventas and is not fully covered by insurance or dom@eable or recoverable indemnity from a
customer, it could have a material adverse effeadwr business, financial condition and resultegdrations. Our insurance will not in all
situations provide sufficient funds to protect tefi all liabilities that could result from our dilg operations. Our coverage includes aggre
policy limits. As a result, we retain the risk famy loss in excess of these limits. No assuranedeajiven that all or a portion of our coverage
will not be cancelled during fiscal 2015, that iresuce coverage will continue to be available s&gabnsidered reasonable or that our coveray
will respond to a specific loss. Further, we mapegience difficulties in collecting from our insuseor our insurers may deny all or a portiol
our claims for insurance coverage.

A tepid or deteriorating global economy may affect our business.

As a result of volatility in oil and natligas prices and a tepid global economic envirorimea are unable to determine whether our
customers will maintain spending on exploration dadelopment drilling or whether customers andénwdors and suppliers will be able to
access financing necessary to sustain their culeeat of operations, fulfill their commitments dodfund future operations and obligations. In
the event the global economic environment remaipiltor deteriorates, industry fundamentals mayripacted and result in stagnant or
reduced demand for drilling rigs. Furthermore, ehfesctors may result in certain of our customegseeencing an inability to pay vendors,
including us. The global economic environment i@ plast has experienced significant deterioraticannelatively short period of time and there
can be no assurance that the global economic emaint will not quickly deteriorate again due to @nenore factors. These conditions could
have a material adverse effect on our businesadial condition and results of operations.

The contract drilling businessis highly competitive.

Competition in contract drilling involveach factors as price, rig availability and excegsapacity in the industry, efficiency, condition
and type of equipment, reputation, operating satstyironmental impact, and customer relations. etition is primarily on a regional basis
and may vary significantly by region at any parécuime. Land drilling rigs can be readily movedrh one
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region to another in response to changes in lefastivity, and an oversupply of rigs in any regimay result, leading to increased price
competition.

Although many contracts for drilling seretcare awarded based solely on price, we havesueeessful in establishing long-term
relationships with certain customers which havevedid us to secure drilling work even though we matyhave been the lowest bidder for s
work. We have continued to attempt to differentiadie services based upon our FlexRigs and our ergimg design expertise, operational
efficiency, safety and environmental awarenesss $trategy is less effective when lower demandfifiing services intensifies price
competition and makes it more difficult or impodsito compete on any basis other than price. Algare improvements in operational
efficiency and safety by our competitors could riegdy affect our ability to differentiate our séces.

The loss of one or a number of our large customers could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

In fiscal 2014, we received approximatedypercent of our consolidated operating revenuss fsur ten largest contract drilling
customers and approximately 26 percent of our dafeged operating revenues from our three largestoeners (including their affiliates). We
believe that our relationship with all of thesetousers is good; however, the loss of one or mom@uofarger customers could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.

New technologies may cause our drilling methods and equipment to become less competitive, higher levels of capital expenditureswill be
necessary to keep pace with the bifurcation of the drilling industry, and growth through the building of new drilling rigsis not assured.

The market for our services is characteérizg continual technological developments that hagalted in, and will likely continue to res
in, substantial improvements in the functionalibggerformance of rigs and equipment. Our customersncreasingly demanding the servi
of newer, higher specification drilling rigs. Thissults in a bifurcation of the drilling fleet arsdevidenced by the higher specification drilling
rigs (e.g., AC rigs) generally operating at higbeerall utilization levels and day rates than tedr specification drilling rigs (e.g., mechani
or SCR rigs). In addition, a significant numbelafer specification rigs are being stacked and¢anaved from service. As a result of this
bifurcation, a higher level of capital expenditurg$ be required to maintain and improve existiigs and equipment and purchase and
construct newer, higher specification drilling rigsmeet the increasingly sophisticated needs ptostomers.

Since the late 1990's we have increasedllling rig fleet through new construction. Althgh we take measures to ensure that we use
advanced oil and natural gas drilling technolodyarmges in technology or improvements in competiggaipment could make our equipment
less competitive. There can be no assurance thatilve

. have sufficient capital resources to build newhtexdogically advanced drilling rigs;

. avoid cost overruns inherent in large construcgimjects resulting from numerous factors such astabes of equipment,
materials and skilled labor, unscheduled delaydelivery of ordered equipment and materials, ucgdted increases in costs
equipment, materials and labor, design and engimgeroblems, and financial or other difficulties;

. successfully integrate additional drilling rigs;

. effectively manage the growth and increased aizaur organization and drilling fleet;
. successfully deploy idle, stacked or additiahdling rigs;

. maintain crews necessary to operate additiondindyitigs; or
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. successfully improve our financial condition, réswf operations, business or prospects as a i&soiltilding new drilling rigs.

If we are not successful in building negsrand equipment or upgrading our existing rigsequipment in a timely and cost-effective
manner, we could lose market share. One or mohmtdagies that we may implement in the future maywork as we expect and we may be
adversely affected. Additionally, new technologiesrvices or standards could render some of ouicesr, drilling rigs or equipment obsolete,
which could have a material adverse impact on asiriess, financial condition and results of operati

New legislation and regulatory initiatives relating to hydraulic fracturing or other aspects of the oil and gas industry could negatively impact
the drilling programs of our customers and, consequently, delay, limit or reduce the drilling services we provide.

It is a common practice in our industry éorr customers to recover natural gas and oil fsbale and other formations through the use of
horizontal drilling combined with hydraulic fractng. Hydraulic fracturing is the process of cregtar expanding cracks, or fractures, in
formations using water, sand and other additivesg®d under high pressure into the formation. Thirdnylic fracturing process is typically
regulated by state oil and natural gas commissiBesgeral states have adopted or are consideringiagaegulations that could impose more
stringent permitting, public disclosure, waste disgd and/or well construction requirements on hylitdracturing operations or otherwise s
to ban fracturing activities altogether. In additio state laws, some local municipalities havepsetbor are considering adopting land use
restrictions, such as city ordinances, that matiot®r prohibit the performance of well drilling general and/or hydraulic fracturing in
particular. Members of the U.S. Congress and a reumobfederal agencies are analyzing, or have beguested to review, a variety of
environmental issues associated with hydrauliddirity and the possibility of more stringent regiala. For example, the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency has undertaken a study of thenial environmental effects of hydraulic fractwyion drinking water and groundwater.
Depending on the outcome of these or other stuffidsral and state legislatures and agencies nekytedurther regulate, restrict or prohibit
hydraulic fracturing activities. Increased reguatand attention given to the hydraulic fractunmgcess could lead to greater opposition to oil
and gas production activities using hydraulic fugictyg techniques, operational delays or increagetating and compliance costs in the
production of oil and natural gas from shale plagsjed difficulty in performing hydraulic fractugnand potentially a decline in the
completion of new oil and gas wells.

We do not engage in any hydraulic fractyi@ativities. However, any new laws, regulationp@mitting requirements regarding hydra
fracturing could negatively impact the drilling grams of our customers and, consequently, delawt, dir reduce the drilling services we
provide. Widespread regulation significantly regtrig or prohibiting hydraulic fracturing by ourstemers could have a material adverse
impact on our business, financial condition anditsf operation.

Failure to comply with the terms of our plea agreement with the United States Department of Justice may adversely affect our business.

On November 8, 2013, the United StatesribisCourt for the Eastern District of Louisiangpapved the previously disclosed October 30,
2013 plea agreement between our wholly owned siglsgjdHelmerich & Payne International Drilling CEH&PIDC"), and the United States
Department of Justice, United States Attorney'sc®ffor the Eastern District of Louisiana ("DOJThe court's approval of the plea agreemen
resolved the DOJ's investigation into certain chalemifold testing irregularities that occurred BiLR at one of H&PIDC's offshore platform
rigs in the Gulf of Mexico. As part of the plea agment, H&PIDC agreed, during a three-year probatipperiod, to not commit any further
criminal violations and to fulfill the terms of amvironmental compliance plan ("ECP") whose purpsde develop and implement additional
training and safety
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programs. Our ability to comply with the terms loé plea agreement is dependent, in part, on ogessful implementation of the additional
training and safety programs set forth in the E@Rile not anticipated, a failure to comply with tteems of the plea agreement, including the
ECP, could result in prosecution and other regwyadanctions, and could otherwise adversely affectbusiness. We have been engaged in
discussions with the Inspector General's officthefDepartment of Interior regarding the same es/érat were the subject of the DOJ's
investigation. Although we presently believe tte butcome of our discussions will not have a ngtadverse effect on us, we can provide
assurances as to the timing or eventual outcortigest discussions. In addition, we could be exptseil litigation arising from the events
that were the subject of the DOJ's investigatiomy Auch litigation may result in financial liabjlitRefer to Iltem 3—"Legal Proceedings" and
Note 1:—"Commitments and Contingencies" included in Item"&inancial Statements and Supplementary DatahisfRorm 10-K for
additional discussion of this subject.

We are subject to the political, economic and social instability risks and local laws associated with doing businessin certain foreign
countries.

We currently have operations in South Acgrthe Middle East and Africa. In the future, waynfurther expand the geographic reach of
our operations. As a result, we are exposed taiogpblitical, economic and other uncertaintiesemtountered in U.S. operations, including
increased risks of social unrest, strikes, termoyizwar, kidnapping of employees, nationalizatiamrcéd negotiation or modification of contrau
difficulty resolving disputes and enforcing contrpoovisions, expropriation of equipment as weleapropriation of oil and gas exploration
and drilling rights, taxation policies, foreign éxmge restrictions and restrictions on repatriatibimcome and capital, currency rate
fluctuations, increased governmental ownershipragdlation of the economy and industry in the merke which we operate, economic and
financial instability of national oil companies,darestrictive governmental regulation, bureaucraéilays and general hazards associated with
foreign sovereignty over certain areas in whichrapens are conducted. South American countriepaiticular, have historically experienced
uneven periods of economic growth, as well as moasperiods of high inflation and general ecormand political instability. From time to
time these risks have impacted our business. Fampbe, on June 30, 2010, the Venezuelan governexgnbpriated 11 rigs and associated
and personal property owned by our Venezuelan diatvgi Prior thereto, we also experienced curradeyaluation losses in Venezuela and
difficulty repatriating U.S. dollars to the Unit&lates.

Additionally, there can be no assurancettiere will not be changes in local laws, regolasi and administrative requirements or the
interpretation thereof which could have a mateathlerse effect on the profitability of our operasar on our ability to continue operations in
certain areas. Because of the impact of local lawsfuture operations in certain areas may be ected through entities in which local citiz
own interests and through entities (including jaiantures) in which we hold only a minority interes pursuant to arrangements under which
we conduct operations under contract to localiestitVhile we believe that neither operating thitoagch entities nor pursuant to such
arrangements would have a material adverse effeotio operations or revenues, there can be noas=ithat we will in all cases be able to
structure or restructure our operations to confarecal law (or the administration thereof) omtsrwe find acceptable.

Although we attempt to minimize the potahitimpact of such risks by operating in more thaa geographical area, during fiscal 2014,
approximately 10 percent of our consolidated ojegakevenues were generated from the internatiomatiract drilling business. During fiscal
2014, approximately 74 percent of the internatiaparating revenues were from operations in Soutierca. All of the South American
operating revenues were from Argentina, Colombih Beuador. The future occurrence of one or moermaitional events arising from the
types of risks described above could have a matatigerse impact on our business, financial coonitind results of operation.
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We depend on a limited number of vendors, some of which are thinly capitalized and the loss of any of which could disrupt our operations.

Certain key rig components are either paseld from or fabricated by a single or limited nemf vendors, and we have no long-term
contracts with many of these vendors. Shortagell @mcur in these essential components due totarription of supply or increased
demands in the industry. If we are unable to preaertain of such rig components, we would be reguio reduce our rig construction or of
operations, which could have a material adversecetin our business, financial condition and resofitoperations.

If our principal fabricator, located on thexas gulf coast, was unable or unwilling to cond fabricating rig components, then we would
have to transfer this work to other acceptableiatbors. This transfer could result in significaelay in the completion of new FlexRigs. Any
significant interruption in the fabrication of rapmponents could have a material adverse impaotipbusiness, financial condition and res
of operations.

Certain key rig components are obtainethfiendors that are, in some cases, thinly capétd/imdependent companies that generate
significant portions of their business from usmnfi a small group of companies in the energy ingusthese vendors may be
disproportionately affected by any loss of busindssvnturn in the energy industry or reduction pavailability of credit. Therefore,
disruptions in rig component delivery may occur anch disruptions and terminations could have rahadverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Our securities portfolio may lose significant value due to a decline in equity prices and other market-related risks, thus impacting our debt
ratio and financial strength.

At September 30, 2014, we had a portfolisezurities with a total fair value of approximgt®222 million, consisting of Atwood
Oceanics, Inc. and Schlumberger, Ltd. These s@zsiate subject to a wide variety of market-relatskks that could substantially reduce or
increase the fair value of our holdings. The pdidf recorded at fair value on our balance shétit changes in unrealized after-tax value
reflected in the equity section of our balance sh&eNovember 13, 2014, the fair value of the fmiv® had decreased to approximately
$185 million.

Failure to comply with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act or foreign anti-bribery legislation, other governmental regulations and
environmental laws could adver sely affect our business.

The U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FAC) and similar anti-bribery laws in other juristions, including the United Kingdom
Bribery Act 2010, generally prohibit companies a@nelir intermediaries from making improper paymeatforeign officials for the purpose of
obtaining or retaining business. We operate in ngarys of the world that have experienced governat@orruption to some degree and, in
certain circumstances, strict compliance with @nifdery laws may conflict with local customs andgtices and impact our business. Althougt
we have programs in place covering compliance waiitti-bribery legislation, any failure to comply tithe FCPA or other anti-bribery
legislation could subject us to civil and crimimpednalties or other sanctions, which could have tnah adverse impact on our business,
financial condition and results of operation. Weldaalso face fines, sanctions and other pendhigs authorities in the relevant foreign
jurisdictions, including prohibition of our partgating in or curtailment of business operationthimse jurisdictions and the seizure of drill
rigs or other assets.

Additionally, many aspects of our operasi@ane subject to government regulation, includimasé relating to drilling practices, pollution,
disposal of hazardous substances and oil fieldevdste United States and various other countriee bavironmental regulations which affect
drilling operations. The cost of compliance witleslk laws could be substantial. A failure to conwpith these laws and regulations could
expose us to substantial civil and criminal peraltin addition, environmental laws
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and regulations in the United States impose a tyaoierequirements on "responsible parties" relatethe prevention of oil spills and liability
for damages from such spills. As an owner and dpedd drilling rigs, we may be deemed to be a oegible party under these laws and
regulations.

We believe that we are in substantial caamgle with all legislation and regulations affegtimur operations in the drilling of oil and gas
wells and in controlling the discharge of wastes. date, compliance costs have not materially agféour capital expenditures, earnings, or
competitive position, although compliance measurag add to the costs of drilling operations. Additl legislation or regulation may
reasonably be anticipated, and the effect themeafur operations cannot be predicted.

Regulation of greenhouse gases and climate change could have a negative impact on our business.

Scientific studies have suggested that €ois of certain gases, commonly referred to aselgnouse gases” ("GHGs") and including
carbon dioxide and methane, may be contributingaoming of the Earth's atmosphere and other clor@tanges. In response to such studies
the issue of climate change and the effect of GHiB®ons, in particular emissions from fossil fuédsattracting increasing attention
worldwide. We are aware of the increasing foculacél, state, national and international regulatoogies on GHG emissions and climate
change issues. The United States Congress maydeoisgislation to reduce GHG emissions. Although not possible at this time to predict
whether proposed legislation or regulations willdgpted, any such future laws and regulationsdcasult in increased compliance costs or
additional operating restrictions. Any additionabts or operating restrictions associated withslagjon or regulations regarding GHG
emissions could have a material adverse impactiobusiness, financial condition and results ofrapens.

Legal proceedings could have a negative impact on our business.

The nature of our business makes us subtei legal proceedings and governmental invasitigs from time to time. Lawsuits or clai
against us could have a material adverse effecuotusiness, financial condition and results afraions. Any litigation or claims, even if
fully indemnified or insured, could negatively affeur reputation among our customers and the pudid make it more difficult for us to
compete effectively or obtain adequate insurandberfuture.

Our business and results of operations may be adversely affected by foreign currency restrictions and devaluation.

Our contracts for work in foreign countrgenerally provide for payment in U.S. dollars. Hwer, in Argentina we are paid in Argentine
pesos. The Argentine branch of one of our secandstibsidiaries remits U.S. dollars to its U.Sepaby converting the Argentine pesos into
U.S. dollars through the Argentine Foreign Exchakigeket and repatriating the U.S. dollars. In thufe, other contracts or applicable law
may require payments to be made in foreign curesn&@ased upon current information, we believe dbhatexposure to potential losses from
currency restrictions and devaluation in foreignmoies is immaterial. However, there can be norm@sse that we will not experience in
Argentina or elsewhere a devaluation of foreigrreny, foreign exchange restrictions or other diffies repatriating U.S. dollars even if we
are able to negotiate contract provisions desigoeaxitigate such risks. In the event of future pawis in foreign currencies and an inability to
timely exchange foreign currencies for U.S. dollare may incur currency devaluation losses whialidcbave a material adverse impact on
our business, financial condition and results aragions.

13




Table of Contents

Our current backlog of contract drilling revenue may not be ultimately realized as fixed-term contracts may in certain instances be
terminated without an early termination payment.

Fixed-term drilling contracts customarilsopide for termination at the election of the cuséw, with an "early termination payment" to be
paid to us if a contract is terminated prior to éxiration of the fixed term. However, under cerfanited circumstances, such as destruction
of a drilling rig, our bankruptcy, sustained ungutedle performance by us or delivery of a rig beoartain grace and/or liquidated damage
periods, no early termination payment would be paids. Even if an early termination payment is dweus, a poor global economic
environment may affect the customer's ability tg fhee early termination payment. We also may nadlfile to perform under these contracts
due to events beyond our control, and our customessseek to cancel or renegotiate our contracteaidous reasons, including those
described above. As of September 30, 2014, ouractrdrilling backlog was approximately $5.0 bifliéor future revenues under firm
commitments. Our inability or the inability of ooustomers to perform under our or their contracbidigations may have a material adverse
impact on our business, financial condition anditsf operations.

We may have additional tax liabilities.

We are subject to income taxes in the Wn8&ates and numerous other jurisdictions. Sigmifigudgment is required in determining our
worldwide provision for income taxes. In the ordiaourse of our business, there are many tramsectind calculations where the ultimate
determination is uncertain. We are regularly aubitg tax authorities. Although we believe our takmates are reasonable, the final
determination of tax audits and any related lifyatould be materially different than what is eeftied in income tax provisions and accruals.
An audit or litigation could materially affect ofinancial position, income tax provision, net inomnor cash flows in the period or periods
challenged. It is also possible that future charigeax laws (including tax treaties) could impaat ability to realize the tax savings recorded
to date.

Shortages of drilling equipment and supplies could adversely affect our operations.

The contract drilling business is highlcligal. During periods of increased demand for caettdrilling services, delays in delivery and
shortages of drilling equipment and supplies caruncThese risks are intensified during periodsmiie industry experiences significant new
drilling rig construction or refurbishment. Any $udelays or shortages could have a material adeéfset on our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

Reliance on management and competition for experienced personnel may negatively impact our operations or financial results.

We greatly depend on the efforts of ourcexi@e officers and other key employees to manageperations. The loss of members of
management could have a material effect on ounkessi Similarly, we utilize highly skilled persohireoperating and supporting our
businesses. In times of high utilization, it candifécult to retain, and in some cases find, giiedi individuals. Although to date our operations
have not been materially affected by competitianpersonnel, an inability to obtain or find a sciffint number of qualified personnel could
have a material adverse effect on our businesadial condition and results of operations.

Our business is subject to cybersecurity risks.

Threats to information technology systessoaiated with cybersecurity risks and cyber intisl®r attacks continue to grow.
Cybersecurity attacks could include, but are noitéd to, malicious software, attempts to gain thartized access to our data and the
unauthorized release, corruption or loss of oua,dass of our intellectual property, theft of dtexRig and other technology, loss or
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damage to our data delivery systems, other eldctsmturity breaches that could lead to disruptiarur critical systems, and increased costs
to prevent, respond to or mitigate cybersecurigngs. It is possible that our business, finanaial ather systems could be compromised, w
might not be noticed for some period of time. Aligb we utilize various procedures and controls itigate our exposure to such risk,
cybersecurity attacks are evolving and unpredietaihe occurrence of such an attack could leathém€ial losses and have a material advers
effect on our business, financial condition andiltsof operations. We are not aware that any rizteybersecurity breaches have occurred tc
date.

Unionization efforts and labor regulationsin certain countriesin which we operate could materially increase our costs or limit our
flexibility.

Efforts may be made from time to time taomize portions of our workforce. In addition, weynin the future be subject to strikes or w
stoppages and other labor disruptions. Additiomébrization efforts, new collective bargaining agreents or work stoppages could materially
increase our costs, reduce our revenues or limiflexibility.

Any future implementation of price controls on oil and natural gas would affect our operations.

The United States Congress may in the éutupose some form of price controls on eitherratural gas, or both. Any future limits on
price of oil or natural gas could negatively affdet demand for our services and, consequenthe hawaterial adverse effect on our business
financial condition and results of operations.

Covenantsin our debt agreementsrestrict our ability to engagein certain activities.

Our debt agreements pertaining to certaiigdterm unsecured debt and our unsecured revotvadjt facility contain various covenants
that may in certain instances restrict our abtlityamong other things, incur, assume or guaradd#ional indebtedness, incur liens, make
loans or certain types of investments, sell or mtfse dispose of assets, enter into new lines sin@ss, and merge or consolidate. In addition,
our debt agreements also require us to maintaiimmim current, funded leverage and interest coveratigs. Such restrictions may limit our
ability to successfully execute our business plamgch may have adverse consequences on our apesati

Improvementsin or new discoveries of alternative energy technologies could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and
results of operations.

Since our business depends on the levattdfity in the oil and natural gas industry, amprovement in or new discoveries of alternative
energy technologies that increase the use of aligmforms of energy and reduce the demand faaradl natural gas could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

We have received no written comments raggrdur periodic or current reports from the st#fthe SEC that were issued 180 days or
more preceding the end of our 2014 fiscal yearthatiremain unresolved.
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Item 2. PROPERTIES
CONTRACT DRILLING

The following table sets forth certain infation concerning our U.S. land and offshore idgllrigs as of September 30, 2014:

Optimum Drawworks:

Location Rig Depth (Feet) Rig Type Horsepower
FLEXRIGS

TEXAS 164 18,00( SCR (FlexRigl 1,50(
TEXAS 165 18,00C SCR (FlexRigl 1,50(
TEXAS 16€ 18,00C SCR (FlexRigl 1,50(
TEXAS 167 18,00( SCR (FlexRigl 1,50(
TEXAS 16¢€ 18,00 SCR (FlexRigl 1,50(
TEXAS 16¢ 18,000 SCR (FlexRigl 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 17¢ 18,00 SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 18C 18,00C SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 181 18,00 SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 182 18,00C SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 182 18,00C SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 184 18,000 SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 18t 18,00 SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 18€ 18,000 SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 187 18,00 SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 18¢€ 18,00(C SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 18¢ 18,00 SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 21C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS* 211 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NEW MEXICO 212 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NEW MEXICO 214 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
WYOMING 21¢E 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 21€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 21¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 22C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 221 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 222 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NEW MEXICO 227 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 224 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
PENNSYLVANIA 228 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 22€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 227 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 231 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 232 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 23Z 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 23E 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
CALIFORNIA 23€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS* 23¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 23¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
CALIFORNIA 24C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 241 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 244 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
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Location

TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS
MISSISSIPPI
OKLAHOMA
NEW MEXICO
TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

NORTH DAKOTA
NORTH DAKOTA
NORTH DAKOTA
MONTANA
NORTH DAKOTA
TEXAS
CALIFORNIA
CALIFORNIA
TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS
WYOMING
MONTANA
COLORADO
TEXAS
WYOMING
UTAH
COLORADO
COLORADO
TEXAS
COLORADO
TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

OHIO

WEST VIRGINIA
NORTH DAKOTA
OHIO

TEXAS
LOUISIANA
OHIO

NORTH DAKOTA
NORTH DAKOTA
NORTH DAKOTA
TEXAS

Optimum Drawworks:
Rig Depth (Feet) Rig Type Horsepower
24E 22,00 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
24€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
247 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
24¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
24¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
25C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
251 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
252 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
252 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
254 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
25E 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
25€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
257 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
25¢€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
25¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
26 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
261 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
262 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
265 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50C
264 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50C
26E 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
26€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
267 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
26¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
26¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
271 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
272 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
277 18,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50¢
274 18,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
27E 18,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50¢
27€ 18,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
2717 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
27¢€ 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
27¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
28C 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
281 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
282 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
28: 8,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
284 18,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
28t 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
28¢€ 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
287 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
28¢ 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
28¢ 18,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
29C 18,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
297 18,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
294 18,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
29t 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
29€ 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
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Optimum Drawworks:
Location Rig Depth (Feet) Rig Type Horsepower
OKLAHOMA 297 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
WYOMING 29¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 29¢ 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
NEW MEXICO 30C 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 30z 8,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
TEXAS 303 8,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
TEXAS 304 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
TEXAS 30& 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
TEXAS 30€ 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
COLORADO 307 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 30¢ 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 30¢ 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
WYOMING 31C 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 311 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 312 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 31z 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 314 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 31¢ 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 31€ 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 317 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 31¢€ 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 31¢ 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 32C 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 321 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 322 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 32z 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 324 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 32t 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 32¢ 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 327 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 32¢ 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 32¢ 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 33C 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
LOUISIANA 331 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 332 18,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 34C 8,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
TEXAS 341 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 34z 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 34: 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 344 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
TEXAS 34t 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
TEXAS 34€ 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
TEXAS 347 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
TEXAS 34¢ 8,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
TEXAS 34¢ 8,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
TEXAS 351 8,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
TEXAS 352 8,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
NORTH DAKOTA 352 18,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
PENNSYLVANIA 354 18,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
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Optimum Drawworks:
Location Rig Depth (Feet) Rig Type Horsepower
TEXAS 35E 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
TEXAS 35€ 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
TEXAS 36C 8,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
TEXAS 361 8,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
TEXAS 362 8,00C AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
TEXAS 37C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
PENNSYLVANIA 371 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 372 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 372 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 374 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 37E 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 37¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 377 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 37¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 37¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
CALIFORNIA 38C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
CALIFORNIA 381 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 382 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 383 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 384 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OHIO 38t 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 38¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 387 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 38¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 38¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 39C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NEW MEXICO 391 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 392 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 393 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NEW MEXICO 394 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 39t 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 39¢€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 397 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 39¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 39¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NEW MEXICO 41t 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NEW MEXICO 41€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
LOUISIANA 417 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 41¢€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 41¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 42C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 421 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 422 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 428 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
CALIFORNIA 424 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 42¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
CALIFORNIA 42¢€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 427 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 42¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
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Location

TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS
OKLAHOMA
TEXAS

TEXAS

NORTH DAKOTA
TEXAS
CALIFORNIA
TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS
CALIFORNIA
TEXAS

NORTH DAKOTA
OKLAHOMA
NORTH DAKOTA
NORTH DAKOTA
OKLAHOMA
TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

NORTH DAKOTA
TEXAS

NORTH DAKOTA
NORTH DAKOTA
TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

TEXAS

NORTH DAKOTA
TEXAS

TEXAS

NEW MEXICO
TEXAS

NEW MEXICO
TEXAS

Optimum Drawworks:
Rig Depth (Feet) Rig Type Horsepower
42¢ 22,00 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
43C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
431 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
437 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
43¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
434 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
43¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
43¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
437 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
43¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
43¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
44C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
441 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
44z 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
447 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
444 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
44E 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
44¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
447 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50C
44¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50C
44¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
45(C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
451 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
452 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
452 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
454 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
45E 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
45€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
457 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
45¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
45¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
46C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
461 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
462 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
46 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
464 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50¢
465 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
46€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
467 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
46€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
46¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
47¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
471 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
472 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
472 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
474 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
478 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
477 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
47¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
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Optimum Drawworks:
Location Rig Depth (Feet) Rig Type Horsepower
TEXAS 47¢ 22,00 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 48C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 481 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 482 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 483 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 48t 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NEW MEXICO 48¢€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 487 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 48¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 48¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 49C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 491 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 492 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 498 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 494 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 49t 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 49¢€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 497 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 49¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 49¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
PENNSYLVANIA 50C 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 501 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 502 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 502 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 504 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 50& 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 50€ 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 507 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 50¢ 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 50¢ 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 51C 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 511 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 512 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 512 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 514 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 51t 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 51¢€ 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 517 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 51¢ 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 51¢ 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
WYOMING 52C 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
PENNSYLVANIA 521 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
COLORADO 522 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
LOUISIANA 522 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
NORTH DAKOTA 524 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 52t 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 52¢ 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 527 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 52¢ 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(

21




Table of Contents

Optimum Drawworks:

Location Rig Depth (Feet) Rig Type Horsepower
OKLAHOMA 52¢ 25,00( AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 53C 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
OHIO 531 25,000 AC (FlexRig5) 1,50(
TEXAS 60C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 601 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 60z 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 603 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 604 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 605 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 60€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 607 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
PENNSYLVANIA 60¢& 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 60¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 61C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 611 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 612 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 612 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 614 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NEW MEXICO 61t 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 61€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 617 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 61€& 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 61¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NEW MEXICO 62C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
NEW MEXICO 621 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 622 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
MISSISSIPP| 622 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 624 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
COLORADO 62% 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 62€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 627 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
PENNSYLVANIA 62€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 62¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 63C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 631 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
CONVENTIONAL RIGS

LOUISIANA 72 30,00( SCR 3,00(
OKLAHOMA 73 30,00( SCR 3,00(
LOUISIANA 134 30,00( SCR 3,00(
TEXAS 13€ 30,00(¢ SCR 3,00(
TEXAS 157 30,00( SCR 3,00(
LOUISIANA 161 30,00(¢ SCR 3,00(
LOUISIANA 162 30,00( SCR 3,00(
OFFSHORE PLATFORM RIGS

GULF OF MEXICO 203 20,00C  Self-Erecting 2,50(
GULF OF MEXICO 20E 20,00C  Self-Erecting 2,00(¢
GULF OF MEXICO 20¢€ 20,00C  Self-Erecting 2,00(
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Optimum Drawworks:
Location Rig Depth (Feet) Rig Type Horsepower
GULF OF MEXICO 10C 30,00 Conventiona 3,00
GULF OF MEXICO 10t 30,00  Conventiona 3,00
GULF OF MEXICO 107 30,00C Conventiona 3,00(
GULF OF MEXICO 201 30,00( Tensior-leg 3,00(
GULF OF MEXICO 20z 30,00(¢ Tensior-leg 3,00(
GULF OF MEXICO 204 30,00( Tensior-leg 3,00(

* Rig moved to Argentina in the first quarter of #2015
The following table sets forth informatiasith respect to the utilization of our U.S. landaffshore drilling rigs for the periods indicated:

Years ended September 3(
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

U.S. Land Rigs
Number of rigs at end of peric 22C 24¢ 282 30z 32¢
Average rig utilization rate during
period (1) 73% 8€% 8% 82% 8%
U.S. Offshore Platform Ric
Number of rigs at end of peric 9 9 9 9 9
Average rig utilization rate during
period (1) 80% 77% 79% 8%% 8%%

(1) Arrigis considered to be utilized when it is ogedaor being moved, assembled or dismantled urmigract.
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The following table sets forth certain infation concerning our international drilling rigs of September 30, 2014:

Optimum Drawworks:
Location Rig Depth (Feet) Rig Type Horsepower
Argentina 23C 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(C
Argentina 234 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(C
Argentina 33t 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15C
Argentina 33¢€ 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15C
Argentina 337 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
Argentina 33¢ 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15C
Argentina 122 26,00( SCR 2,10C
Argentina 17t 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Argentina 177 30,00( SCR 3,00(¢
Argentina 151 30,000- SCR 3,00¢
Argentina 213 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(C
Argentina 217 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50C
Argentina 21¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50C
Argentina 22¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50C
Bahrain 292 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
Bahrain 301 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15C
Bahrain 33¢ 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15C
Colombia 237 18,00C AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
Colombia 291 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15C
Colombia 33: 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15C
Colombia 334 8,000 AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(C
Colombia 13: 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Colombia# 13¢ 30,000- SCR 3,00(¢
Colombia 152 30,000- SCR 3,00(
Colombia 90C 30,000- AC Drive 3,00(
Ecuadol 132 18,00( SCR 1,50(
Ecuadol 17€ 18,00( SCR 1,50(
Ecuadol 121 20,00( SCR 1,70(
Ecuadotl 19C 26,00( SCR 2,00¢
Ecuadoi 117 26,00( SCR 2,50(
Ecuadol 13¢ 26,00( SCR 2,50(
Mozambique 242 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(C
Tunisia 22¢ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
Tunisia 242 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
UAE 47€ 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
UAE 484 22,000 AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(

# Rig moved to U.S. Land in the first quarter ofdis?2015.
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The following table sets forth informatiaith respect to the utilization of our internatiddailling rigs for the periods indicated:

Years ended September 3(
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Number of rigs at end of peric 28 24 29 29 36
Average rig utilization rate during
period (1)(2) 7% 70% T77% 82% 76%

(1) Arigis considered to be utilized when it is ogethor being moved, assembled or dismantled unoleract.

(2) Does not include rigs returned to the United Stétesnajor modifications and upgrade

STOCK PORTEOLIO

Information required by this item regardimg stock portfolio may be found on, and is inaogted by reference to, Item 7—
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finarn€@idition and Results of Operations—Stock Portfeled" included in this Form 10-K.

ltem 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
1. Investigation by the Department of the Interior

On November 8, 2013, the United StatesribisCourt for the Eastern District of Louisiangpapved the previously disclosed October 30,
2013 plea agreement between our wholly owned sidvgidtHelmerich & Payne International Drilling Cand the United States Department of
Justice, United States Attorney's Office for thatEen District of Louisiana ("DOJ"). The court'spagval of the plea agreement resolved the
DOJ's investigation into certain choke manifolditesirregularities that occurred in 2010 at onéHefmerich & Payne International
Drilling Co.'s offshore platform rigs in the Gulf Mexico. We have been engaged in discussions th@hnspector General's office of the
Department of the Interior regarding the same et were the subject of the DOJ's investigatidtihough we presently believe that the
outcome of our discussions will not have a matexiblerse effect on us, we can provide no assurascisthe timing or eventual outcome of
these discussions.

2. Venezuela Expropriation.

Our wholly-owned subsidiaries, HelmericHP&yne International Drilling Co. and Helmerich &Ra de Venezuela, C.A. filed a lawsuit
in the United States District Court for the Distraé Columbia on September 23, 2011 against thévBaan Republic of Venezuela, Petroleos
de Venezuela, S.A. ("PDVSA") and PDVSA Petroled. % Petroleo"). We are seeking damages for thntakf our Venezuelan drilling
business in violation of international law and fweach of contract. While there exists the possitiff realizing a recovery, we are currently
unable to determine the timing or amounts we magive, if any, or the likelihood of recovery.

Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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OUR EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following table sets forth the named ages of our executive officers, together withpakitions and offices held with the Company
by such executive officers. Officers are electedeve until the meeting of the Board of Directimifowing the next Annual Meeting of
Stockholders and until their successors have banetected and have qualified or until their earliesignation or removal.

John W. Lindsay, 53 President and Chief Execulifficer since March 2014; President and Chief @pieg Officer from September
2012 to March 2014; Director since September 2&k2cutive Vice President and Chief Operating Officem
2010 to September 2012; Executive Vice Presider8, bhd International Operations of Helmerich & fray
International Drilling Co. from 2006 to 2012; Vieresident of U.S. Land Operations of Helmerich &rita
International Drilling Co. from 1997 to 20(

Steven R. Mackey, 63 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Ghilfinistrative Officer since June 2014; Executifiee
President, Secretary, General Counsel and Chiefididirative Officer from March 2010 to June 2014;
Executive Vice President, Secretary and Generah€alifrom June 2008 to March 2010; Secretary fré801ic
June 2014, Vice President from 1988 to 2010; Géi@wansel since 198

Juan Pablo Tardio, 49 Vice President and Chief Financial Officer sincaiAp010; Director of Investor Relations from Janu2008 tc
April 2010; Manager of Investor Relations from Agfj2005 to January 20l
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PART Il

tem 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market I nformation

The principal market on which our commaucgtis traded is the New York Stock Exchange utkdersymbol "HP". As of November 14,
2014, there were 617 record holders of our comntaeksas listed by our transfer agent's records.hiie and low sale prices per share for the
common stock for each quarterly period during tastpwo fiscal years as reported in the NYSE-Cort@dsansaction quotations follow:

2013 2014
Quarter High Low High Low
First $ 57.1¢ $ 449 $ 8487 $ 68.8i
Seconc 69.3¢ 55.7¢ 108.4: 81.3¢
Third 66.02 55.7¢ 118.0: 103.5¢
Fourth 71.3¢ 62.3¢ 118.9¢ 96.7¢

Dividends

We paid quarterly cash dividends duringphst two fiscal years as shown in the table beRayment of future dividends will depend on
earnings and other factors.

Paid per Share Total Payment
Fiscal Fiscal
Quarter 2013 2014 2013 2014
First $ .070C $ .500C $ 7,430,94. $ 53,859,53
Seconc .150( .625( 16,038,41 67,685,67
Third .150( .625( 16,049,76 67,996,05
Fourth .500( .687¢ 53,534,25 74,844,56
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Performance Graph

The following performance graph reflects yfearly percentage change in our cumulative sttadkholder return on common stock as
compared with the cumulative total return on thePS#0 Index and the S&P 500 Oil & Gas Drilling ImdAll cumulative returns assume an
initial investment of $100, the reinvestment ofidends and are calculated on a fiscal year basismgmon September 30 of each year.

Comparison of Cumulative Five Year Total Return
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INDEXED RETURNS
Ba_se Years Ending
Period
Company / Index Sep09 Sep10 Sepll Sepl2 Sepl3 Sepl4
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 10C 102.9: 103.7¢ 122.3: 179.6: 261.4(
S&P 500 Index 10C 110.1¢ 111.4: 145.0¢ 173.1¢ 207.3(
S&P 500 Oil & Gas Drilling Index 10C 91.1¢ 81.0¢ 97.2¢  107.6¢ 94.57

The above performance graph and relatextnmdtion shall not be deemed to be "soliciting makeor to be "filed" with the SEC or
subject to Regulation 14A or 14C under the Seagixchange Act of 1934 or to the liabilities ots@n 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, and shall not be deemed to be incorporateadfbyence into any filing under the Securities 8ti933 or the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, except to the extent we specifically incogpeiit by reference into such a filing.
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Iltem 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table summarizes selectedifitial information and should be read in conjunctigth ltem 7—"Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpkrations” and ltem 8—"Financial Statements arqpfumentary Data" included in this
Form 10-K.

Five-year Summary of Selected Financial Data

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(in thousands except per share amount:

Operating revenue $ 3,719,70° $ 3,387,61- $ 3,151,80: $ 2,543,89- $ 1,875,16:
Income from continuing

operations 708,76t 721,45! 573,60¢ 434,66¢ 286,08:
Income (loss) from

discontinued operatior 47 15,18¢ 7,43¢ (482) (129,769
Net Income 708,71 736,63 581,04! 434,18t 156,31:

Basic earnings per share

from continuing

operations 6.54 6.7t 5.3t 4.0¢€ 2.7C
Basic earnings (loss) per

share from discontinue:

operations — 0.14 0.07 — (1.23)
Basic earnings per she 6.54 6.8¢ 5.42 4.0¢€ 1.4%
Diluted earnings per shar

from continuing

operations 6.4¢€ 6.6t 5.27 3.9¢ 2.6¢€
Diluted earnings (loss) pe

share from discontinue:

operations — 0.14 0.07 — (1.2
Diluted earnings per sha 6.4¢€ 6.7¢ 5.34 3.9¢ 1.4t
Total assets 6,721,86. 6,264,82 5,721,08! 5,003,89: 4,265,37!
Long-term debit 40,00( 80,00( 195,00( 235,00( 360,00(
Cash dividends declared
per common shai 2.62¢ 1.30(¢ 0.28( 0.26( 0.22(
* Total assets for all years include amounts reldtediscontinued operations. As further discusseate 2—

"Discontinued Operations" included in ltem 8—"Firéad Statements and Supplementary Data" of thigia0-K, our
Venezuelan subsidiary was classified as disconiraggerations on June 30, 2010, after the seizuuoflrilling assets
in that country by the Venezuelan governm
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Risk Factors and Forward-Looking Statements

The following discussion should be readanjunction with Part | of this Form 10-K as wedl the Consolidated Financial Statements anc
related notes thereto included in Item 8—"FinanSi@tements and Supplementary Data" of this Fori{.10ur future operating results may
be affected by various trends and factors whictbag@nd our control. These include, among otheofacfluctuations in oil and natural gas
prices, unexpected expiration or termination oflidg contracts, currency exchange gains and logsgsopriation of real and personal
property, changes in general economic conditioissygtions to the global credit markets, rapid nexpected changes in technologies, risks o
foreign operations, uninsured risks, changes inaftim and foreign policies, laws and regulations amcertain business conditions that affect
our businesses. Accordingly, past results and srshduld not be used by investors to anticipateréutesults or trends.

With the exception of historical informatiche matters discussed in Management's Discuasionalysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations include forward-looking sta¢ats. These forwarboking statements are based on various assumpidasaution tha
while we believe such assumptions to be reasoraieanake them in good faith, assumed facts almaslya vary from actual results. The
differences between assumed facts and actual sesritbe material. We are including this cautiorsé@yement to take advantage of the "safe
harbor" provisions of the Private Securities Litiga Reform Act of 1995 for any forward-looking &ments made by us or persons acting on
our behalf. The factors identified in this cautipnatatement and those factors discussed underllifem"Risk Factors" of this Form 10-K are
important factors (but not necessarily inclusivalbimportant factors) that could cause actualilitedo differ materially from those expressed
in any forward-looking statement made by us or @essacting on our behalf. Except as required by V@&undertake no duty to update or
revise our forward-looking statements based ong@bsof internal estimates or expectations or otlserw

Executive Summary

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is primarily a caut drilling company with a total fleet of 374 Iting rigs at September 30, 2014. Our contract
drilling segments consist of the U.S. Land segmetit 329 rigs, the Offshore segment with 9 offshplagtform rigs and the International Land
segment with 36 rigs at September 30, 2014. Weraged to expand our rig fleet in 2014 and our téily in managing our own rate of
production has allowed us to quickly respond tongfirag levels of FlexRig demand. Our position in tharket is strengthened by our high
quality fleet, our long-term contracts and our oustr base. The market demand for AC drive rigsinaat to increase during the year. During
2014, we placed into service 44 new FlexRigs arerew AC drive rig, all with fixed-term contractst September 30, 2014, we had 325
active rigs, compared to 276 active rigs at theesime during the prior year.

In addition, our customers continue to ®oun efficiency, technology and safety. We belithat our superior field performance and sa
record will allow us to continue to gain marketghaver the coming years.

As further discussed in Note 2 of the Cdidsted Financial Statements, our Venezuelan sidrgigvas classified as discontinued
operations on June 30, 2010, after the seizur@ioddlling assets in that country by the Venezoagjavernment. Except as specifically
discussed, the following results of operationsgieronly to our continuing operations. Unless othise indicated, references to 2014, 2013
2012 in the following discussion are referring to fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012.
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Results of Operations

All per share amounts included in the Rissofl Operations discussion are stated on a dillodsis. Our net income for 2014 was
$708.7 million ($6.46 per share), compared with@&3nillion ($6.79 per share) for 2013 and $581illian ($5.34 per share) for 2012.
Included in our net income is after-tax gains fribra sale of investment securities of $27.8 mill{$0.25 per share) in 2014 and $97.9 million
($0.91 per share) in 2013. Net income also incladtes-tax gains from the sale of assets of $124lifom ($0.12 per share) in 2014,
$12.2 million ($0.11 per share) in 2013 and $12ilion ($0.11 per share) in 2012.

Consolidated operating revenues were $8id@rbin 2014, $3.4 billion in 2013 and $3.2 bdh in 2012. Our total number of revenue days
(drilling activity) also increased to record levelsring 2014. The number of revenue days in our UaBd segment totaled 100,638 in 2014,
compared to 88,620 in 2013 and 86,340 in 2012.W0O8r land rig utilization was 86 percent in 2012,@#rcent in 2013 and 89 percent in 2
The average number of U.S. land rigs available 34&srigs in 2014, 295 rigs in 2013 and 266 rig20i2. Revenue in the Offshore segment
steadily increased in 2014 and 2013 from 2012,emtg utilization for offshore rigs was 89 percan2014 and 2013, compared to 79 percent
in 2012. Revenue and rig utilization in the Inteim@al Land segment decreased in 2014 from 20E3 aftreasing in 2013 from 2012. Rig
utilization in our International Land segment wéspércent in 2014, 82 percent in 2013 and 77 péine2z012.

In 2014 and 2013, we had $45.2 million &&62.1 million in gains from the sale of investmsaturities, respectively. We did not sell
investment securities in 2012. Interest and divitimecome was $1.6 million, $1.7 million and $1.4limn in 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Direct operating costs in 2014 were $2lllobi or 54 percent of operating revenues, compavitd $1.9 billion or 55 percent of operating
revenues in 2013 and $1.8 billion or 56 percerdparating revenues in 2012.

Depreciation expense was $523.5 millioB0d4, $455.6 million in 2013 and $387.5 million2@12. Included in depreciation are
abandonments of equipment of $23.0 million in 2911 million in 2013 and $16.4 million in 2012. [Peciation expense, exclusive of the
abandonments, increased over the three-year pasiage placed into service 45 new rigs in 20140220113 and 48 in 2012. Depreciation
expense in 2015 is expected to increase from 2@id hiew rigs placed into service during 2014 arditamhal rigs placed into service during
2015. (See Liquidity and Capital Resources.)

As conditions warrant, management perfaamanalysis of the industry market conditions intipacits long-lived assets in each drilling
segment. Based on this analysis, management detsnfiany impairment is required. In 2014, 2018 2612, no impairment was recorded.

General and administrative expenses totl&%.1 million in 2014, $126.3 million in 2013 a$ii07.3 million in 2012. The $8.8 million
increase in 2014 from 2013 is primarily due to aamd growth in the number of employees in the carative periods and increases in
salaries, bonuses, and stock-based compensatier$In0 million increase in 2013 from 2012 was tugcreases in stock-based
compensation of approximately $17.3 million assdavith growth in the number of employees andéaases in wages in the comparative
periods.

Interest expense net of amounts capitaliatded $4.7 million in 2014, $6.1 million in 2088d $8.7 million in 2012. Interest expense is
primarily attributable to the fixed-rate debt oatsding. Interest expense decreased in 2014 frord @0d in 2013 from 2012 primarily due to a
reduction in outstanding debt balances during liheetyears. Capitalized interest was $7.7 mill&hg8 million and $12.9 million in 2014, 20
and 2012, respectively. All of the capitalized et is attributable to our rig construction pragra

The provision for income taxes totaled $38%illion in 2014, $392.8 million in 2013 and $3@%illion in 2012. The effective income 1
rate was 35.4 percent in 2014 compared to
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35.3 percent in 2013 and 36.4 percent in 2012. ipedancome taxes are provided for temporary diffiees between the financial reporting
basis and the tax basis of our assets and ligsiliRecoverability of any tax assets are evalumtechecessary allowances are provided. The
carrying value of the net deferred tax assetssed@n management's judgments using certain essraat assumptions that we will be able tc
generate sufficient future taxable income in cartak jurisdictions to realize the benefits of sassets. If these estimates and related
assumptions change in the future, additional vadnallowances may be recorded against the deféapedssets resulting in additional income
tax expense in the future. (See Note 4 of the Aafeted Financial Statements for additional incdmredisclosures.)

During 2014, 2013 and 2012, we incurred.$billion, $15.2 million and $16.1 million, resgaely, of research and development
expenses primarily related to the ongoing develoyroéthe rotary steerable system tools. We ardteipesearch and development expenses
continue during 2015.

Expenses incurred within the country of ¥amela are reported as discontinued operationided in 2013 and 2012 are proceeds from
arbitration disputes with third parties not affikd with the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela, Bltos de Venezuela, S.A. ("PDVSA") or
PDVSA Petroleo, S.A. ("Petroleo”) related to thizsee of our property in Venezuela on June 30, 2@t6ceeds of $15.0 million and
$7.5 million were received and recorded as disooetil operations in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Our wholly-owned subsidiaries, HelmericHP&yne International Drilling Co. and Helmerich &#Ra de Venezuela, C.A., filed a lawsuit
in the United States District Court for the Distro¢ Columbia on September 23, 2011 against thee¥eelan government, PDVSA and
Petroleo. Our subsidiaries seek damages for ttiegai their Venezuelan drilling business in vidadat of international law and for breach of
contract. While there exists the possibility ofliaag a recovery, we are currently unable to defae the timing or amounts we may receive
any, or the likelihood of recovery. No gain congngies are recognized in our Consolidated Finastetements.

The following tables summarize operatiopsdportable operating segment.
Comparison of the years ended September 30, 2014013

2014 2013 % Change
(in thousands, except operating statistics

U.S. LAND OPERATIONS

Operating revenue $ 3,099,95. $ 2,785,44 11.5%
Direct operating expens: 1,576,70:; 1,424,711 10.7
General and administrative expel 41,57: 37,07( 12.1
Depreciatior 455,93« 391,07: 16.€
Segment operating incon $ 1,025,74 $ 932,59: 10.C
Operating Statistics

Revenue day 100,63t 88,62( 13.6%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 28,190 $  28,38. (0.7
Average rig expense per d $ 13,05¢ $  13,02¢ 0.z
Average rig margin per de $ 1513¢ $  15,35! (1.9
Number of rigs at end of peric 32¢ 302 8.€
Rig utilization 86% 82% 4.€

Operating statistics for per day revenue, expemskraargin do not include reimbursements of "oupadket” expenses
$262,532 and $270,223 for 2014 and 2013, respédygtive

Rig utilization in 2013 excludes two FlexRigs coztgndl and ready for delivery at September 30, 2
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Operating income in the U.S. Land segmeereiased to $1.0 billion in 2014 from $932.6 millio 2013 primarily due to an increase in
revenue days. Included in U.S. land revenues fad20hd 2013 is approximately $11.7 million and $18illion, respectively, from early
termination and revenue from customers that reqdedlivery delays for new FlexRigs. Excluding gaermination related revenue and
customer requested delivery delay revenue for newRigs, the average revenue per day for 2014 siigitly decreased by $90 to $28,080
from $28,168 in 2013. Direct operating expenses psrcentage of revenue were 51 percent in 20145hAp@rcent in 2013.

Rig utilization increased to 86 percen2@i4 from 82 percent in 2013. The total numbeligs at September 30, 2014 was 329 compare
to 302 rigs at September 30, 2013. The net incrisatige to 42 new FlexRigs completed and placeaadatvice, 6 FlexRigs transferred to the
International Land segment and 9 older conventidgalremoved from service. Subsequent to SepteBhe2014 two FlexRigs were
transferred to the International Land segment arektadditional FlexRigs are expected to be traredfeduring 2015.

Subsequent to September 30, 2014, we agedume had entered into agreements with two cus®toéuild and operate six new
FlexRigs. As of November 13, 2014, 41 announcegHlgs remained to be delivered.

Depreciation includes charges for aband@wrdpment of $21.5 million and $8.2 million in 2Dand 2013, respectively. Included in
abandonments in 2014 is the decommission of ningettional rigs and spare equipment for drillingsrilncluded in abandonments in 2013 is
the decommission of two conventional rigs. Exclgdiine abandonment amounts, depreciation in 20¥éased 13 percent from 2013 due to
the increase in available rigs. As a result ofrtbes FlexRigs added in fiscal 2014 and additiorgd Echeduled for completion in fiscal 2015,
we anticipate depreciation expense to continuadmease in fiscal 2015.

At September 30, 2014, 294 out of 329 exgstigs in the U.S. Land segment were generativgmue. Of the 294 rigs generating revel
176 were under fixed-term contracts, and 118 wexking in the spot market. At November 13, 2014, tlumber of existing rigs under fixed-
term contracts in the segment was 179 and the nuaflsigs working in the spot market increased 18.1

Comparison of the years ended September 30, 2014cdaR013

2014 2013 % Change
(in thousands, except operating statistics

OFFSHORE OPERATIONS

Operating revenue $ 250,81. $ 221,86: 13.(%
Direct operating expens: 158,83« 146,18« 8.7
General and administrative expel 9,85¢ 8,84¢ 11.¢
Depreciatior 12,30( 13,76¢ (20.6)
Segment operating incon $ 69,81¢ $ 53,06 31.€
Operating Statistics

Revenue day 2,92( 2,92( —%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 63,090 $ 61,06¢ 3.2
Average rig expense per d $ 37,65 $ 37,65 —
Average rig margin per de $ 2544: $ 23,41t 8.7
Number of rigs at end of peric 9 9 —
Rig utilization 89% 8% —

Operating statistics for per day revenue, expemskraargin do not include reimbursements of "oupadket” expenses
$19,007 and $19,701 for 2014 and 2013, respectiVélg operating statistics only include rigs owgdus and exclude
offshore platform management and labor servicereais and currency revaluation expen
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Total revenue and segment operating inconoeir Offshore segment increased in 2014 from 3@¥rBarily due to our offshore
management contracts. Included in 2013 direct dipgraxpenses is a one-time charge of $6.4 mill@ated to an incident in the Gulf of
Mexico more fully discussed in Note 13 to the Cdigsded Financial Statements. At September 30, 20142013, eight of our nine rigs were
working. The ninth rig commenced operations duthmgfirst fiscal quarter of 2015.

Comparison of the years ended September 30, 2014cdaR013

2014 2013 % Change
(in thousands, except operating statistics

INTERNATIONAL LAND OPERATIONS

Operating revenue $ 355,53. $ 366,84: (3.)%
Direct operating expens 274,89: 282,33! (2.6)
General and administrative expel 4,28¢ 3,911 9.7
Depreciatior 39,93: 36,00( 10.¢
Segment operating incon $ 36,417 $ 44,59 (18.9)
Operating Statistics

Revenue day 8,30: 8,701 (4.©%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 37,117 $ 37,24¢ (0.9
Average rig expense per d $ 27,276 $ 27,58¢ ()
Average rig margin per de $ 983 $ 9,65 1.6
Number of rigs at end of peric 36 29 24.1
Rig utilization 76% 82% (7.9

Operating statistics for per day revenue, expemskraargin do not include reimbursements of "oupaéket” expenses
$47,350 and $42,542 for 2014 and 2013, respectivdfo excluded are the effects of currency revtdnaexpense

The International Land segment had opegatinome of $36.4 million for 2014 compared to $4dhillion for 2013. Included in
International land revenues in 2013 is approxinya$él.3 million related to early termination fees.

Excluding the $5.3 million early terminatiee in 2013, segment operating income in 2014edesed from 2013 with revenue days
decreasing 4.6 percent and rig utilization decrepsd 76 percent in 2014 from 82 percent in 2018 tal number of rigs increased to 36 at
September 30, 2014 from 29 at September 30, 2013.

During 2014, the total number of rigs irased by seven due to one new 3,000 horsepower ik€rily added to the fleet and six FlexR
transferred from the U.S. Land segment. As of Ndweni3, 2014, an additional two rigs were transféfrom the U.S. Land segment with
another three expected to transfer during 20150fAlhe additional rigs added to the segment id2Btough November 13, 2014 and those
expected to be added in 2015 are under fixed-temracts.
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Comparison of the years ended September 30, 2013012

2013 2012 % Change
(in thousands, except operating statistics

U.S. LAND OPERATIONS

Operating revenue $ 2,785,44' $ 2,678,47 4.(%
Direct operating expens: 1,424,711 1,407,98! 1.2
General and administrative expel 37,07( 30,79¢ 20.2
Depreciatior 391,07: 332,72: 17.5
Segment operating incon $ 932,59. $ 906,96¢ 2.6
Operating Statistics

Revenue day 88,62( 86,34( 2.6%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 28,38, $ 27,73 2.2
Average rig expense per d $ 13,02¢ $ 13,02 0.1
Average rig margin per de $ 15351 $ 14,71 4.3
Number of rigs at end of peric 30z 282 7.1
Rig utilization 82% 8%% (7.9

Operating statistics for per day revenue, expemskraargin do not include reimbursements of "oupadket” expenses
$270,223 and $283,640 for 2013 and 2012, respédygtive

Rig utilization excludes two FlexRigs completed eratly for delivery at September 30, 2C

Operating income in the U.S. Land segmeergiased to $932.6 million in 2013 from $907.0 imnillin 2012. Included in U.S. land
revenues for 2013 is approximately $19.0 millioonfrearly termination and revenue from customersrguested delivery delays for new
FlexRigs. Included in U.S. land revenues for 2Gldpproximately $10.1 million from early terminaticevenue. Excluding early termination
related revenue and customer requested deliveay devenue for new FlexRigs, the average revenudaefor 2013 increased by $548 to
$28,168 from $27,620 in 2012, primarily attributbd increases in dayrates early in 2012, which gtabilized and only slightly declined in
2013.

Direct operating expenses as a percentagyenue were 51 percent in 2013 and 53 perce2d1r2.

Rig utilization decreased to 82 percer20d3 from 89 percent in 2012. The total numbeligs at September 30, 2013 was 302 compare
to 282 rigs at September 30, 2012. The net incrisatige to 20 new FlexRigs completed and placesdstvice, two new FlexRigs completed
and ready for delivery and two older conventiotigs removed from service.

Depreciation includes charges for aband@wrdpment of $8.2 million and $15.9 million in 20&nd 2012, respectively. Included in
abandonments is the removal of two conventional ing2013 and seven mechanical highly mobile mga0d12. Excluding the abandonment
amounts, depreciation in 2013 increased 21 pefoemt2012 due to the increase in available rigs.
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Comparison of the years ended September 30, 2013012

2013 2012 % Change
(in thousands, except operating statistics

OFFSHORE OPERATIONS

Operating revenue $ 221,86 $ 189,08t 17.5%
Direct operating expens: 146,18« 126,47( 15.€
General and administrative expel 8,84¢ 7,38¢ 19.¢
Depreciatior 13,76¢ 13,45¢ 2.2
Segment operating incon $ 53,060 $ 41,77¢ 27.C
Operating Statistics

Revenue day 2,92( 2,62¢ 11.2%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 61,06¢ $ 53,92 13.2
Average rig expense per d $ 37,65 $ 33,05 13.¢
Average rig margin per de $ 23,41 $ 20,87¢ 12.2
Number of rigs at end of peric 9 9 —
Rig utilization 8% 7% 12.7

Operating statistics for per day revenue, expemskraargin do not include reimbursements of "oupadket” expenses
$19,701 and $18,346 for 2013 and 2012, respectiVélg operating statistics only include rigs owgdus and exclude
offshore platform management and labor servicereais and currency revaluation expen

Segment operating income in our Offshoggrent increased by 27.0 percent in 2013 from 20@apily due to an increase in revenue
days and an increase in dayrates reduced by aroeezharge of $6.4 million related to an incidenthe Gulf of Mexico more fully discussed
in Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Stateméilrtie increase in revenue days is primarily dugvtorigs working all of 2013 compared to
working only a portion of 2012, offset partially lythird rig completing its contract in 2012 andhigedle during 2013.

Comparison of the years ended September 30, 2013da2012

2013 2012 % Change
(in thousands, except operating statistics

INTERNATIONAL LAND OPERATIONS

Operating revenue $ 366,84: $ 270,02° 35.%%
Direct operating expens: 282,33! 215,64 30.¢
General and administrative expel 3,911 3,31¢ 17.¢
Depreciatior 36,00( 30,70: 17.c
Segment operating incon $ 4459 $ 20,36¢ 119.(
Operating Statistics

Revenue day 8,707 7,34: 18.€%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 37,24¢ $ 32,99¢ 12.¢
Average rig expense per d $ 27,58¢ $ 25,52« 8.1
Average rig margin per dz $ 9651 $ 7,47« 29.2
Number of rigs at end of peric 29 29 —
Rig utilization 82% 77% 6.5

Operating statistics for per day revenue, expemsgkraargin do not include reimbursements of "oupaéket" expenses
$42,542 and $27,720 for 2013 and 2012, respectivddo excluded are the effects of currency revidneexpense
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The International Land segment had opegatinome of $44.6 million for 2013 compared to g@illion for 2012. Included in
International land revenues in 2013 is approxinyg$&l.3 million related to early termination fees.

Revenues increased by $96.8 million in 2B@B 2012 in international land operations anduti§jzation increased to 82 percent in 2013
compared to 77 percent in 2012. The total numbeigsfremained constant at 29. The average reveauday for 2013 compared to 2012
increased $4,248 of which $609 is attributableaidyetermination related revenue. The remainingease is primarily due to higher dayrates.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our capital spending was $952.9 millior2014, $809.1 million in 2013 and $1.1 billion in120 Net cash provided from operating
activities was $1.1 billion in 2014, $997.2 milliam2013 and $1.0 billion in 2012. Our 2015 cap#aénding is currently estimated to be
between $1.4 billion and $1.7 billion, dependingmarily on drilling market conditions and incremahtiemand for additional new FlexRigs
during the fiscal year. This estimate includes eted new builds, capital maintenance requireméubsilars and other special projects.

Historically, we have financed operationisnarily through internally generated cash flows periods when internally generated cash
flows are not sufficient to meet liquidity needs will either borrow from available credit souragsve may sell portfolio securities. Likewise,
if we are generating excess cash flows, we maysinmeshort-term money market securities.

We manage a portfolio of marketable semsithat, at the close of fiscal 2014, had a falue of $222.3 million consisting of Atwood
Oceanics, Inc. and Schlumberger, Ltd. The valub®portfolio is subject to fluctuation in the matlkand may vary considerably over time.
The portfolio is recorded at fair value on our Inaka sheet.

During 2014, we had cash proceeds frons#he of available-for-sale securities of $49.2inill During 2013, we had cash proceeds fron
the sale of investment securities of $232.2 miliieeluding $214.1 from the sale of marketable ggaitailable-for-sale securities and
$18.1 million from the sale of three limited parst@ps. We did not sell any portfolio securitieDi 2.

Our proceeds from asset sales totaled $80l8n in 2014, $28.0 million in 2013 and $39.9llfon in 2012. Income from asset sales in
2014 totaled $19.6 million, $18.9 million in 2018c$19.2 million in 2012. In each year we had saefedd or damaged rig equipment and «
pipe used in the ordinary course of business.

The Company has authorization from the BadrDirectors for the repurchase of up to fourlimil common shares in any calendar year.
The repurchases may be made using our cash anégaistalents or other available sources. Duringpti®012, we purchased 1,747,819
common shares at an aggregate cost of $77.6 milibich are held as treasury shares. We had ndvases of common shares in fiscal 2014
and 2013. Subsequent to September 30, 2014, whgned 414,992 common shares at an aggregate ck&2.8fmillion, which will be held ¢
treasury shares.

During 2014, we increased our dividendsl praiboth the second fiscal quarter and the fofisdal quarter, representing the 42nd
consecutive year of dividend increases. We paittidhds of $2.438 per share, or a total of $264IMamiduring 2014 compared to $0.87 per
share or $93.1 million paid in 2013 and $0.28 {hars or $30.0 million paid in 2012.

We have $80 million of senior unsecure@dbrate notes outstanding at September 30, 2014niare over a period from July 2015 to
July 2016. Interest on the notes is paid semi-dhynbased on an annual rate of 6.10 percent. Anpriatipal repayments of $40 million are
due July 2015 and July 2016. We have complied withfinancial covenants which require us to mamtafunded leverage ratio of less than
55 percent and an interest coverage ratio (asetfiof not less than 2.50 to 1.00.
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We have a $300 million unsecured revohgregdit facility that will mature May 25, 2017. Theedit facility has $100 million available to
use for letters of credit. The majority of borroggnunder the facility would accrue interest ati@ag over the London Interbank Offered Rate
(LIBOR). We also pay a commitment fee based oruthesed balance of the facility. Borrowing spreasisvall as commitment fees are
determined according to a scale based on a ratardfotal debt to total capitalization. The spreadr LIBOR ranges from 1.125 percent to
1.75 percent per annum and commitment fees raoge ft5 percent to .35 percent per annum. Basediodat to total capitalization on
September 30, 2014, the spread over LIBOR and ctomeni fees would be 1.125 percent and .15 peroespectively. Financial covenants in
the facility require us to maintain a funded leygraatio (as defined) of less than 50 percent anidtarest coverage ratio (as defined) of not
less than 3.00 to 1.00. The credit facility consaalditional terms, conditions, restrictions, aodenants that we believe are usual and
customary in unsecured debt arrangements for colegpahsimilar size and credit quality. As of Sepber 30, 2014, there were no borrowil
but there were three letters of credit outstandintpe amount of $34.2 million. At September 30120we had $265.8 million available to
borrow under our $300 million unsecured creditlfgci

At September 30, 2014, we had two lettégedit outstanding, totaling $12 million that wessued to support international operations.
These letters of credit were issued separately fran$300 million credit facility so they do notlitee the available borrowing capacity
discussed in the previous paragraph.

The applicable agreements for all of theesured debt described above contain additionalsteronditions and restrictions that we
believe are usual and customary in unsecured debtgements for companies that are similar in aimb credit quality. At September 30, 2C
we were in compliance with all debt covenants.

At September 30, 2014, we had 193 exigiiggywith fixed term contracts with original termrations ranging from six months to seven
years, with some expiring in fiscal 2015. The caats provide for termination at the election of tustomer, with an early termination paymn
to be paid if a contract is terminated prior to &x@iration of the fixed term. While most of ourstemers are primarily major oil companies
large independent oil companies, a risk existsahatstomer, especially a smaller independentoilgany, may become unable to meet its
obligations and may exercise its early terminagtection in the future and not be able to pay #rdydermination fee. Although not expecte
this time, our future revenue and operating resudtdd be negatively impacted if this were to happe

Our operating cash requirements, schedigbd repayments, any stock repurchases and estiroapital expenditures, including our rig
construction program, for fiscal 2015 are expettelle funded through current cash, cash to be geovirom operating activities and, possi
from additional borrowings and sales of availaldedale securities.

The current ratio was 2.5 at Septembef804 and 2.8 at September 30, 2013. The long-tebtd total capitalization ratio, including
the current portion of long-term debt, was two petat September 30, 2014 compared to four peetedeptember 30, 2013.

STOCK PORTFOLIO HELD

SeEtember 30, 201 Number of Shares Cost Basis Market Value
(in thousands, except share amount:
Atwood Oceanics, Inc 4,000,000 $ 60,74¢ $ 174,76(
Schlumberger, Ltd 467,50( 3,71 47,54(
Total $ 64,46: $  222,30(
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Material Commitments

We have no off balance sheet arrangeméhés than operating leases discussed below. Ourazinal obligations as of September 30,
2014, are summarized in the table below in thousand

Payments due by yea

After

Contractual Obligations Total 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2019
Long-term debt anc

estimated

interest (a $ 8637 $ 44,40¢ $ 419 $ — $ — $ — $ —
Operating leases (| 38,47¢ 7,65¢ 5,16¢ 4,48¢ 3,22( 3,21: 14,73:
Purchase

obligations (b 412 ,94¢ 412 ,94¢ — — — — —
Total contractual

obligations $ 537,79¢ $ 465,010 $ 47,13( $ 4,48¢ $ 3,22( $ 3,21: $ 14,73:

(a) Interest on fixed-rate debt was estimated baseprimtipal maturities. See Note 3 "Debt" to our Colidated Financial
Statements.
(b) See Note 13 "Commitments and Contingencies" t&Couasolidated Financial Statemen

The above table does not include obligatimm our pension plan or amounts recorded for tatetax positions.

In 2014, we contributed $7.3 million to thension plan. Based on current information avélédlom plan actuaries, we estimate
contributing at least $0.1 million in 2015 to még minimum contribution required by law. Additidrantributions may be made in 2015 to
fund unexpected distributions in lieu of liquidaipension assets. Future contributions beyond 204 8lifficult to estimate due to multiple
variables involved.

At September 30, 2014, we had $17.2 milliecorded for uncertain tax positions and relateerest and penalties. However, the timing o
such payments to the respective taxing authorti@sot be estimated at this time. Income taxesare fully described in Note 4 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The Consolidated Financial Statementsrapacted by the accounting policies used and bgstimates and assumptions made by
management during their preparation. These estinzatd assumptions are evaluated on an on-going. lizsdimates are based on historical
experience and on various other assumptions thaselieve to be reasonable under the circumstattoesesults of which form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of asmad liabilities that are not readily apparentrfrather sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates under different assumptiorsditions. The following is a discussion of thigical accounting policies and estimates
used in our financial statements. Other signifi@a@ounting policies are summarized in Note 1 ¢éoGbnsolidated Financial Statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment  Property, plant and equipment, including rerswaad betterments, are stated at cost, while erémic
and repairs are expensed as incurred. The inexpsinse applicable to the construction of qualgyassets is capitalized as a component of tf
cost of such assets. We account for the depreciafiproperty, plant and equipment using the shialime method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets considering the estimated galvalue of the property, plant and equipment. Bloghestimated useful lives and salvage
values require the use of management estimatemiCerents, such as unforeseen changes in opesatechnology or market conditions,
could materially affect our estimates and assumptielated to depreciation. Management believegtieae estimates have been materially
accurate in the past. For the years presentedsimeport, no significant changes were made tal#terminations of useful lives or salvage
values. Upon
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retirement or other disposal of fixed assets, th&t and related accumulated depreciation are rednoee the respective accounts and any
gains or losses are recorded in the results ofatipes.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets Management assesses the potential impairmentrdbng-lived assets whenever events or chamges
conditions indicate that the carrying value of ased may not be recoverable. Changes that couldgirsuch an assessment may include
equipment obsolescence, changes in the market adefoaa specific asset, periods of relatively logvutilization, declining revenue per day,
declining cash margin per day, completion of specibntracts and/or overall changes in general starknditions. If a review of the lordiyed
assets indicates that the carrying value of cedfithese assets is more than the estimated unatissb future cash flows, an impairment ch:
is made to adjust the carrying value to the esth&ir value of the asset. The fair value of ilrigs is determined based upon estimated
discounted future cash flows or estimated fair @alfiavailable. Cash flows are estimated by mamesge considering factors such as
prospective market demand, recent changes ingiqhtdogy and its effect on each rig's marketabibtyy cash investment required to make a
rig marketable, suitability of rig size and makeagexisting platforms, and competitive dynamicduding utilization. Fair value is estimatec
applicable, considering factors such as recent etades of rigs of other companies and our owessaf rigs, appraisals and other factors. Th
use of different assumptions could increase oredese the estimated fair value of assets and chetdfbre affect any impairment
measurement.

Self-Insurance Accruals  We self-insure a significant portion of expeclesses relating to worker's compensation, getieflity,
employer's liability and automobile liability. Geadly, deductibles range from $1 million to $3 riah per occurrence depending on the
coverage and whether a claim occurs outside adénsi the United States. Insurance is purchasedd®eductibles to reduce our exposure to
catastrophic events. Estimates are recorded farried outstanding liabilities for worker's comperwa general liability claims and for claims
that are incurred but not reported. Estimates asedb on adjusters’ estimates, historic experiemtetatistical methods that we believe are
reliable. Nonetheless, insurance estimates inated@in assumptions and management judgments iegdhe frequency and severity of
claims, claim development and settlement practidesnticipated changes in these factors may prochaterially different amounts of expel
that would be reported under these programs.

Our wholly-owned captive insurance compfingnces a significant portion of the physical dgmask on compangwned drilling rigs a
well as international casualty deductibles. With éxception of "named wind storm" risk in the GafliMexico, we insure rig and related
equipment at values that approximate the currgiiacement cost on the inception date of the poli¢g.selfinsure a $5 million per occurren
deductible, as well as 20 percent of the estimagpthicement cost of offshore rigs and 30 percetti@estimated replacement cost for land
and equipment. We have two insurance policies @ogeaight offshore platform rigs for "named windstd risk in the Gulf of Mexico. The
first policy covers four rigs and has a $75 millaggregate insurance limit over a $3 million dethlet The second policy covers four rigs and
has a $40 million aggregate limit and a $3.5 milldeductible. Our remaining offshore platform gdnsured by our customer. We maintain
certain other insurance coverage with deductitddsigh as $2.5 million. Excess insurance is pureth@ver these coverage amounts to limit
our exposure to catastrophic claims, but therebeano assurance that such coverage will respobd adequate in all circumstances. Retainec
losses are estimated and accrued based upon onaiest of the aggregate liability for claims inadrand, using adjuster's estimates, our
historical loss experience or estimation methods dne believed to be reliable. Nonetheless, imagr&stimates include certain assumptions
and management judgments regarding the frequerttgearerity of claims, claim development and setietypractices. Unanticipated changes
in these factors may produce materially differeanbants of expense and related liabilities. We seliéire a number of other risks including |
of earnings and business interruption.
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Pension Costs and Obligations  Our pension benefit costs and obligations apmeddent on various actuarial assumptions. We make
assumptions relating to discount rates and expe&etadch on plan assets. Our discount rate is détedrby matching projected cash
distributions with the appropriate corporate borelds in a yield curve analysis. The discount s lowered to 4.32 percent from
4.80 percent as of September 30, 2014 to refleant@bs in the market conditions for high-qualityefiincome investments. The expected
return on plan assets is determined based on icstortfolio results and future expectationsates of return. Actual results that differ from
estimated assumptions are accumulated and amoaizzdhe estimated future working life of the pfaarticipants and could therefore affect
the expense recognized and obligations in futurege. As of September 30, 2006, the Pension PEmfrezen and benefit accruals were
discontinued. As a result, the rate of compensatiorease assumption has been eliminated fromeygariods. We anticipate pension expense
to decrease approximately $1.3 million in 2015 fr2014.

Stock-Based Compensation  Historically, we have granted stock-based aw#odkey employees and non-employee directors aopa
their compensation. We estimate the fair valudidadtack option awards as of the date of grant jaylying the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model. The application of this valuation model ilmas assumptions, some of which are judgmentahégidy sensitive. These assumptions
include, among others, the expected stock pricatiit}, the expected life of the stock options dhd risk-free interest rate. Expected
volatilities were estimated using the historicalatitity of our stock based upon the expected tefrthe option. The expected term of the op
was derived from historical data and representpéned of time that options are estimated to bistanding. The risk-free interest rate for
periods within the estimated life of the option viased on the U.S. Treasury Strip rate in effeti@time of the grant. The fair value of each
award is amortized on a straight-line basis ovenisting period for awards granted to employeeskShased awards granted to non-
employee directors are expensed immediately upamtgr

The fair value of restricted stock awakldétermined based on the closing price of our comstock on the date of grant. We amortize
the fair value of restricted stock awards to congaéinn expense on a straight-line basis over teéngeperiod. At September 30, 2014,
unrecognized compensation cost related to unvesstdcted stock was $20.0 million. The cost iseotpd to be recognized over a weighted-
average period of 2.3 years.

Revenue Recognition  Contract drilling revenues are comprised ofvdak drilling contracts for which the related revexs and expens
are recognized as services are performed and ttiollés reasonably assured. For certain contragseceive payments contractually
designated for the mobilization of rigs and otheltidg equipment. Mobilization payments receivaahd direct costs incurred for the
mobilization, are deferred and recognized oveite¢ne of the related drilling contract. Costs inewdrto relocate rigs and other drilling
equipment to areas in which a contract has not beeured are expensed as incurred. Reimburseneeeised for out-of-pocket expenses are
recorded as both revenues and direct costs. Foraoctsithat are terminated prior to the specifexdt early termination payments received by
us are recognized as revenues when all contragigairements are met.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

On October 1, 2013, we adopted Accountitam@ards Update ("ASU") 2013-0Qther Comprehensive IncomASU No. 2013-02
amended Accounting standards Codifications ("ASX2(),Comprehensive Incomeand superseded and replaced ASU 201 RéEgentation
of Comprehensive Incomand ASU 2011-12Comprehensive Incom&he standard did not change the current requiresrfenteporting net
income or other comprehensive income in finandatiesnents. However, the guidance does require ity emprovide enhanced disclosures to
present separately by component reclassificatiohgfoaccumulated other comprehensive income. Toptoon had no impact on the amount
of other comprehensive income reported in the Cladeted Financial Statements.
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In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Starts Board ("FASB") issued ASU No. 2014-8&venue from Contracts with Customers
which supersedes virtually all existing revenueggition guidance. The new standard requires atydatrecognize revenue when it transfers
promised goods or services to customers in an antbanreflects the consideration the entity expéatreceive in exchange for those goods o
services. This update also requires additionalalsice about the nature, amount, timing and uniceytaf revenue and cash flows arising from
customer contracts, including significant judgmearid changes in judgments and assets recognizadcfysts incurred to obtain or fulfill a
contract. The provisions of ASU 2014-09 are effexfor interim and annual periods beginning aftec@mber 15, 2016, and we have the
option of using either a full retrospective or adified retrospective approach when adopting this sgndard. We are currently evaluating the
alternative transition methods and the potenti@ot$ of the adoption of this update on our finahstatements.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk  Our contracts for work in foreign countries geaily provide for payment in U.S. dollars.
However, in Argentina we are paid in Argentine gedthe Argentine branch of one of our sectindsubsidiaries remits U.S. dollars to its |
parent by converting the Argentine pesos into ddiars through the Argentine Foreign Exchange Madnd repatriating the U.S. dollars. In
the future, other contracts or applicable law neguire payments to be made in foreign currenciaseB upon current information, we believe
that our exposure to potential losses from curreasirictions and devaluation in foreign countigeBnmaterial. However, there can be no
assurance that we will not experience in Argentinalsewhere a devaluation of foreign currencyeifym exchange restrictions or other
difficulties repatriating U.S. dollars even if weeaable to negotiate contract provisions designeditigate such risks. In the event of future
payments in foreign currencies and an inabilityineely exchange foreign currencies for U.S. dollars may incur currency devaluation losses
which could have a material adverse impact on asiriess, financial condition and results of opersti

We are not operating in any country thatugently considered highly inflationary, whichdsfined as cumulative inflation rates
exceeding 100 percent in the most recent threeperéwd. All of our foreign operations use the WiSllar as the functional currency and local
currency monetary assets and liabilities are rearedsnto U.S. dollars with gains and losses rasyifrom foreign currency transactions
included in current results of operations. As siifca foreign economy is considered highly inflatémy, there would be no impact on the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Commodity Price Risk  The demand for contract drilling services isidetl from exploration and production companiesnsiig money
to explore and develop drilling prospects in seafctrude oil and natural gas. Their spending igedr by their cash flow and financial
strength, which is affected by trends in crudeaaill natural gas commodity prices. Crude oil praresdetermined by a number of factors
including supply and demand, worldwide economicdittons and geopolitical factors. Crude oil andunat gas prices have historically been
volatile and very difficult to predict. While cumeenergy prices are important contributors to fpasicash flow for customers, expectations
about future prices and price volatility are getignaore important for determining future spendiegels. This volatility can lead many
exploration and production companies to base ttagital spending on much more conservative estenateommaodity prices. As a result,
demand for contract drilling services is not alwpysely a function of the movement of commoditycps.

Credit and Capital Market Risk  In addition, customers may finance their exalimn activities through cash flow from operatiotig
incurrence of debt or the issuance of equity. Aetedoration in the credit and capital marketsexgzerienced in the past, can make it difficult
for customers to obtain funding for their capitakds. A reduction of cash flow resulting from deeti in commodity prices or a reduction of
available financing may result in customer creeéitadilts or reduced demand
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for drilling services which could have a materidVarse effect on our business, financial conditind results of operations.

We attempt to secure favorable prices thinoadvanced ordering and purchasing for drillimga@mponents. While these materials have
generally been available at acceptable pricesgtisano assurance the prices will not vary sigaifity in the future. Any fluctuations in market
conditions causing increased prices in materiatssapplies could have a material adverse effedtitume operating costs.

Interest Rate Risk  Our interest rate risk exposure results prilpdrom short-term rates, mainly LIBOR-based, omrbwings from our
commercial banks. Because all of our debt at Sepe30, 2014 has fixed-rate interest obligatioheréd is no current risk due to interest rate
fluctuation.

The following tables provide information@sSeptember 30, 2014 and 2013 about our inteastrisk sensitive instruments:
INTEREST RATE RISK AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 (dollais in thousands)

After Fair Value
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2019 Total 9/30/14

Fixec-Rate Deb $ 40,00 $ 4000 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 80,00 $ 84,32¢
Average Interes
Rate 6.1% 6.1% —% —% —% —% 6.1%
Variable Rate Dek $ — % — $ — % — 3% — 3 — 3 — 3 —
Average Interes
Rate

INTEREST RATE RISK AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 (dollass in thousands)

After Fair Value
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2018 Total 9/30/13

Fixed-Rate
Debt $ 115,000 $ 40,00 $ 40,00 $ — $ — $ — $ 195,000 $ 205,38t
Average
Interest
Rate 6.5% 6.1% 6.1% —% —% —% 6.3%
Variable Rate
Debt $ — 3 — 3 — $ — % — 3$ — 3 — $ —
Average
Interest
Rate

Equity Price Risk  On September 30, 2014, we had a portfolio ofistes with a total fair value of $222.3 milliomhe total fair value ¢
the portfolio of securities was $305.6 million a&pfember 30, 2013. We make no specific plans tseelrities, but rather sell securities base
on market conditions and other circumstances. Theserities are subject to a wide variety and nurobenarket-related risks that could
substantially reduce or increase the fair valuewfholdings. The portfolio is recorded at fairwealon the balance sheet with changes in
unrealized after-tax value reflected in the eqaeégtion of the balance sheet. At November 13, 20#4total fair value of the remaining
securities had decreased to approximately $184i®miCurrently, the fair value exceeds the cdghe investments. We continually monitor
the fair value of the investments but are unableréalict future market volatility and any poteniiapact to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

ltem 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK

Information required by this item may berid in ltem 1A—"Risk Factors" and in Item 7—"Managmt's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Qitiatite and Qualitative Disclosures About MarkesIRiincluded in this Form 10-K.

43




Table of Contents
Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY D ATA

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfing 45

Consolidated Statements of Income for the YeareB&eptember 30, 2014, 2013 and 2 46
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomthéolears Ended September 30, 2!

2013 and 201. 47
Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 30, 2@l 204 3 48
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' EquitthiiYears Ended September 30, 2014,

2013 and 201 50
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Yeaded September 30, 2014, 2013 and

2012 51
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 52

44




Table of Contents

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying conselitibalance sheets of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. &ptember 30, 2014 and 2013, and the
related consolidated statements of income, compséhe income, shareholders' equity and cash flowsdch of the three years in the period
ended September 30, 2014. These financial statsraemthe responsibility of the Company's managén@am responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based omodits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Slgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &andbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and diss in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenewnilhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statementened to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the consolidated financial position of
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. at September 30, 2014 &iB2and the consolidated results of its operatambits cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended September 30, 2014 nfoonity with U.S. generally accepted accountinggiples.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogbatd8oard (United States), Helmerich &
Payne, Inc.'s internal control over financial répay as of September 30, 2014, based on critet@kshed in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imgtions of the Treadway Commission (1992 franrkjvand our report dated
November 26, 2014 expressed an unqualified opithiereon.

/s/Ernst & Young LLF

Tulsa, Oklahoma
November 26, 201
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Consolidated Statements of Income

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

Years Ended September 3C
2014 2013 2012
(in thousands, except per share amount:

Operating revenues

Drilling—U.S. Land $ 3,099,95 $ 2,785,44' $ 2,678,47!
Drilling—Offshore 250,81: 221,86 189,08t
Drilling—International Lanc 355,53: 366,84: 270,02°
Other 13,41( 13,46 14,21«

3,719,70 3,387,611 3,151,80.

Operating costs and expense

Operating costs, excluding depreciat 2,009,911 1,852,76: 1,750,51!
Depreciatior 523,54¢ 455,62: 387,54¢
Research and developm 15,90¢ 15,23¢ 16,06(
General and administrati\ 135,13¢ 126,25( 107,30°
Income from asset sal (19,585 (18,927 (19,227
2,664,92! 2,430,95: 2,242,20:
Operating income from continuing operations 1,054,78 956,66 909,59¢
Other income (expens
Interest and dividend incon 1,58: 1,65: 1,38(
Interest expens (4,659 (6,129 (8,659
Gain on sale of investment securit 45,23« 162,12: —
Other (63€) (9) 254
41,52" 157,63t (7,019
Income from continuing operations before incomess 1,096,31. 1,114,29 902,58
Income tax provisiol 387,54 392,84« 328,97
Income from continuing operatiol 708,76t 721,45: 573,60¢
Income from discontinued operations before income
taxes 2,75¢ 14,70: 7,35k
Income tax provision (benefi 2,80¢ (48E) (81)
Income (loss) from discontinued operati (47) 15,18¢ 7,43¢€
NET INCOME $ 708,71¢ $ 736,63¢ $ 581,04
Basic earnings per common shg
Income from continuing operatiol $ 6.5¢ $ 6.75 $ 5.3t
Income from discontinued operatic $ — $ 014 $ 0.07
Net income $ 6.5¢ $ 6.8¢ $ 5.42
Diluted earnings per common sha
Income from continuing operatiol $ 6.4€ $ 6.6 $ 5.27
Income from discontinued operatic $ — $ 014 $ 0.07
Net income $ 6.4€ $ 6.7¢ $ 5.34
Weighted average shares outstanding (in thousa
Basic 107,80 106,28t 106,81¢
Diluted 109,14: 107,87¢ 108,37

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetegements.
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

Years Ended September 3(

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Net income $ 708,71¢ $ 736,63¢ $ 581,04

Other comprehensive income, net of income ta

Unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on secuitiet of

income taxes of ($15.5) million at September 30,20

$34.2 million at September 30, 2013 and $37.2 omilkt

September 30, 2012 (19,006 46,85: 63,72¢
Reclassification of realized gains in net incomet, af

income taxes of ($17.5) million at September 30,20

and ($60.8) million at September 30, 2( (27,73) (92,547 —
Minimum pension liability adjustments, net of inceraxes

of ($1.5) million at September 30, 2014, $6.6 milliat

September 30, 2013 and $2.4 million at September &

2012 (2,66)) 11,41 4,174
Other comprehensive income (lo (49,404 (34,277) 67,89¢
Comprehensive incorr $ 659,31! $ 702,36: $ 648,94

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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Assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equiv
Accounts receivable,

2013
Inventories
Deferred income taxe
Prepaid expenses an

Consolidated Balance Sheets

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

alel
less reserve of $4,597 in 2011$4,795 in

d ofl

Current assets of discontinued operati

Total current asse
INVESTMENTS
PROPERTY, PLANT A

ND EQUIPMENT, at cos

Contract drilling equipmer

Construction in progr
Real estate propertit
Other

Les«-Accumulated de
Net property, plant

es

preciatic
and equipme

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Other asset
TOTAL ASSETS

September 30

2014

2013

(in thousands)

$ 360,90¢ $ 447,86¢
705,21 621,42(
106,24: 88,86¢
16,51¢ 16,41«
81,271 79,93¢
7,20¢ 3,70¢
1,277,36 1,258,21,
236,64 316,15
7,191,28. 6,493,60!
288,87 153,25;
64,81: 63,54
354,85! 310,51!
7,899,82! 7,020,91!
2,711,27! 2,344,81.
5,188,54 4,676,10.
19,30; 14,35¢

$ 6,721,86. $ 6,264,82

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets (Continued)

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Long-term debt due within one ye
Current liabilities of discontinued operatic
Total current liabilities
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Long-term debi
Deferred income taxe
Other
Noncurrent liabilities of discontinued operatic
Total noncurrent liabilitie:
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, $.10 par value, 160,000,000 shart®azed,
110,508,605 and 108,738,577 shares issued as tHrisiagr 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively, and 108,232,284 afi¢716,970
shares outstanding as of September 30, 2014 arg] 201
respectively
Preferred stock, no par value, 1,000,000 sharé®ered, no share
issued
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive incc

Less treasury stock, 2,276,321 shares in 2014 & 507 shares
2013, at cos
Total shareholders' equi
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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September 30

2014

2013

(in thousands, except share dat

and per share amounts’

182,03 $ 144,37¢
282,27t 189,68
40,00( 115,00(
3,21 3,21(
507,52 452,27:
40,00( 80,00(
1,215,25! 1,222,98.
64,11( 65,35
3,98¢ 49t
1,323,35! 1,368,82
11,051 10,87
383,97: 288,75¢
4,525,79°  4,102,66
83,12¢ 132,53(
5,003,941  4,534,82!
112,96¢ 91,09¢
4,890,97  4,443,72

$ 6,721,86: $ 6,264,82
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity

Common Stock

Shares

Amount

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss) Shares

Treasury Stock

Amount Total

Balance,
September 3(
2011

Comprehensive
Income:

Net income

Other
comprehens
income

Dividends
declared ($.2¢
per share

Exercise of
stock options

Tax benefit of
stock-based
awards,
including
excess tax
benefits of
$3.6 million

Stock issued fo
vested
restricted
stock, net of
shares
withheld for
employee
taxes

Repurchase of
common stocl

Stock-based
compensatiol

31¢

41

32

4

(in thousands, except per share amount:

5,39¢

4,34(

(2,485

18,07¢

107,240 $10,72¢ $210,90¢ $2,954,21( $

581,04!

(29,96()

98,90¢

67,89¢

47

(51)

1,74¢

157 $ (4,704 $3,270,04

581,04!

67,89¢

(29,96()

(2,757)  2,67¢

4,34(

967 (1,519

(77,610 (77,610

18,07¢

Balance,
September 3(
2012

Comprehensive
Income:

Net income

Other
comprehens
loss

Dividends
declared
($1.30 per
share)

Exercise of
stock options

Tax benefit of
stock-based
awards

107,59¢

1,05i

Stock issued fo
vested
restricted
stock, net of
shares

10,76(

10¢€

236,24(

21,74¢

10,727

3,505,29!

736,63

(139,27)

166,80° 1,901

(34,277

162

(84,104 3,834,99:

736,63¢

(34,277

(139,27)

(8,53F) 13,31

10,721



withheld for
employee
taxes
Stock-based
compensatiol
Balance,
September 3(
2013
Comprehensive
Income:
Net income
Other
comprehens
loss
Dividends
declared
($2.625 per
share)
Exercise of
stock options
Tax benefit of
stock-based
awards
Stock issued fol
vested
restricted
stock, net of
shares
withheld for
employee
taxes
Stock-based
compensatiol
Balance,
September 3(
2014

83 8 (3,220 (41) 1,541 (1,679
23,27 23,27

108,73¢ 10,87 288,75( 4,102,66;  132,53( 2,02: (91,099 4,443,72
708,71 708,71

(49,409 (49,409

(285,58 (285,58

1,617 161 41,91 21€ (18,82)  23,25(
26,61¢ 26,61¢

157 16 (16) 38 (3,049 (3,049
26,70: 26,70

110,50¢ $11,05: $383,97: $4,525,79 $

83,12¢ 2,27¢ $(112,96$4,890,97

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income
Adjustment for (income) loss from discontinued
operations
Income from continuing operatiol
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigen
by operating activities
Depreciatior
Provision for (recovery of) bad de
Stocl-based compensatic
Pension settlement char
Gain on sale of investment securit
Income from asset sal
Deferred income tax expen
Other
Change in assets and liabiliti¢
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and otl
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Deferred income taxe
Other noncurrent liabilitie
Net cash provided by operating activities from amninhg
operations
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activitiem
discontinued operatior
Net cash provided by operating activit

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Capital expenditure

Proceeds from asset sa

Proceeds from sale of investme

Net cash used in investing activities from contirgui
operations

Net cash provided by investing activities from
discontinued operatior

Net cash used in investing activiti

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Payments on lor-term debt
Proceeds from line of crec
Payments on line of crec
Repurchase of common stc
Dividends paic
Exercise of stock optior
Tax withholdings related to net share settlemefits o
restricted stocl
Excess tax benefit from stc-based compensatic
Net cash used in financing activiti

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe

Years Ended September 3C

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

$ 708,71¢ $ 736,63¢ $ 581,04!
47 (15,186 (7,436
708,76t 721,45! 573,60¢
523,54 455,62: 387,54¢
(200) 3,87¢ 20E
26,70: 23,27 18,07¢
1,37¢ — —
(45,23) (162,12) —
(19,58 (18,929 (19,229
27,124 29,55% 196,93:
2 2,49( —
(83,594 (4,806 (160,159
(17,379 (12,289 (22,170)
(6,287 5,73( (27,759
(21,08:) (52,076 54,90¢
35,84¢ 24,25¢ 19t
(784 (1,679 (180)
(10,650  (17,37)) (1,597)
1,118,57. 996,99¢ 1,000,399
(47) 18¢€ (64)
1,118,52 997,18! 1,000,33.
(952,89) (809,06() (1,097,68)
30,77( 28,02¢ 39,89
49,20¢ 232,22: —
(872,91) (548,819 (1,057,78)
— 15,00( 7,50(
(872,91) (533,819 (1,050,28)
(115,000 (40,000 (115,000
— — 20,00(
— — (20,000)
— — (77,610
(264,38() (93,059 (30,049
23,25( 13,31; 2,67:
(3,049 (1,677) (1,519
26,61¢ 9,82( 3,30:
(332,569 (111,59)  (218,19)
(86,959  351,77: (268,15))
447 ,86! 96,09¢ 364,24¢
$ 360,90¢ $ 447,86¢ $ 96,09t

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements idelthe accounts of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. an@/ftslly-owned subsidiaries. Fiscal years of
our foreign operations end on August 31 to fad#iteeporting of consolidated results. There wersignificant intervening events that
materially affected the financial statements.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

We classified our former Venezuelan operatis a discontinued operation in the third quartdiscal 2010, as more fully described in
Note 2. Unless indicated otherwise, the informatiothe Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemeaigtes only to our continuing operatio

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The functional currency for all our foreigperations is the U.S. dollar. Nonmonetary assedsliabilities are translated at historical rates
and monetary assets and liabilities are transkatectichange rates in effect at the end of the gehiwome statement accounts are translated &
average rates for the year. Gains and losses feamasurement of foreign currency financial statésnand foreign currency translations into
U.S. dollars are included in direct operating costsluded in direct operating costs are aggrefgatign currency remeasurement and a
transaction loss of $0.8 million in fiscal 2014 arehsaction gains of $0.7 million and $0.3 milliorfiscal 2013 and 2012, respectively.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of our financial statemémtsonformity with accounting principles generadigcepted in the United States of America
("GAAP") requires management to make estimatesaasdmptions that affect reported amounts of aasetdiabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effitencial statements, and the reported amountsvehues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those psttes.

RECENTLY ADOPTED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In October 2013, we adopted Accounting &ads Update ("ASU") 2013-00ther Comprehensive IncomASU 2013-02 amended
Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 2Z0omprehensive Incomend superseded and replaced ASU 201 Résentation of
Comprehensive Incomand ASU 2011-12Zomprehensive Incomé& he standard did not change the current requinexfer reporting net
income or other comprehensive income in the firerstatements. However, the guidance does reguiemtty to provide enhanced
disclosures to present separately by componerdgssifications out of accumulated other comprehenisi;tome. The adoption had no impact
on the amount of other comprehensive income repgantthe Consolidated Financial Statements.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash equivalents consist of investmenshort-term, highly liquid securities having origimaaturities of three months or less. The
carrying values of these assets approximate tagivélues. We primarily utilize a cash managensgstem with a series of separate accounts
consisting of lockbox accounts for receiving casincentration accounts, and several "zero-balasiseursement accounts
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued)

for funding payroll and accounts payable. As altesfwour cash management system, checks issu¢dobpresented to the banks for paym
may create negative book cash balances.

RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

We had restricted cash and cash equivatér$30.2 million and $25.7 million at September 3014 and 2013, respectively. The cash is
restricted for the purpose of potential insurare@rts in our wholly-owned captive insurance compadf/the total at September 30, 2014,
$2.0 million is from the initial capitalization dfie captive company and management has electedttict an additional $28.2 million. The
restricted amounts are primarily invested in shema money market securities.

The restricted cash and cash equivalentsedliected in the balance sheet as follows:

September 30
2014 2013
(in thousands)
Prepaid expenses and ot $ 28,24 $ 23,69:
Other asset $ 2,000 $ 2,00C

INVENTORIES AND SUPPLIES

Inventories and supplies are primarily aggiment parts and supplies held for use in odimdyibperations. Inventories and supplies are
valued at the lower of cost (moving average oratr market value.

INVESTMENTS

We maintain investments in equity secusitié certain publicly traded companies. The costemfurities used in determining realized gain:
and losses is based on the average cost basis sétlrity sold.

We regularly review investment securitiesimpairment based on criteria that include thieeixto which the investment's carrying value
exceeds its related fair value, the duration ofnttaeket decline and the financial strength andifipgrospects of the issuer of the security.
Unrealized losses that are other than temporaryeg@gnized in earnings.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stateositless accumulated depreciation. Substantdilfyroperty, plant and equipment are
depreciated using the straight-line method baseati®estimated useful lives of the assets (conthditing equipment, 4-15 years; real estate
buildings and equipment, 10-45 years; and oth@3 gears). Depreciation in the Consolidated Statesnef Income includes abandonments of
$23.0 million, $9.1 million and $16.4 million foistal 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. EffecBeptember 30, 2014, we decommissioned
nine idle conventional rigs. The cost of maintersand repairs is charged to direct operating edste betterments and refurbishments are
capitalized.

We lease office space and equipment foirusperations. Leases are evaluated at inceptian any subsequent material modification
and, depending on the lease terms, are class#iedlzer capital
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued)
leases or operating leases as appropriate undeiBA8Ceases We do not have significant capital leases.
CAPITALIZATION OF INTEREST

We capitalize interest on major projectamty construction. Interest is capitalized basedh@&naverage interest rate on related debt.
Capitalized interest for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2@/A3 $7.7 million, $8.8 million and $12.9 milliorgspectively.

VALUATION OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

We review long-lived assets for impairmetienever events or changes in circumstances imdibat the carrying amount of an asset ma
not be recoverable. Changes that could prompt an@ssessment include a significant decline inmes@r cash margin per day, extended
periods of low rig utilization, changes in markentand for a specific asset, obsolescence, complefispecific contracts and/or overall
general market conditions. If a review of the Idivgd assets indicates that the carrying valuecofain of these assets is more than the
estimated undiscounted future cash flows, an impait charge is made to adjust the carrying valwendo the estimated fair value of the
asset. The fair value of drilling rigs is determidrimased upon estimated discounted future cash fiowstimated fair market value, if available.
Cash flows are estimated by management considixatgrs such as prospective market demand, rebamiges in rig technology and its effect
on each rig's marketability, any cash investmequired to make a rig marketable, suitability of sige and make up to existing platforms, and
competitive dynamics including industry utilizatidrair value is estimated, if applicable, considgfiactors such as recent market sales of rig
of other companies and our own sales of rigs, aggdsaand other factors.

SELF-INSURANCE ACCRUALS
We have accrued a liability for estimatearker's compensation and other casualty claimsiadu
DRILLING REVENUES

Contract drilling revenues are comprisedafwork drilling contracts for which the relatexienues and expenses are recognized as
services are performed and collection is reasoraddyred. For certain contracts, we receive payweamtractually designated for the
mobilization of rigs and other drilling equipmeMobilization payments received, and direct costsiired for the mobilization, are deferred
and recognized on a straight-line basis over tima t# the related drilling contract. Costs incurtedelocate rigs and other drilling equipment
to areas in which a contract has not been secueseixpensed as incurred. Reimbursements receivedifaf-pocket expenses are recorded a
both revenues and direct costs. Reimbursemenfséal 2014, 2013 and 2012 were $328.9 million,Z33nillion and $329.7 million,
respectively. For contracts that are terminatedrpd the specified term, early termination payrserteived by us are recognized as revenue
when all contractual requirements are met.
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HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued)

RENT REVENUES

We enter into leases with tenants in ontaleproperties consisting primarily of retail amdilti-tenant warehouse space. The lease terms
tenants occupying space in the retail centers ardhouse buildings generally range from threerg/éars. Minimum rents are recognized on
a straightline basis over the term of the related leasesr&eeand percentage rents are based on tenaatsséilme. Recoveries from tene
for property taxes and operating expenses are néigadyin other operating revenues in the Consa@iti&tatements of Income. Our rent
revenues are as follows:

Years Ended September 3C

2014 2013 2012

(in thousands)
Minimum rents $ 9,40C $ 9,00¢ $ 8,75i
Overage and percentage re $ 1,09C $ 1,382 $ 1,48t

At September 30, 2014, minimum future reimeome to be received on noncancelable operdgiages was as follows:

Fiscal Year Amount
(in thousands)

2015 $ 8,40¢
2016 6,83¢
2017 5,61¢
2018 4,07
2019 3,00(
Thereaftel 6,352

Total $ 34,29(

Leasehold improvement allowances are dg®thand amortized over the lease term.
At September 30, 2014 and 2013, the cadtaaoumulated depreciation for real estate progevtiere as follows:

September 30

2014 2013

(in thousands)
Real estate properti $ 64,81: $ 63,54
Accumulated depreciatic (42,759 (41,84%)

$ 22,05¢ $ 21,69

INCOME TAXES

Current income tax expense is the amouimtanfime taxes expected to be payable for the cuyesar. Deferred income taxes are compi
using the liability method and are provided ontathporary differences between the financial basisthe tax basis of our assets and liabilities
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HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued)

We provide for uncertain tax positions wiseich tax positions do not meet the recognitioagholds or measurement standards presc
in ASC 740ncome Taxeswhich is more fully discussed in Note 4. Amoufaisuncertain tax positions are adjusted in periwden new
information becomes available or when positionsediiectively settled. We recognize accrued interelstted to unrecognized tax benefits in
interest expense and penalties in other expenbeiGonsolidated Statements of Income.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is computed utgithe two-class method and is calculated basat@meighted-average number of common
shares outstanding during the periods presentéateldiearnings per share is computed using thehiedgaverage number of common and
common equivalent shares outstanding during thegeutilizing the two-class method for stock opsaand nonvested restricted stock.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

We record compensation expense associateagtock options in accordance with ASC 7C®mpensation—Stock Compensation
Compensation expense is determined using a faileviahsed measurement method for all awards grantedmputing the impact, the fair
value of each option is estimated on the date arfitgnased on the Black-Scholes options-pricing thatilezing certain assumptions for a risk
free interest rate, volatility, dividend yield aedpected remaining term of the awards. The assomptised in calculating the fair value of
share-based payment awards represent managenesttssbimates, but these estimates involve inheresgrtainties and the application of
management judgment. Stock-based compensationdgmized on a straight-line basis over the requisgtrvice periods of the stock awards,
which is generally the vesting period. Compensatiximense related to stock options is recordedcasnponent of general and administrative
expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

TREASURY STOCK

Treasury stock purchases are accountadhider the cost method whereby the cost of the eadjstock is recorded as treasury stock.
Gains and losses on the subsequent reissuancaretsire credited or charged to additional pachpital using the average-cost method.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME OR LOSS

Other comprehensive income or loss refergvenues, expenses, gains, and losses thatcérded in comprehensive income or loss but
excluded from net income or loss. We report themmments of other comprehensive income or losspfrigix, by their nature and disclose the
tax effect allocated to each component in the Cloeted Statements of Comprehensive Income.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Starus Board ("FASB") issued ASU No. 2014-8®venue from Contracts with Customers
which supersedes virtually all existing revenuenggition guidance. The new standard requires atydatrecognize revenue when it transfers
promised goods or services to customers in an antbanreflects the consideration the entity expéatreceive in
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HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued)

exchange for those goods or services. This updsdeaequires additional disclosure about the na@mmeount, timing and uncertainty of reve
and cash flows arising from customer contractdutiog significant judgments and changes in judgisi@nd assets recognized from costs
incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. The preiins of ASU 201489 are effective for interim and annual periodsiteigg after December 1
2016, and we have the option of using either aréifospective or a modified retrospective approsicbn adopting this new standard. We are
currently evaluating the alternative transition hogls and the potential effects of the adoptioisf ipdate on our financial statements.

NOTE 2 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Current assets of discontinued operatiomsist of restricted cash to meet remaining curobligations within the country of Venezuela.
Current and noncurrent liabilities consist of mipét and income taxes payable and social obligatéhre in Venezuela.

Expenses incurred for in-country obligati@me reported as discontinued operations. Includésgcal 2013 and 2012 are proceeds from
arbitration, as more fully described in Note 13.

NOTE 3 DEBT

At September 30, 2014 and 2013, we hadn$ilidn and $80 million, respectively, in unseculedg-term debt outstanding at rates and
maturities shown in the following table:

September 30
2014 2013
(in thousands)

Unsecured intermediate debt issued August 15, 2
Series D, due August 15, 2014, 6.5 $ — $ 75,00(
Unsecured senior notes issued July 21, 2

Due July 21, 2014, 6.10' — 40,00(
Due July 21, 2015, 6.10! 40,00( 40,00(
Due July 21, 2016, 6.10' 40,00( 40,00(

$ 80,00 $ 195,00(

Less lonterm debt due within one ye 40,00( 115,00(
Long-term debt $ 40,00 $ 80,00(

The intermediate unsecured debt outstarati®@eptember 30, 2013 matured August 15, 2014vasdaid in full.

We have $80 million senior unsecured fixate notes outstanding at September 30, 2014 thtatrenover a period from July 2015 to July
2016. Interest on the notes is paid semi-annualbel on an annual rate of 6.10 percent. Annuatipahrepayments of $40 million are due
July 2015 and July 2016. We have complied withfaancial covenants which require us to maintaforaded leverage ratio of less than
55 percent and an interest coverage ratio (asetfiof not less than 2.50 to 1.00.

We have a $300 million unsecured revohgredit facility that will mature May 25, 2017. Theedit facility has $100 million available to
use for letters of credit. The majority of borroggnunder the facility would accrue interest ati@ag over the London Interbank Offered Rate
(LIBOR). We also pay a commitment fee based oruthesed balance of the facility. Borrowing spreagisvall as
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HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
NOTE 3 DEBT (Continued)

commitment fees are determined according to a $@ased on a ratio of our total debt to total cdigation. The spread over LIBOR ranges
from 1.125 percent to 1.75 percent per annum anthatment fees range from .15 percent to .35 pengenainnum. Based on our debt to total
capitalization on September 30, 2014, the spread 0BOR and commitment fees would be 1.125 peraant.15 percent, respectively.
Financial covenants in the facility require us taimtain a funded leverage ratio (as defined) of than 50 percent and an interest coverage
ratio (as defined) of not less than 3.00 to 1.0@ @redit facility contains additional terms, cdiatis, restrictions, and covenants that we
believe are usual and customary in unsecured debtgements for companies of similar size and tadility. As of September 30, 2014,
there were no borrowings, but there were threeretf credit outstanding in the amount of $34.Eioni. At September 30, 2014, we had
$265.8 million available to borrow under our $30llion unsecured credit facility.

At September 30, 2014, we had two lettégedit outstanding, totaling $12 million that wassued to support international operations.
These letters of credit were issued separately fran$300 million credit facility so they do notltee the available borrowing capacity
discussed in the previous paragraph.

The applicable agreements for all unsecdedat described in this Note 3 contain additioratts, conditions and restrictions that we
believe are usual and customary in unsecured debtgements for companies that are similar in sk credit quality. At September 30, 2C
we were in compliance with all debt covenants.

At September 30, 2014, aggregate matuGtiésng-term debt are as follows (in thousands):

Years ending September 3(

2015 $ 40,00(
2016 40,00(
$ 80,00(

NOTE 4 INCOME TAXES
The components of the provision for incdanees are as follows:

Years Ended September 3(C
2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Current:
Federal $ 323,38t $ 315,82( $ 108,29
Foreign 15,84 14,55 13,20:
State 21,19° 32,91¢ 10,54.
360,42: 363,28 132,04(

Deferred:
Federal 28,18: 35,53( 196,37:
Foreign (3,265 (1,409 (6,489
State 2,20¢ (4,564) 7,042
27,12¢ 29,55° 196,93:
Total provision $ 387,54¢ $ 392,84: $ 328,97:
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NOTE 4 INCOME TAXES (Continued)
The amounts of domestic and foreign inctx@fre income taxes are as follows:

Years Ended September 3C

2014 2013 2012

(in thousands)
Domestic $ 1,061,000 $ 1,071,433 $ 886,48:
Foreign 35,30¢ 42,86: 16,09¢

$ 1,096,311 $ 1,114,29 $ 902,58(

Deferred income taxes are provided fortémeporary differences between the financial repgrbasis and the tax basis of our assets and
liabilities. Recoverability of any tax assets avalaated and necessary allowances are providedcdinging value of the net deferred tax as
is based on management's judgments using certiimagass and assumptions that we will be able tegda sufficient future taxable income in
certain tax jurisdictions to realize the benefitsuch assets. If these estimates and related asisuns change in the future, additional valua
allowances may be recorded against the deferredssets resulting in additional income tax expémsiee future.

The components of our net deferred taxlitas are as follows:

September 30
2014 2013
(in thousands)

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipme $ 1,187,77. $ 1,161,13.
Available-for-sale securitie 83,78% 117,56
Other 67 55
Total deferred tax liabilitie 1,271,62 1,278,75!
Deferred tax asset
Pension reserve 1,37( 2,14¢
Selfinsurance reserve 10,31: 8,357
Net operating loss and foreign tax credit
carryforwards 48,28! 54,86"
Financial accrual 52,28¢ 48,96
Other 8,33 7,487
Total deferred tax asse 120,58 121,82(
Valuation allowanct 47,69¢ 49,63
Net deferred tax asse 72,88¢ 72,18¢
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ 1,198,741 $ 1,206,56

The change in our net deferred tax assetdiabilities is impacted by foreign currency reasarement.

As of September 30, 2014, we had stated@neign net operating loss carryforwards for inca@re purposes of $7.4 million and
$24.6 million, respectively, and foreign tax credhitryforwards of approximately $49.9 million (ohieh $39.2 million is reflected as a defel
tax asset in our Consolidated Financial Statenyannds to consideration of our valuation allowanedjich will expire
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NOTE 4 INCOME TAXES (Continued)

in fiscal 2015 through 2024. The valuation allowaieprimarily attributable to state and foreign ogerating loss carryforwards of
$0.5 million and $7.9 million, respectively, anddan tax credit carryforwards of $39.2 million whimore likely than not will not be utilized.

Effective income tax rates as compareth¢od.S. Federal income tax rate are as follows:

Years Ended

September 30
2014 2013 2012
U.S. Federal income tax re 35.% 35.(% 35.(%
Effect of foreign taxe 1.2 1.1 0.7
State income taxes, net of federal tax bet 14 1.5 14
U.S. domestic production activiti (2.6) (2.7 (1.2
Other 0.4 (0.2) 0.4
Effective income tax rat 35.4% 35.2% 36.%%

We recognize accrued interest related teaognized tax benefits in interest expense, andlpes in other expense in the Consolidated
Statements of Income. As of September 30, 20142808, we had accrued interest and penalties ofi@8lién and $5.2 million, respectively.

A reconciliation of the change in our grassecognized tax benefits for the fiscal year enSleptember 30, 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

September 30
2014 2013

(in thousands)
Unrecognized tax benefits at Octobe $ 8,12¢ $ 8,43¢
Gross decreas—tax positions in prior perioc (4) (919
Gross increas—tax positions in prior perioc 4,29: 1,89¢
Gross decreas—current period effect of tax positio (83¢€) (437)
Gross increas—current period effect of tax positio 4 147
Expiration of statute of limitations for assessnst (539 (562)
Settlement: (30€) (43€)
Unrecognized tax benefits at September $ 10,747 $ 8,12¢

As of September 30, 2014 and Septembe2@IB, our liability for unrecognized tax benefitsludes $2.9 million and $0.1 million,
respectively, of unrecognized tax benefits relatediscontinued operations that, if recognized, ot affect the effective tax rate. The
remaining unrecognized tax benefit would affecteffective tax rate if recognized. The liabilities unrecognized tax benefits and related
interest and penalties are included in other naeodtiabilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheets

For the next 12 months, we cannot predittt eertainty whether we will achieve ultimate riegmn of any uncertain tax position
associated with our international operations tloala result in increases or decreases of our ugrézed tax benefits. However, we believe
reasonably possible that the reserve for uncetdaipositions may increase by approximately $8 ianito $11.2 million
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during the next 12 months due to an internatioretten. We provided for uncertain tax positions 8f3bmillion related to discontinued
operations during the twelve months ended SepteB8he2014.

We file a consolidated U.S. federal incamrereturn, as well as income tax returns in vagistates and foreign jurisdictions. The tax y
that remain open to examination by U.S. federalstat jurisdictions include fiscal 2010 through 20with the exception of jurisdictions
currently under audit. Audits in foreign jurisdimtis are generally complete through fiscal 2001.

On September 13, 2013, the IRS issued fawllations providing guidance on the treatmergrobunts paid to acquire, produce or
improve tangible property and proposed regulatpmosiding guidance on the dispositions of such prop The implementation date for these
regulations is tax years beginning on or after dant, 2014. Changes for tax treatment electedstyr wequired by the regulations will
generally be effective prospectively; however, iempéntation of many of the regulations' provisioris nequire a calculation of the cumulative
effect of the changes on prior years, and it iseetgd that such amount will have to be includetthéndetermination of our taxable income in
fiscal 2015, or possibly over a four-year periodibaing in fiscal 2015. Since the changes will efféne timing for deducting expenditures for
tax purposes, the impact of implementation wilre#ected in the amount of income taxes payableceivable, cash flows from operations
and deferred taxes beginning in fiscal 2015, withnet tax provision effect. At this time we estim#te impact of implementing the regulati
to be immaterial to the deferred tax balances lforears presented.

NOTE 5 SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

On September 30, 2014, we had 108,232,a8tamding preferred stock purchase rights ("RIghgarsuant to the terms of the Rights
Agreement dated January 8, 1996, as amended by dmet No. 1 dated December 8, 2005. As adjustethétwo-for-one stock splits in
fiscal 1998 and fiscal 2006, and as long as th&tRigre not separately transferable, one-half Rifathes to each share of our common stoc
Under the terms of the Rights Agreement each Ragtitles the holder thereof to purchase one full emnsisting of one one-thousandth of a
share of Series A Junior Participating PreferreatiS("Preferred Stock"), without par value, at @@mf $250 per unit. The exercise price and
the number of units of Preferred Stock issuablexarcise of the Rights are subject to adjustmeneitain cases to prevent dilution. The Ri
will be attached to the common stock certificated are not exercisable or transferable apart flsmcbommon stock, until ten business days
after a person acquires 15 percent or more of th&anding common stock or ten business days failpwhe commencement of a tender offer
or exchange offer that would result in a personiogii5 percent or more of the outstanding commookstin that event, each holder of a
Right (other than the acquiring person) shall hifreeright to receive, upon exercise of the Righimmon stock of the Company having a value
equal to two times the exercise price of the Rifghthe event we are acquired in a merger or aed#ier business combination transactions
(including one in which we are the surviving comgarn), or more than 50 percent of our assets imirggpower is sold or transferred, each
holder of a Right shall have the right to receiyaon exercise of the Right, common stock of thauaitty company having a value equal to 1
times the exercise price of the Right. The Rightésradeemable under certain circumstances at $&ORight and will expire, unless earlier
redeemed, on January 31, 2016.

The Company has authorization from the BadrDirectors for the repurchase of up to fourlimil common shares in any calendar year.
The repurchases may be made using our cash and cash
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NOTE 5 SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (Continued)

equivalents or other available sources. Duringgfi2®12, we purchased 1,747,819 common sharesagjgargate cost of $77.6 million, which
are held as treasury shares. We had no purchasesnofion shares in fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2014. Syilxsnt to September 30, 2014, we
purchased 414,992 common shares at an aggregatef &&2.3 million, which will be held as treaswsiyares.

ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Components of accumulated other comprefiemscome were as follows:

September 30
2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Pre-tax amounts
Unrecognized appreciation on securii  $ 157,83t $ 237,21: $ 304,39t
Unrecognized actuarial lo: (23,40%) (19,210 (37,179
$ 134,43 $ 218,00 $ 267,22

After-tax amounts
Unrecognized appreciation on securii  $ 97,41¢ $ 144,16. $ 189,85:
Unrecognized actuarial lo: (14,297) (11,637 (23,04

$ 83,12¢ $ 132,53( $ 166,80

The following is a summary of the changeaécumulated other comprehensive income (losspfriax, by component for the year endec
September 30, 2014:

Unrealized
Appreciation
(Depreciation) on Defined
Available-for-sale Benefit
Securities Pension Plan Total
(in thousands)
Balance September 30, 20 $ 144,16: $ (11,63) $ 132,53(
Other comprehensive loss befo
reclassification: (19,00¢) — (19,00¢)

Amounts reclassified from
accumulated other
comprehensive income (los (27,737 (2,66)) (30,399
Net current-period other
comprehensive income
(loss) (46,747 (2,66) (49,40¢)
Balance September 30, 20 $ 97,41¢ $ (14,29 $ 83,12¢
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The following provides detail about accuatatl other comprehensive income (loss) componemitshwvere reclassified to the

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Income during the yedeérseptember 30, 2014:

Details about Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss) Components

Amount Reclassified
from Accumulated
Other Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Unrealized gains on available-for-sali
securities

Defined Benefit Pension Iten
Amortization of net actuarial los

Total reclassifications for the peri

NOTE 6 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

On March 2, 2011, the 2010 Long-Term Ina@nPlan (the "2010 Plan") was approved by ourldiolders. The 2010 Plan, among other
things, authorizes the Human Resources CommittéfeedBoard of Directors to grant nonqualified stogitions, restricted stock awards and
stock appreciation rights to selected employees@andn-employee Directors. Restricted stock magraated for no consideration other than
prior and future services. The purchase price paresfor stock options may not be less than mame¢ of the underlying stock on the date of
grant. Stock options expire 10 years after thetgiate. We have the right to satisfy option exexisom treasury shares and from authorized
but unissued shares. There were 261,438 nonqubdifack options and 230,375 shares of restricetkstwards granted under the 2010 Plan
during fiscal 2014. Awards outstanding in the 2005g-Term Incentive Plan (the "2005 Plan") and prier equity plan remain subject to the

terms and conditions of those plans.

A summary of compensation cost for stockeobpayment arrangements recognized in generaldmahistrative expense in fiscal 2014,

2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Compensation expen
Stock options
Restricted stoc

(in thousands)

(45,234 Gain on sale of investment securit

17,497 Income tax provisiol

(27,737 Net of tax

(4,196€) General and administrati
1,53t Income tax provisiol

(2,667) Net of tax

(30,399

September 30
2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

$ 11,26¢ $ 11,510 $ 9,791
15,43t 11,75¢ 8,28
$ 26,700 $ 23,270 $ 18,07¢
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Benefits of tax deductions in excess obgetized compensation cost of $26.6 million, $9.8iom and $3.3 million are reported as a
financing cash flow in the Consolidated StatementSash Flows for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012, retpely.

STOCK OPTIONS

Vesting requirements for stock optionsadetermined by the Human Resources Committee oBoard of Directors. Options currently
outstanding began vesting one year after the giaetwith 25 percent of the options vesting forfoonsecutive years.

We use the Black-Scholes formula to estntla¢ fair value of stock options granted to emeésy The fair value of the options is
amortized to compensation expense on a strédiigitasis over the requisite service periods efdtock awards, which are generally the ve:
periods. The weighted-average fair value calcutatiior options granted within the fiscal period based on the following weighted-average
assumptions set forth in the table below. Optityas Were granted in prior periods are based omgsisons prevailing at the date of grant.

2014 2013 2012

Risk-free interest rat 1€% 0.7% 1.C%
Expected stock volatilit 52.6% 53.9% 53.2%
Dividend yield 31% 1.1% 0.4%
Expected term (in year 5.k 5.k 5.k

Risk-Free Interest Rate. The risk-free interest rate is based on U.8a3ury securities for the expected term of theoopti

Expected Volatility Rate. Expected volatilities are based on the daibgicig price of our stock based upon historical éepee over a
period which approximates the expected term obfteon.

Expected Dividend Yield. The dividend yield is based on our currentdvid yield.

Expected Term. The expected term of the options granted reptsshe period of time that they are expectecetodistanding. We
estimate the expected term of options granted basénistorical experience with grants and exercises

Based on these calculations, the weightegtage fair value per option granted to acquskaae of common stock was $29.44, $23.80
$27.75 per share for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 20Ekheetively.
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The following summary reflects the stockiop activity for our common stock and related mfi@tion for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012
(shares in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Weighteod-Average
Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
Outstanding at
October 1 3,991 $ 34.1: 4,69C $ 29.5¢ 4,58¢ $ 25.8¢
Granted 261 79.67 36E 54.1¢ 45¢€ 59.6¢
Exercisec (1,619 26.0¢ (1,057 20.6¢ (314 17.2¢
Forfeited/Expire (10) 68.82 (7) 52.32 (41) 42.21
Outstanding on
September 3( 2,62¢ $ 43.4¢ 3,991 $ 34.1: 4,69C $ 29.5¢
Exercisable on
September 3( 1,88 $ 35.9¢ 3,06: $ 28.4¢ 3,57t $ 24.6¢
Shares available
to grant 3,43: 4,11¢ 5,082

The following table summarizes informatetmout stock options at September 30, 2014 (shartt®usands):

Outstanding Stock Options Exercisable Stock Options

Weighted-Average ~ Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Range of Exercise Price Options Remaining Life Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
$16.01 to $35.10 1,10¢ 27 $ 27.0( 1,10¢ $ 27.0(
$38.015 to $54.1 89¢ 6.6 $ 46.7¢ 574 $ 43.3¢
$59.76 to $79.6 628 8.C $ 67.91 20z $ 63.7¢
$16.01 to $79.6 2,62¢ 52 $ 43.4¢ 1,88 $ 35.9¢

At September 30, 2014, the weighted-averag®ining life of exercisable stock options wasykars and the aggregate intrinsic value
was $116.7 million with a weighted-average exerpisee of $35.93 per share.

The number of options vested or expectedsd at September 30, 2014 was 2,623,688 witlygregate intrinsic value of $142.8 million
and a weighted-average exercise price of $43.43mme.

As of September 30, 2014, the unrecognizedpensation cost related to the stock options$¥z& million. That cost is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 2aBsye

The total intrinsic value of options exseml during fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $100l8&mi$40.4 million and $12.0 million,
respectively.

The grant date fair value of shares vedtethg fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $8.8 milli#®.3 million and $8.1 million, respectively.
RESTRICTED STOCK

Restricted stock awards consist of our comistock and are time-vested over three to sixsy&#e recognize compensation expense on
straight-line basis over the vesting period. Thevalue of restricted stock awards under the 2BIED is determined based on the closing pric
of our shares on the grant date. As of Septemhe2@®4, there was $20.0 million of total unrecogdizompensation
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cost related to unvested restricted stock awarkat dost is expected to be recognized over a waigaverage period of 2.3 years.

A summary of the status of our restrictextls awards as of September 30, 2014, and of clsaingestricted stock outstanding during the
fiscal years ended September 30, 2014, 2013 an2| &0as follows (shares in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Grant Date Fair Grant Date Fair Grant Date Fair
Shares Value per Share Shares Value per Share Shares Value per Share
Outstanding at
October 1 57¢ $ 55.17 43C $ 52.5:2 328 $ 42.3¢
Granted 23C 79.67 307 54.1¢ 244 59.7¢
Vested (1) (157) 54.0¢ (155 458¢ (119 40.21
Forfeited/Expire (15) 67.92 (6) 54.6 (18) 49.7¢
Outstanding on
September 3( 634 $ 64.0: 57€¢ $ 55.1% 43C $ 52.52

(1)  The number of restricted stock awards vested irdwhares that we withheld on behalf of our emgleye satisfy the
statutory tax withholding requiremen

NOTE 7 EARNINGS PER SHARE

ASC 260Earnings per Sharerequires companies to treat unvested share-lpgsadent awards that have non-forfeitable rights to
dividend or dividend equivalents as a separatesaésecurities in calculating earnings per shéfe.have granted and expect to continue to
grant to employees restricted stock grants thatagmmon-forfeitable rights to dividends. Such dsaare considered participating securities
under ASC 260. As such, we are required to inctbhdse grants in the calculation of our basic easper share and calculate basic earnings
per share using the two-class method. The two-chethod of computing earnings per share is an mgsrallocation formula that determines

earnings per share for each class of common staatlparticipating security according to dividendsldeed (or accumulated) and participation
rights in undistributed earnings.

Basic earnings per share is computed utfithe two-class method and is calculated baseseightedaverage number of common shz
outstanding during the periods presented.

Diluted earnings per share is computedguie weighted-average number of common and coneqaivalent shares outstanding during
the periods utilizing the two-class method for ktoptions and nonvested restricted stock.
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The following table sets forth the compigtatof basic and diluted earnings per share:

September 30
2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Numerator:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 708,76t $ 721,45. $ 573,60¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic (47) 15,18¢ 7,43¢€
Net income 708,71 736,63 581,04!
Adjustment for basic earnings per sh
Earnings allocated to unvested sharehol (4,145 (3,847) (2,246
Numerator for basic earnings per shi
From continuing operatior 704,62: 717,61: 571,36:
From discontinued operatio (47) 15,18¢ 7,43¢€

704,57- 732,79 578,79¢
Adjustment for diluted earnings per she
Effect of reallocating undistributed earnings ofested

shareholder 3C 4€ 31
Numerator for diluted earnings per sh:

From continuing operatior 704,65: 717,65 571,39

From discontinued operatio (47) 15,18¢ 7,43¢€

$ 704,60: $ 732,840 $ 578,83(

Denominator
Denominator for basic earnings per share—weighted-

average share 107,80( 106,28t 106,81¢
Effect of dilutive shares from stock options ansitrieted
stock 1,341 1,59:¢ 1,55¢
Denominator for diluted earnings per share—adjusted
weighte-average share 109,14: 107,87 108,37
Basic earnings per common shg
Income from continuing operatiol $ 6.5 $ 6.75 $ 5.3t
Income from discontinued operatic — 0.14 0.07
Net income $ 6.5/ $ 6.8¢ $ 5.42
Diluted earnings per common sha
Income from continuing operatiol $ 6.4€ $ 6.6 $ 5.21
Income from discontinued operatic — 0.14 0.07
Net income $ 6.4€ $ 6.7¢ $ 5.34
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The following shares attributable to outsiag equity awards were excluded from the calauhedf diluted earnings per share because
their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive:

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands, except per shar
amounts)
Shares excluded from calculation of diluted
earnings per sha 21¢ 743 44¢
Weightec-average price per she $ 79.67 $ 57.27 $ 59.6¢

NOTE 8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASURE MENT

The estimated fair value of our availalegale securities is primarily based on marketegiorhe following is a summary of available-
for-sale securities, which excludes assets hetdNton-qualified Supplemental Savings Plan:

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(in thousands)
Equity Securities
September 30, 201 $ 64,46: $ 157,83¢ $ — $ 222,301
September 30, 201 $ 68,43« $ 237,21 $ — $ 305,64

On an on-going basis, we evaluate the ntaloke equity securities to determine if a decliméair value below cost is other-than-
temporary. If a decline in fair value below costlietermined to be other-than-temporary, an impaitrakarge is recorded and a new cost basi
established. We review several factors to determimether a loss is other-than-temporary. Thesefadnbclude, but are not limited to, (i) the
length of time a security is in an unrealized Ipgsition, (ii) the extent to which fair value istethan cost, (i) the financial condition and mea
term prospects of the issuer and (iv) our intewt apility to hold the security for a period of tirsefficient to allow for any anticipated recowvt
in fair value. The cost of securities used in deiring realized gains and losses is based on thege cost basis of the security sold.

During fiscal 2014, marketable equity azhbié-forsale securities with a fair value at the date t#ssaf $49.2 million were sold. The gr
realized gain on the sales of available-for-sateisges totaled $45.2 million. During fiscal 20X8arketable equity available-feale securitie
with a fair value at the date of sale of $214.liomlwere sold. The gross realized gain on suchssal available-for-sale securities totaled
$153.4 million. We had no sales of marketable goanailable-for-sale securities in fiscal 2012. #lithe gains from available-for-sale
securities are included in gain from sale of inwesit securities in the Consolidated Statementaaufrhe.

During fiscal 2013, we sold our shareshireé limited partnerships that were primarily ineesin international equities and carried at a
cost of $9.4 million, realizing a gain of $8.8 riwh that is included in gain from sale of investmgecurities in the Consolidated Statements o
Income. We no longer have any investments in lichftartnerships.
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The assets held in a Ngnalified Supplemental Savings Plan are carriddiatarket value which totaled $14.3 million antD$s million
at September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. $betsiare comprised of mutual funds that are medsiging Level 1 inputs.

The majority of cash equivalents are ingdsh highly-liquid money-market mutual funds intexbprimarily in direct or indirect
obligations of the U.S. Government. The carryingant of cash and cash equivalents approximatesdhie due to the short maturity of the
investments.

The carrying value of other assets, acchadilities and other liabilities approximatedrfaalue at September 30, 2014 and 2013.

ASC 820 defines fair value as "the pricat thould be received to sell an asset or paidatasfier a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement' de®€ 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy torjiize the inputs used in valuation
techniques into three levels as follows:

. Level 1—Observable inputs that reflect quotadgw in active markets for identical assets oiilité#s in active markets.

Level 2—Inputs other than Level 1 that are obable, either directly or indirectly, such as qubgeices for similar assets or
liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are active; or other inputs that are observable ortmanorroborated by observable
market data for substantially the full term of tssets or liabilities.

. Level 3—Valuations based on inputs that are unofadde and not corroborated by market data.

At September 30, 2014, our financial assglizing Level 1 inputs include cash equivalergguity securities with active markets and
money market funds we have elected to classifestsicted assets that are included in other cuassets and other assets. Also included is
cash denominated in a foreign currency we havdezlgo classify as restricted that is includedurrent assets of discontinued operations anc
limited to remaining liabilities of discontinued eqations. For these items, quoted current marke¢pare readily available.

At September 30, 2014, Level 2 inputs idela bank certificate of deposit, which is includtedurrent assets.
Currently, we do not have any financiatinments utilizing Level 3 inputs.

69




Table of Contents

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
NOTE 8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASURE MENT (Continued)

The following table summarizes our assetasured at fair value on a recurring basis predenteur Consolidated Balance Sheets as of
September 30, 2014:

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Total Markets for Other Significant
Measured Identical Observable Unobservable
at Assets Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(in thousands)
Assets:
Cash and cash
equivalents $ 360,90¢ $ 360,90¢ $ — 3 —
Investment: 222,30( 222,30( — —
Other current asse 35,45( 35,20( 25C —
Other asset 2,00( 2,00( — —
Total assets measured
fair value $ 620,65¢ $ 620,40¢ $ 25C $ —

The following information presents the sigppental fair value information about long-termefikkrate debt at September 30, 2014 and
September 30, 2013.

September 30

2014 2013
(in millions)

Carrying value of lon-term fixec-rate deb $ 80.C $ 195.

Fair value of lon-term fixec-rate deb $ 84.2 $ 205«

The fair value for fixed-rate debt was mstied using discounted cash flows at rates refigaturrent interest rates at similar maturities
plus credit spread which was estimated using thstanding market information on debt instrumenthwai similar credit profile to us. The de
was valued using a Level 2 input.

NOTE 9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

We maintain a domestic noncontributory wedi benefit pension plan covering certain U.S. eyg®#s who meet certain age and service
requirements. In July 2003, we revised the Helnhegid®ayne, Inc. Employee Retirement Plan ("PenBilam") to close the Pension Plan to
new participants effective October 1, 2003, andicedbenefit accruals for current participants tgfoGeptember 30, 2006, at which time
benefit accruals were discontinued and the Peridimm was frozen.
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The following table provides a reconcilitiof the changes in the pension benefit obligateomd fair value of Pension Plan assets ove
two-year period ended September 30, 2014 andens¢at of the funded status as of September 30, 204£2013:

2014 2013
(in thousands)

Accumulated Benefit Obligatia $ 111,10¢ $ 102,68(

Changes in projected benefit obligatic

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y $ 102,68( $ 112,06:
Interest cos 4,76: 4,33¢
Actuarial (gain) los: 10,781 (9,320
Benefits paic (7,122) (4,407)

Projected benefit obligation at end of y: $ 111,10¢ $ 102,68(

Change in plan asse

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \ $ 96,81¢ $ 86,71¢
Actual return on plan asse 11,13: 12,36¢
Employer contributior 7,32¢ 2,132
Benefits paic (7,122) (4,407)

Fair value of plan assets at end of y $ 108,15 $ 96,81¢

Funded status of the plan at end of y $ (295) $ (5,867

The amounts recognized in the ConsolidB@dnce Sheets are as follows (in thousands):

Accrued liabilities $ 62 $ (24
Noncurrent liabilitie—other (2,889 (5,71%)
Net amount recognize $ (2,95) $ (5,867

The amounts recognized in Accumulated O@wnprehensive Income at September 30, 2014 argl 208 not yet reflected in net
periodic benefit cost, are as follows (in thousands

Net actuarial los $ (23,405 $ (19,210

The amount recognized in Accumulated O@@mprehensive Income and not yet reflected in déribenefit cost expected to be
amortized in next year's periodic benefit cost ietactuarial loss of $1.2 million.

The weighted average assumptions usedéopénsion calculations were as follows:

Years Ended
September 30
2014 2013 2012

Discount rate for net periodic benefit ca 48(% 4.06% 4.3%
Discount rate for ye-~end obligation: 432% 4.8(% 4.06%
Expected return on plan ass 6.61% 7.06% 7.1%
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The mortality table issued by the Socidtjctuaries in October 2014 was used for the Sep&rB0, 2014 pension calculation. The new
mortality information reflects improved life expaoties and projected mortality improvements.

We contributed $7.3 million to the Pensiian in fiscal 2014 to fund distributions in lietiliguidating pension assets. We estimate
contributing at least $0.1 million in fiscal 201bmeet the minimum contribution required by law amaly make additional contributions in
fiscal 2015 if needed to fund unexpected distritmsi

Components of the net periodic pension Bgpdbenefit) were as follows:

Years Ended September 3C

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Interest cos $ 4,762 $ 433¢ $ 4,49¢
Expected return on plan ass (6,789 (6,099 (5,467)
Amortization of prior service co: — 1 2
Recognized net actuarial lo 873 2,372 3,56
Settlemen 1,37¢ — —
Net pension expense (bene $ 22: $ 61t $ 2,60¢

We record settlement expense when benafingnts exceed the total annual service and itteosss.

The following table reflects the expecteaéfits to be paid from the Pension Plan in eadch@hext five fiscal years, and in the aggregat
for the five years thereafter (in thousands).

Years Ended September 3C
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020- 2024 Total

$5,51( $6,41¢€ $5,64:% $6,99¢ $7,55¢ $36,032 $68,15¢

Included in the Pension Plan is an unfurglgzblemental executive retirement plan.
INVESTMENT STRATEGY AND ASSET ALLOCATION

Our investment policy and strategies atabdished with a longerm view in mind. The investment strategy is icketh to help pay the cc
of the Plan while providing adequate security tehtbe benefits promised under the Plan. We mairgtaiversified asset mix to minimize the
risk of a material loss to the portfolio value thaight occur from devaluation of any single invesirn In determining the appropriate asset
mix, our financial strength and ability to fund potial shortfalls are considered. Plan assetsnaesied in portfolios of diversified public-
market equity securities and fixed income secwritighe Plan does not directly hold securities ef@@mpany.

The expected long-term rate of return @nRissets is based on historical and projectes oateturn for current and planned asset class!
in the Plan's investment portfolio after analyzimstorical experience and future expectations efréturn and volatility of various asset clas
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The target allocation for 2015 and the aabecation for the Pension Plan at the end afi2014 and 2013, by asset category, follows:

Percentage
of Plan
Target Assets At
Allocation September 30,
Asset Category 2015 2014 2013
U.S. equities 55% 61% 58%
International equitie 15 12 13
Fixed income 27 25 27
Real estate and oth 3 2 2
Total 10(% 10(% 10(%

PLAN ASSETS

The fair value of Plan assets at Septer@@e2014 and 2013, summarized by level within tievfalue hierarchy described in Note 8, are
as follows:

Fair Value as of September 30, 201

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in thousands)
Shor-term investment $ 225($ 225 $ — $ —
Mutual funds:
Domestic stock fund 55,05¢ 55,05¢ — —
Bond funds 24,72 24,72 — —
International stock func 8,731 8,731 — —
Total mutual fund: 88,507 88,507 — —
Domestic common stoc 15,73: 15,73: — —
Foreign equity stoc 1,36¢ 1,36¢ — —
Oil and gas propertie 301 — — 301
Total $ 108,15° $ 107,85« $ — $ 301
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Fair Value as of September 30, 201

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in thousands)
Shor-term investment $ 198 $ 198 $ — $ —
Mutual funds:
Domestic stock fund 44,12¢ 44,12¢ — —
Bond funds 23,74¢ 23,74¢ — —
International stock func 12,51¢ 12,51¢ — —
Total mutual fund: 80,39° 80,39° — —
Domestic common stoc 12,99¢ 12,99¢ — —
Foreign equity stoc 1,15: 1,15: — —
Oil and gas propertie 287 — — 287
Total $ 9681¢ $ 9653 $ — $ 287

The Plan's financial assets utilizing LeVéhputs are valued based on quoted prices imeantarkets for identical securities. The Plan ha:
no assets utilizing Level 2. The Plan's assetiiniyj Level 3 inputs consist of oil and gas projgst The fair value of oil and gas properties is
determined by Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., based upduaecevenue received for the previous twelve-mghod and experience with similar
assets.

The following table sets forth a summarygleénges in the fair value of the Plan's Levels®tsfor the years ended September 30, 2014
and 2013:

Oil and Gas

Properties
Years Ended

Segtember 30,

2014 2013
(in thousands)
Balance, beginning of ye $ 287 $ 29¢
Unrealized gains (losses) relating to property Iséld at the
reporting date 14 (12
Balance, end of ye: $ 301 $ 287

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Substantially all employees on the Unit¢atés payroll may elect to participate in the 4)hrift Plan by contributing a portion of their
earnings. We contribute an amount equal to 100epef the first five percent of the participamsnpensation subject to certain limitations.
The annual expense incurred for this defined coation plan was $32.3 million, $28.3 million andé$2 million in fiscal 2014, 2013 and 20:
respectively.
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The following reflects the activity in oteserve for bad debt for 2014, 2013 and 2012:

September 30
2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Reserve for bad dek

Balance at October $ 4,798 $ 94z $ T7¢
Provision for (recovery of) bad de (2000  3,87¢ 20t
Write-off of bad deb 2 (22) (39
Balance at September & $ 4597 $ 4,79 $ 947

Prepaid expenses and other current asgetsied liabilities and long-term liabilities atf@mber 30 consist of the following:

September 30
2014 2013
(in thousands)

Prepaid expenses and other current as

Restricted cas $ 28,24: $ 23,69
Prepaid insuranc 13,31¢ 14,25(
Deferred mobilizatior 20,13: 11,39¢
Income tax ass¢ — 9,322
Prepaid value added ti 434 5,00¢
Other 19,15( 16,27¢

Total prepaid expenses and other current a $ 8127 $ 79,93

Accrued liabilities:

Accrued operating cos $ 9140t $ 30,16¢
Payroll and employee benef 88,12¢ 71,65¢
Taxes payable, other than income 42,53¢ 38,32¢
Accrued income taxe 10,61: —
Deferred mobilizatior 18,10: 12,23t
Seltinsurance liabilitie: 8,11¢ 7,02¢
Deferred incomt 3,14¢ 11,66
Other 20,22¢ 18,60:

Total accrued liabilitie: $ 282,27¢ $ 189,68«

Noncurrent liabilitie—Other:

Pension and other n-qualified retirement plan $ 25,30f $ 23,40¢
Seltinsurance liabilitie: 13,47¢ 12,20"
Deferred mobilizatior 3,81¢ 8,067
Deferred incom — 1,781
Uncertain tax positions including interest and piges 13,23¢ 12,84«
Other 8,27 7,04¢

Total noncurrent liabilitie—other $ 64,11( $ 65,35!
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Years Ended September 3(
2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Cash payment:
Interest paid, net of amounts capitali: $ 5372 $ 6,991 $ 10,71
Income taxes pai $ 317,59¢ $ 363,32t $ 144,95¢

Capital expenditures on the Consolidatede®tents of Cash Flows for the years ended Septe36b&014, 2013 and 2012 do not include
additions which have been incurred but not paicafof the end of the year. The following tableoresles total capital expenditures incurre
total capital expenditures in the Consolidatededitents of Cash Flows:

September 30
2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Capital expenditures incurre $ 1,047,170 $ 791,74: $ 1,082,67
Additions incurred prior year but paid
for in current yea 29,26« 46,58¢ 61,59:
Additions incurred but not paid for as
the end of the yes (123,54 (29,26¢) (46,589
Capital expenditures per Consolidate:
Statements of Cash Floy $ 952,89. $ 809,06t $ 1,097,68

NOTE 12 RISK FACTORS
CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT

Financial instruments which potentially b us to concentrations of credit risk consigtarily of temporary cash investments, short-
term investments and trade receivables. We planpdeary cash investments in the U.S. with estabtidinancial institutions and invest in a
diversified portfolio of highly rated, shottrm money market instruments. Our trade receiglplemarily with established companies in the
and gas industry, may impact credit risk as custenmmay be similarly affected by prolonged changesconomic and industry conditions.
International sales also present various risksugiog governmental activities that may limit orrdist markets and restrict the movement of
funds. Most of our international sales, howeveg,tarlarge international or government-owned nali@il companies. We perform ongoing
credit evaluations of customers and do not typjaafuire collateral in support for trade receiesbWe provide an allowance for doubtful
accounts, when necessary, to cover estimated ¢osdiés. Such an allowance is based on managerkeotidedge of customer accounts.

VOLATILITY OF MARKET

Our operations can be materially affectg@iband gas prices. Oil and natural gas pricegHreen historically volatile and difficult to
predict. While current energy prices are importonttributors to positive cash flow for customepgextations about future prices and price
volatility are generally more important for deteninig a customer's future spending levels. Thistilityga along with the
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difficulty in predicting future prices, can lead nyaexploration and production companies to base tapital spending on much more
conservative estimates of commaodity prices. Assaltedemand for contract drilling services is abtays purely a function of the movement
of commaodity prices.

In addition, customers may finance thepleration activities through cash flow from opeoats, the incurrence of debt or the issuance of
equity. Any deterioration in the credit and capiterkets may cause difficulty for customers to wbtanding for their capital needs. A
reduction of cash flow resulting from declines amamodity prices or a reduction of available finanigcmay result in a reduction in customer
spending and the demand for drilling services. Tédiction in spending could have a material agveffect on our operations.

SELF-INSURANCE

We self-insure a significant portion of exfed losses relating to worker's compensatiorgrgétiability and automobile liability.
Generally, deductibles range from $1 million torillion per occurrence depending on the coveragkevemether a claim occurs outside or
inside of the United States. Insurance is purchased deductibles to reduce our exposure to cafalsic events. Estimates are recorded for
incurred outstanding liabilities for worker's compation, general liability claims and claims theg @curred but not reported. Estimates are
based on adjusters' estimates, historic experig@ngdestatistical methods that we believe are radidbbnetheless, insurance estimates include
certain assumptions and management judgments irgdhe frequency and severity of claims, claimaelegment and settlement practices.
Unanticipated changes in these factors may prochaterially different amounts of expense that wdadd-eported under these programs.

We have a wholly-owned captive insuranaagany which finances a significant portion of theygical damage risk on company-owned
drilling rigs as well as international casualty detibles.

INTERNATIONAL DRILLING OPERATIONS

International drilling operations may sifigantly contribute to our revenues and net opegpincome. There can be no assurance that we
will be able to successfully conduct such operati@amd a failure to do so may have an adverseteffeaur financial position, results of
operations, and cash flows. Also, the success ioinbernational operations will be subject to numes contingencies, some of which are
beyond management's control. These contingenaigdié general and regional economic conditiongtdiations in currency exchange rates,
modified exchange controls, changes in internatimgulatory requirements and international emplegtissues, risk of expropriation of real
and personal property and the burden of complyiitly fereign laws. Additionally, in the event thattended labor strikes occur or a country
experiences significant political, economic or sbaistability, we could experience shortages bofaand/or material and supplies necessary t
operate some of our drilling rigs, thereby potdhtieausing an adverse material effect on our bessnfinancial condition and results of
operations.

We are not operating in any country thatugently considered highly inflationary, whichdsefined as cumulative inflation rates
exceeding 100 percent in the most recent threeperéd. All of our foreign subsidiaries use thé&Udollar as the functional currency and
local currency monetary assets are remeasuredJitodollars with gains and losses resulting fromeign currency transactions included in
current results of operations. As such, if a foneegonomy is considered highly inflationary, thexuld be no impact on the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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Because of the impact of local laws, oturfe operations in certain areas may be condubtedgh entities in which local citizens own
interests and through entities (including joint tegas) in which we hold only a minority interestpursuant to arrangements under which we
conduct operations under contract to local entitfékile we believe that neither operating througbtsentities nor pursuant to such
arrangements would have a material adverse effeotio operations or revenues, there can be noasstthat we will in all cases be able to
structure or restructure our operations to conftorocal law (or the administration thereof) omteracceptable to us.

NOTE 13 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
PURCHASE OBLIGATIONS

During fiscal 2014, we announced agreemintsiild and operate 83 new FlexRigs in the UisBquent to September 30, 2014, we
announced agreements to build and operate six feu#RIgs in the U.S. As of November 13, 2014, 41 kdexRigs with customer
commitments remained under construction. Duringstroietion, rig construction cost is included in staction in progress and then transfe
to contract drilling equipment when the rig is @eddn the field for service. Equipment, parts anpdies are ordered in advance to promote
efficient construction progress. At September 31,4 we had purchase orders outstanding of appaigign$412.9 million for the purchase of
drilling equipment.

LEASES

At September 30, 2014, we were leasing@pprately 204,000 square feet of office space deamtown Tulsa, Oklahoma. We also le
other office space and equipment for use in opmnatiFor operating leases that contain built-ingermined rent escalations, rent expense i
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lifthe lease. Leasehold improvements are capitaineidamortized over the lease term. Future
minimum rental payments required under operatiagds having initial or remaining non-cancelablsde®rms in excess of a year at
September 30, 2014 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Amount
(in thousands)

2015 $ 7,65¢
2016 5,16¢
2017 4,48¢
2018 3,22(
2019 3,21:
Thereatftel 14,73

Total $ 38,47¢

Total rent expense was $12.1 million, $8iBion and $8.5 million for fiscal 2014, 2013 aRd12, respectively.
CONTINGENCIES

Various legal actions, the majority of whiarise in the ordinary course of business, arélipgnWe maintain insurance against certain
business risks subject to certain deductibles. Ndrileese legal
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actions are expected to have a material adversetefh our financial condition, cash flows or réswif operations.

We are contingently liable to suretiesaapect of bonds issued by the sureties in conmegtiih certain commitments entered into by us
in the normal course of business. We have agregualeannify the sureties for any payments made byntin respect of such bonds.

During the ordinary course of our businessitingencies arise resulting from an existingditoon, situation, or set of circumstances
involving an uncertainty as to the realization gfassible gain contingency. We account for gairtingencies in accordance with the
provisions of ASC 450Contingencies and, therefore, we do not record gain contingesnand recognize income until realized. The prgpert
and equipment of our Venezuelan subsidiary wasddiy the Venezuelan government on June 30, 200:0wBolly-owned subsidiaries,
Helmerich & Payne International Drilling Co. andlkerich & Payne de Venezuela, C.A., filed a lawsuithe United States District Court for
the District of Columbia on September 23, 2011 mstathe Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela, Petrolded/enezuela, S.A. ("PDVSA") and
PDVSA Petroleo, S.A. ("Petroleo"). Our subsidiasegk damages for the taking of their Venezueldimdrbusiness in violation of
international law and for breach of contract. Whiiere exists the possibility of realizing a reagveve are currently unable to determine the
timing or amounts we may receive, if any, or thkelihood of recovery. No gain contingencies aregemized in our Consolidated Financial
Statements.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2013 andhe fourth fiscal quarter of 2012, we settled aaibn disputes with third parties not affiliatedtn
the Venezuelan government, PDVSA or Petroleo reélaig¢he seizure of our property in Venezuela. Peds of $15.0 million and $7.5 million
were received and recorded in discontinued opersiivfiscal 2013 and 2012, respectively.

On November 8, 2013, the United Statesridts€ourt for the Eastern District of Louisianapapved the previously disclosed October 30,
2013 plea agreement between our wholly owned sigvgjdtHelmerich & Payne International Drilling Cand the United States Department of
Justice, United States Attorney's Office for thastEen District of Louisiana ("DOJ"). The court'spagval of the plea agreement resolved the
DOJ's investigation into certain choke manifolditesirregularities that occurred in 2010 at onéHefmerich & Payne International
Drilling Co.'s offshore platform rigs in the Gulf Mexico. We have been engaged in discussions thé@hnspector General's office of the
Department of the Interior regarding the same et were the subject of the DOJ's investigatidtihough we presently believe that the
outcome of our discussions will not have a matexiblerse effect on the Company, we can providessorances as to the timing or eventual
outcome of these discussions.

NOTE 14 SEGMENT INFORMATION

We operate principally in the contractldrg industry. Our contract drilling business ind&s the following reportable operating segme
U.S. Land, Offshore and International Land. Thet@mt drilling operations consist mainly of contiag Company-owned drilling equipment
primarily to large oil and gas exploration compani€o provide information about the different typédbusiness activities in which we oper:
we have included Offshore and International Latah@with our U.S. Land reportable operating segimas separate reportable operating
segments. Additionally, each reportable operatagneent is a strategic business unit which is mahagparately. Our primary international
areas of operation include Colombia, Ecuador, AliganTunisia, Bahrain, U.A.E. and
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other South American and Middle Eastern countfgbker includes additional non-reportable operasegments. Revenues included in Other
consist primarily of rental income. Consolidatedenreues and expenses reflect the elimination ohaterial intercompany transactions.

We evaluate segment performance basedoomia or loss from operations (segment operatingnie) before income taxes which
includes:

. revenues from external and internal customers
. direct operating costs

. depreciation and

. allocated general and administrative costs

but excludes corporate costs for other depreciatimome from asset sales and other corporate ia@d expense.

General and administrative costs are aléatto the segments based primarily on specifiotifieation and, to the extent that such
identification is not practical, on other methodsietn we believe to be a reasonable reflection efutilization of services provided.

Segment operating income for all segmengsron-GAAP financial measure of our performaasdt excludes certain general and
administrative expenses, corporate depreciatiamonie from asset sales and other corporate incothexpense. We consider segment
operating income to be an important supplementalswme of operating performance for presenting sémaur core businesses. We use this
measure to facilitate period-to-period comparisargperating performance of our reportable segmientse aggregate by eliminating items
that affect comparability between periods. We belithat segment operating income is useful to itovedecause it provides a means to
evaluate the operating performance of the segnoen#s ongoing basis using criteria that are useaupynternal decision makers.
Additionally, it highlights operating trends andisianalytical comparisons. However, segment opgraticome has limitations and should not
be used as an alternative to operating incomesst, bo performance measure determined in accordatttSAAP, as it excludes certain costs
that may affect our operating performance in fupggods.
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Summarized financial information of our oegable segments for continuing operations for exdhe years ended September 30, 2014,

2013 and 2012 is shown in the following table:

Segment Additions to
External Inter - Operating Total Long-Lived
(in thousands) Sales Segment Total Sales Income (Loss) Depreciation Assets Assets
2014
Contract
Drilling
U.S.Land $3,099,95 $ — $3,099,95 $ 1,025,74! $ 455,93 $5,260,81' $ 930,26:
Offshore 250,81 — 250,81: 69,81¢ 12,30( 137,10: 4,37
Internatione
Land 355,53: — 355,53: 36,417 39,93 589,96¢ 85,42+
3,706,29 —  3,706,29° 1,131,98: 508,16¢ 5,987,87' 1,020,05
Other 13,41( 867 14,27 (9,06¢) 15,38 726,77¢ 27,11,
3,719,70 867 3,720,57. 1,122,911 523,54¢ 6,714,65! 1,047,171
Eliminations — (867) (867) — — — —
Total $3,719,70 $ — $3,719,70 $ 1,12291. $ 523,54¢ $6,714,65' $1,047,17
2013
Contract
Drilling
U.S.Land $2,78544'$ — $2,785,44'$ 932,59. $ 391,07. $4,743,64. $ 726,20t
Offshore 221,86 — 221,86 53,06¢ 13,76¢ 149,12¢ 4,47(
Internatione
Land 366,34 — 366,84 44 59t 36,00( 486,91« 51,19
3,374,15: —  3,374,15.  1,030,25! 440,83t 5,379,68I 781,86
Other 13,46 85¢ 14,31¢ (8,607) 14,78t 881,43 9,872
3,387,61.  85¢ 3,38847. 1,021,664 45562 6,261,120 791,74
Eliminations — (859 (85¢) — — — —
Total $3,387,61. $ — $3,387,61. $ 1,021,64i $ 455,62 $6,261,12: $§ 791,74.
2012
Contract
Drilling
US.Land $2,67847'$ — $2,67847' $ 906,96¢ $ 332,720 $4,422,29 $ 991,96t
Offshore 189,08t — 189,08t 41,77¢ 13,45t 160,13! 8,54
Internatione
Land 270,02° — 270,02° 20,36¢ 30,70 467,53 52,86¢
3,137,58! — 3,137,58i 969,10¢ 376,87¢ 5,049,971 1,053,37
Other 14,21« 841 15,05t (8,829 10,67( 663,49¢ 29,30
3,151,80: 841 3,152,64. 960,28! 387,54¢ 5,713,461 1,082,67
Eliminations — (841) (841) — — — —
Total $3,151,80; $ — $3,151,80: $ 960,28' $ 387,54¢ $5,713,461 $1,082,67!
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The following table reconciles segment atiag income to income from continuing operatioefobe income taxes as reported on the
Consolidated Statements of Income:

Years Ended September 3C
2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

$ 1,122,91° $ 1,021,64: $ 960,28!

Segment operating incon

Income from asset sal 19,58t 18,92 19,22:
Corporate general and administrative costs andocatp
depreciatior (87,717 (83,910 (69,909
Operating incom: 1,054,78 956,66. 909,59¢
Other income (expens
Interest and dividend incon 1,58: 1,65: 1,38(
Interest expens (4,659 (6,129) (8,659

Gain on sale of investment securit 45,23¢ 162,12: —
Other (636) (9) 254
Total unallocated amoun 41,52° 157,63t (7,019
Income from continuing operations before incomees  $ 1,096,31. $ 1,114,29 $ 902,58(

The following table presents revenues feotternal customers and long-lived assets by colrasgd on the location of service provided:

Years Ended September 3C
2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Revenue!
United State: $ 3,338,360 $ 3,011,760 $ 2,864,57!
Argentina 107,94! 73,20¢ 54,317
Colombia 85,17¢ 100,05: 82,247
Ecuadol 69,19t 67,89( 56,44¢
Other Foreigr 119,02 134,70« 94,22(
Total $ 3,719,70 $ 3,387,61. $ 3,151,80:

Long-Lived Assets

United State: $ 4,753,84. $ 4,345,95( $ 4,039,77
Argentina 144,82: 83,14¢ 81,88t¢
Colombia 107,11: 81,31¢ 84,38¢
Ecuadol 70,74: 63,89 38,26¢
Other Foreigr 112,02. 101,79! 107,26:

Total $ 5,188,54. $ 4,676,10. $ 4,351,57.

Long-lived assets are comprised of propgignt and equipment.
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Revenues from one customer accounted famoapnately 10.7 percent, 9.5 percent and 12.0gyerof total operating revenues during the
years ended September 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012ctasly. Revenues from another customer accouotegpproximately 8.2 percer
7.9 percent and 10.2 percent of total operatingmaes during the years ended September 30, 2013,a2@ 2012, respectively. Collectively,
the receivables from these customers were approsgiyn®122.5 million and $94.1 million at SeptemB6&r 2014 and 2013, respectively.

NOTE 15 SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITE D)

(in thousands, except per share amount:

2014 18t Quarter 2" Quarter 3™ Quarter 4™ Quarter
Operating revenue $ 889,15! $ 893,43( $ 952,08 $ 985,03t
Operating incom: 264,03: 255,34 271,91 263,50:
Income from continuing operatiol 173,18:. 174,58¢ 192,29( 168,70!
Net income 173,18: 174,57( 192,27¢ 168,68¢
Basic earnings per common she

Income from continuing operatiol 1.61 1.61 1.77 1.5t

Net income 1.61 1.61 1.77 1.58
Diluted earnings per common sha

Income from continuing operatiol 1.5¢ 1.5¢ 1.7¢ 158

Net income 1.5¢ 1.5¢ 1.7¢ 1.5¢
2013 15t Quarter 2" Quarter 3™ Quarter 4™ Quarter
Operating revenue $ 84457. $ 838,30¢ $ 840,19° $ 864,53¢
Operating incom: 240,54 232,92( 239,96( 243,23:
Income from continuing operatiol 159,61: 151,06° 250,97¢ 159,79°
Net income 159,60: 151,08( 266,15¢ 159,79
Basic earnings per common shg

Income from continuing operatiol 1.5C 1.41 2.3t 1.4¢

Net income 1.5C 1.41 2.4¢ 1.4¢
Diluted earnings per common shs

Income from continuing operatiol 1.4¢ 1.3¢ 2.3 1.47

Net income 1.4¢ 1.3¢ 2.4¢ 1.47

The sum of earnings per share for the fuarters may not equal the total earnings per dbatbe year due to changes in the average
number of common shares outstanding.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2014, net@me includes an after-tax gain from the sale sé&sof $3.7 million, $0.03 per share on a diluted
basis.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2014, nebme includes an after-tax gain from the salesséts of $2.7 million, $0.02 per share on a
diluted basis, and an after-tax gain from the shiavestment securities of $12.9 million, $0.12 pkare on a diluted basis.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2014, netame includes an after-tax gain from the sale sé&sof $1.4 million, $0.01 per share on a dilutec
basis, and an after-tax gain from the sale of itment securities of $14.9 million, $0.13 per shamea diluted basis.

83




Table of Contents

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
NOTE 15 SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITE D) (Continued)

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, netame includes an aftéax gain from the sale of assets of $5.0 millich0$ per share on a dilut
basis.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2013, net@me includes an after-tax gain from the sale sé@sof $3.4 million, $0.03 per share on a diluted
basis, and an after-tax gain from the sale of iteest securities of $5.5 million, $0.05 per shaneadliluted basis.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2013, nebme includes an after-tax gain from the salesséts of $3.4 million, $0.03 per share on a
diluted basis.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2013, netame includes an after-tax gain from the sale sétssof $2.6 million, $0.02 per share on a diluted
basis, and an after-tax gain from the sale of itment securities of $92.4 million, $0.86 per shamea diluted basis.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, netdme includes an aftéax gain from the sale of assets of $2.8 millidh08 per share on a dilut
basis.
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Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Proceslure

As of the end of the period covered by Bosm 10-K, our management, under the supervisiahwvath the participation of our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaled the effectiveness of the design and operafionr disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) underSbcurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendedf &spiember 30, 2014. Based on that
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chi@idnhcial Officer concluded that:

. our disclosure controls and procedures are #ffeat ensuring that information required to bectised by us in the reports we
file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act®84, as amended, is recorded, processed, sunetharz reported within
the time periods specified in the SEC's rules anch§; and

. our disclosure controls and procedures operate thathimportant information flows to appropriatdlection and disclosure
points in a timely manner and are effective to emshiat such information is accumulated and compatad to our manageme
and made known to our Chief Executive Officer amde€Financial Officer, particularly during the jp@d when this Form 10-K
was prepared, as appropriate to allow timely deciségarding the required disclosure.

b) Management's Report on Internal Control oveaFRcial Reporting.

Our management is responsible for estahlishnd maintaining adequate internal control direancial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-
15(f) or 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange &d 934, as amended. Our internal control oveatricial reporting is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynafitial reporting and the preparation of finansiatements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfeee Our internal control over financial repogiimcludes those policies and procedures
that:

() pertain to the maintenance of records that, inaeasle detail, accurately and fairly reflect thansactions and dispositions of
our assets;

(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactione@eded as necessary to permit preparation ofifiahstatements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfes; and that our receipts and expenditures @irggbmade only in
accordance with authorizations of our managemehttza Board of Directors; and

(i)  provide reasonable assurance regarding preventitmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, vselisposition of our asst
that could have a material effect on the finansiatements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeanaate because of changes in conditions c
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

Management, with the participation of otni€? Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officegnducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of internal control over financigdoeting based on the
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framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framewasued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission.
This evaluation included review of the documentatid controls, evaluation of the design effectivenef controls, testing of the operating
effectiveness of controls and a conclusion onekieuation. Although there are inherent limitatiomshe effectiveness of any system of
internal control over financial reporting, basedtbis evaluation, management has concluded thaihtemal control over financial reporting
was effective as of September 30, 2014.

The independent registered public accogrftrm that audited our financial statements, Eftoung LLP, has issued an attestation
report on our internal control over financial rejrmy. This report appears below at the end oflteis 9A of Form 10-K.

C) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repgrtin

There were no changes in our internal obuaiver financial reporting during our fourth fiscparter of 2014 that have materially affected.
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, auternal control over financial reporting.

*%%

86




Table of Contents

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

We have audited Helmerich & Payne, Inaitsrnal control over financial reporting as of Sepber 30, 2014, based on criteria establishe
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issuedtry Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thea@liivay Commission (1992
framework, the COSO criteria). Helmerich & Paymes.'|s management is responsible for maintainingcéffe internal control over financial
reporting, and for its assessment of the effecagsrof internal control over financial reportinglirded in the accompanying Management's
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporti@gir responsibility is to express an opinion om ¢bmpany's internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogiet8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigéénternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etastilg and evaluating the design and operatifegtéfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanaigborting is a process designed to provide redderassurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repogtincludes those policies and procedures that€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatg@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely detecifauinauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the company's assets that could havaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Helmerich & Payne, Inc. mained, in all material respects, effective in&tcontrol over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2014, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Helmerich & Payre,ds of September 30, 2014 and 2013, and thedetansolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, shareholders' equity, artuftass for each of the three years in the perindesl September 30, 2014, and our report
dated November 26, 2014 expressed an unqualifisdoopthereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Tulsa, Oklahoma
November 26, 201
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Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART IlI
Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this item isanporated herein by reference to the material utidecaptions "Proposal 1—Election of
Directors," "Corporate Governance" and "Sectiora)l 8eneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” im definitive Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held Marc@15, to be filed with the SEC not later than 1a@after September 30, 2014.
Information required under this item with respecekecutive officers under ltem 401 of Regulatiel 8ppears under "Our Executive
Officers" in Part | of this Form 10-K.

We have adopted a Code of Ethics for Ppaidexecutive Officer and Senior Financial Officefie text of this code is located on our
website under "Corporate Governance." Our Inteadetess is www.hpinc.com. We intend to discloseamgndments to or waivers from this
code on our website.

ltem 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item regjag executive compensation, as well as directargensation and compensation committee
interlocks and insider participation is incorpochterein by reference to the material beginnindp wite caption "Executive Compensation
Discussion and Analysis" and ending with the captotential Payments Upon Change-in-Control", e§ as under the captions "Director
Compensation in Fiscal 2014" and "Corporate Goverea-Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insi@gtiéipation™ in our definitive
Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockleoddto be held March 4, 2015, to be filed with 8&C not later than 120 days after
September 30, 2014.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item isdnporated herein by reference to the material utigecaptions "Summary of All Existing
Equity Compensation Plans," "Security Ownershieftain Beneficial Owners" and "Security OwnersfipManagement" in our definitive
Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockleoddto be held March 4, 2015, to be filed with $#t€C not later than 120 days after
September 30, 2014.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item isanporated herein by reference to the material utidecaptions "Corporate Governance—
Transactions With Related Persons, Promoters andi@€ontrol Persons" and "Corporate Governancereddir Independence” in our
definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meetirfgstockholders to be held March 4, 2015, to bedfikéth the SEC not later than 120 days
after September 30, 2014.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item isdnporated herein by reference to the material uttsecaption "Proposal 2—Ratification of
Appointment of Independent Auditors—Audit Feesbimr definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Magtof Stockholders to be held
March 4, 2015, to be filed with the SEC not lateart 120 days after September 30, 2014.
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PART IV
ltem 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES

1. Financial Statements Our consolidated financial statements, togethith the notes thereto and the report of Ern&tdung LLP
dated November 26, 2014, are included in Item 8-rdRcial Statements and Supplementary Data" oFRisn 10-K.

2. Financial Statement Schedutes All schedules are omitted because they ar@pplicable or required or because the required
information is contained in the financial statensemt included in the notes thereto.

3. Exhibits. The following documents are included as exhitn this Form 10-K. Exhibits incorporated by refece are duly noted as
such.

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporadibHelmerich & Payne, Inc. is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.thef Company's Form 8-K filed on
March 14, 2012, SEC File No. C-04221.

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of Helmerich & Payme,are incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's Form 8-Kled on June 9, 2014, SEC File
No. 001-04221.

4.1 Rights Agreement dated as of January 8, 1996, leettftee Company and The Liberty
National Bank and Trust Company of Oklahoma CityANs incorporated herein t
reference to Exhibit 1 of the Company's Form 84&dion January 18, 1996, SEC File
No. 001-04221.

4.2 Amendment to Rights Agreement dated December &,2ttween the Company and UMB
Bank, N.A. is incorporated herein by reference xbiBit 4 of the Company's Form 8-K filed
on December 12, 2005, SEC File No. -04221.

*10.1 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Pimcorporated herein by reference to
Appendix "A" of the Company's Proxy Statement ohestule 14A filed on January 26,
2001.

*10.2 2012-1 Amendment to Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2008cktincentive Plan is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Compsu@uarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for the quartded March 31, 2012, SEC File
No. 001-04221.

*10.3 Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2@206ck Incentive Plan being
(i) Restricted Stock Award Agreement, (ii) Incerti8tock Option Agreement and
(iif) Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement are inporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to
the Company's Registration Statement No-63124 on Form -8 dated June 15, 20C

*10.4 Form of Director Nonqualified Stock Option Agreerhé&r the Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
2000 Stock Incentive Plan is incorporated hereimdfgrence to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the B&esiand Exchange Commission for
the quarter ended June 30, 2002, SEC File Nc-04221.

*10.5 Form of Change of Control Agreement for HelmericliP&yne, Inc. is incorporated hereir
reference to Exhibits 10.2 and 10.3 of the Compa@ylarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for the quartded June 30, 2002, SEC File No. 001-
04221.
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10.7

10.€

10.12(

10.11

10.1%

10.1:

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1¢

*10.17

Note Purchase Agreement dated as of June 15, 260%hg Helmerich & Payr

International Drilling Co., Helmerich & Payne, Iremd various Note purchasers is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of therany's Form 8-K filed on July 21, 2009,
SEC File No. 00-04221.

Credit Agreement dated May 25, 2012, among Helrheti®ayne International

Drilling Co., Helmerich & Payne, Inc. and Wells BarBank, National Association is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of therpany's Form & filed on May 31, 201z
SEC File No. 00-04221.

Office Lease dated May 30, 2003, between K/B Fuhdrd Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10..6he Company's Annual Report on
Form 10-K to the Securities and Exchange Commisiipfiscal 2003, SEC File No. 001-
04221.

First Amendment to Lease between ASP, Inc. and Eiédin & Payne, Inc. is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Compsufigrm 8-K filed on May 29, 2008, SEC
File No. 00:-04221.

Second Amendment to Office Lease dated Decembet(l3,, between ASP, Inc. and
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated herein éference to Exhibit 10.1 of Form 8-K
filed by the Company on December 14, 2011, SECNde00:-04221.

Third Amendment to Office Lease dated Septemb2052, between ASP, Inc. and
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated herein éfgrence to Exhibit 10.12 of the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K to the Seiesriand Exchange Commission for
fiscal 2012, SEC File No. 0-04221.

Fifth Amendment to Office Lease dated Decembe2R12, between ASP, Inc. and
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated herein éfgrence to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the B&esiand Exchange Commission for
the quarter ended December 31, 2012, SEC File 8i-04221.

Sixth Amendment to Office Lease dated April 24, 20detween ASP, Inc. and Helmerict
Payne, Inc. is incorporated herein by referendextuibit 10.1 of the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q to the Securities and Exch&waamission for the quarter ended
June 30, 2013, SEC File No. (-04221.

Seventh Amendment to Office Lease dated Septenfhe2Q1L3, between ASP, Inc. and
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated herein éference to Exhibit 10.1 of Form 8-K
filed by the Company on September 17, 2013, SEENd. 00-04221.

Eighth Amendment to Office Lease dated March 2442®etween ASP, Inc. and
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated herein éfgrence to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the B&esiand Exchange Commission for
the quarter ended March 31, 2014, SEC File No-04221.

Ninth Amendment to Office Lease dated June 16, 2B&#veen ASP, Inc. and Helmerich
Payne, Inc. is incorporated herein by referendextaibit 10.2 of the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q to the Securities and Exch&wemission for the quarter ended
June 30, 2014, SEC File No. (-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Annual Bonus Plan for ExeauOfficers is incorporated herein
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's QuartBeport on Form 10-Q to the Securities
and Exchange Commission for the quarter ended Bebiy 2013, SEC File No. 0-04221.
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*10.18

*10.18

*10.2C

*10.21

*10.22

*10.23

*10.24

*10.25

*10.2€

*10.27

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2005 Long-Term IncentRian is incorporated herein by reference
to Appendix "A" to the Company's Proxy StatemenSeahedule 14A filed January 26, 20

2012-1 Amendment to Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2006d-@erm Incentive Plan is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6hef Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q to the Securities and Exchange Commidsiothe quarter ended March 31,
2012, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 20@Bg-Term Incentive Plan applicat
to certain executives: (i) Nonqualified Stock Optisgreement, (ii) Incentive Stock Option
Agreement, and (iii) Restricted Stock Award Agreetrere incorporated herein by refere
to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Form 8-K filed Becember 7, 2009, SEC File No. 001-
04221.

Form of Agreements for the Helmerich & Payne, R@05 Long-Term Incentive Plan
applicable to participants other than certain ekees: Nonqualified Stock Option
Agreement, Incentive Stock Option Agreement, ansitiReted Stock Award Agreement are
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8hef Company's Form 8-K filed on
December 7, 2009, SEC File No. ~04221.

Form of Amendment to Nonqualified Stock Option Agmeents and Amendment to
Restricted Stock Award Agreements for the Helme&dpayne, Inc. 2005 Long-Term
Incentive Plan applicable to certain executivecaffs are incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 of the Company's Form 8-K filed on Betber 7, 2009, SEC File No. 001-
04221.

Form of Amendment to Nonqualified Stock Option Agmeents and Amendment to
Restricted Stock Award Agreements for the Helme&dpayne, Inc. 2005 Long-Term
Incentive Plan applicable to participants othentbartain executive officers are incorporz
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Compsugrm 8-K filed on December 7, 2009,
SEC File No. 00-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2010 Long-Term IncentivarPis incorporated herein by reference
to Appendix "A" of the Company's Proxy StatementSmedule 14A filed on January 26,
2011.

Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 20b@dg-Term Incentive Plan applicat
to certain executives: (i) Nonqualified Stock Optiaward Agreement is incorporated hel
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's F8ki filed on March 14, 2012, SEC File
No. 002-04221, and (ii) Restricted Stock Award Agreemsrihcorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's QuartBeéport on Form 10-Q to the Securities
and Exchange Commission for the quarter ended Dieee80, 2014, SEC File No. 001-
04221.

Form of Agreements for the Helmerich & Payne, B@10 Long-Term Incentive Plan
applicable to participants other than certain eiees: (i) Nonqualified Stock Option Awal
Agreement is incorporated herein by reference taitkix10.2 of the Company's Form 8-K
filed on March 14, 2012, SEC File No. 001-04221 &) Restricted Stock Award
Agreement is incorporated herein by reference tuitkix10.2 of the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q to the Securities and Exch&waamission for the quarter ended
December 30, 2014, SEC File No. -04221.

Form of Agreements for the Helmerich & Payne, R@10 Long-Term Incentive Plan
applicable to Directors: (i) Nonqualified Stock @pt Award Agreement and (ii) Restricted
Stock Award Agreement are incorporated by refereaadexhibit 10.3 of the Company's
Form &K filed on March 14, 2012, SEC File No. (-04221.
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*10.37

*10.38

Fabrication Contract between Helmerich & Paynertmtional Drilling Co. and Southeast
Texas Industries, Inc. is incorporated herein lgremce to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's
Form &K filed on December 7, 2006, SEC File No. -04221.

Contract dated July 18, 2007, between Helmerichagn International Drilling Co. and
Southeast Texas Industrial Services, Inc. is inm@i@d herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1
of the Company's Forn-K filed on July 18, 2007, SEC File No. (-04221.

Amendment to Contract dated August 8, 2008, betwdmerich & Payne International
Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas Industries, ladncorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.33 of the Company's Annual Report onnfr@0K to the Securities and Exchar
Commission for fiscal 2008, SEC File No. -04221.

Amendment to Contract dated August 8, 2008, betwtdmerich & Payne International
Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas Industrial Servjdac. is incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.34 of the Company's Annual ReporfF@nm 10-K to the Securities and
Exchange Commission for fiscal 2008, SEC File Nai-04221.

Second Amendment to Contract dated March 26, 20dilyeen Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas Btdas, Inc. is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.24 of the Company's AnrRgbort on Form 10-K to the Securities
and Exchange Commission for fiscal 2011, SEC Fie 002-04221.

Second Amendment to Contract dated March 26, 20dilyeen Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas Btdal Services, Inc. is incorporated hel
by reference to Exhibit 10.25 of the Company's AairReport on Form 10-K to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for fiscal 2GHEC File No. 00-04221.

Third Amendment to Contract dated August 4, 20Etwken Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas Btdas, Inc. is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.26 of the Company's AnrRgbort on Form 10-K to the Securities
and Exchange Commission for fiscal 2011, SEC Fie 002-04221.

Third Amendment to Contract dated August 4, 20Etwken Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas btdal Services, Inc. is incorporated hel
by reference to Exhibit 10.27 of the Company's AairReport on Form 10-K to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for fiscal 2GHEC File No. 00-04221.

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for SalarieglByees of Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.thef Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q to the Securities and Exchange Commidsiothe quarter ended December 31,
2008, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Supplemental Savings Plan for Salaried Employeésetrherich & Payne, Inc. is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2hef Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q to the Securities and Exchange Commidsiothe quarter ended December 31,
2008, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Director Deferred CompeimsaPlan is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's QuartBeport on Form 10-Q to the Securities
and Exchange Commission for the quarter ended Dieee81, 2008, SEC File No. 001-
04221.
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10.4(

10.41
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21.

23.1

31.1

31.2

32.

99.1

101

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 23,281and between Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co. and Atwood Oceanics, licincorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Quarterly Report @nnf 10-Q to the Securities and
Exchange Commission for the quarter ended Jun2@RB, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Lock-Up-Agreement, dated as of May 23, 2013, by lagiiveen Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co. and Goldman, Sachs & @oincorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's Quarterly Report @nnf 10-Q to the Securities and
Exchange Commission for the quarter ended Jun2@RB, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

First Amendment to Stock Purchase Agreement dated dune 13, 2013, by and between
Helmerich & Payne International Drilling Co. andwi&tod Oceanics, Inc. is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Compsu@uarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for the quartded June 30, 2013, SEC File No. 001-
04221.

Advisory Services Agreement dated March 5, 201#veeh Helmerich & Payne, Inc. and
Hans C. Helmerich is incorporated herein by refeeetio Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's
Form &K filed on March 7, 2014, SEC File No. (-04221.

List of Subsidiaries of the Compar
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourfing.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) promulgated under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, gaedipursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuaot Rule 13a-14(a) promulgated under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, gatedpursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chigihancial Officer Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant taoBead6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

Plea Agreement dated October 30, 2013 between Hielm& Payne International

Drilling Co. and the United States Department ditibe, United States Attorney's Office for
the Eastern District of Louisiana is incorporateddin by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of the
Company's Form-K filed on November 8, 2013, SEC File No. -04221.

Financial statements from this Form 10-K formaiteXBRL: (i) the Consolidated
Statements of Income, (ii) the Consolidated Statesnef Comprehensive Income, (iii) the
Consolidated Balance Sheets, (iv) the ConsolidStatements of Shareholders' Equity,

(v) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows aifidhe Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements

* Management or Compensatory Plan or Arrangen
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectionrlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, @ompany has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized:

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

By: /s/ JOHN W. LINDSAY

John W. Lindsay,
President and Chief Executive Offic

Date: November 26, 2014

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beenresidoelow by the following persons on behalf
of the Company and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated:

Signature Title Date

/s/ JOHN W. LINDSAY Director, President and Chief November 26, 201
Executive Officer (Principal Executive

John W. Lindsa Officer)

/s/ JUAN PABLO TARDIO Vice President and Chief Financial November 26, 201

Officer (Principal Financial Officer)
Juan Pablo Tardi

/s/ GORDON K. HELM Vice President and Controller November 26, 201
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Gordon K. Helr

/sl HANS HELMERICH Director and Chairman of the Board November 26, 201

Hans Helmerict

/s/ WILLIAM L. ARMSTRONG Director November 26, 201

William L. Armstrong

/sl RANDY A. FOUTCH Director November 26, 201

Randy A. Foutct

/s/ PAULA MARSHALL Director November 26, 201

Paula Marshal
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Signature

/sl THOMAS A. PETRIE

Thomas A. Petri

/s/ DONALD F. ROBILLARD, JR.

Donald F. Robillard, Ji

/sl FRANCIS ROONEY

Francis Roone

/sl EDWARD B. RUST, JR.

Edward B. Rust, Ji

/s/ JOHN D. ZEGLIS

John D. Zegli¢

Title

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

95

Date
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November 26, 201

November 26, 201

November 26, 201

November 26, 201
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Exhibit Index

The following documents are included asilgithto this Form 10-K. Exhibits incorporated herare duly noted as such.

Exhibit No.

Description

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

*10.1

*10.2

*10.3

*10.4

*10.5

10.€

10.7

Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporadibHelmerich & Payne, Inc. is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.thef Company's Form 8-K filed on
March 14, 2012, SEC File No. C-04221.

Amended and Restated By-laws of Helmerich & Paymz,are incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's Form 8-Kled on June 9, 2014, SEC File
No. 001-04221.

Rights Agreement dated as of January 8, 1996, leettfee Company and The Liberty
National Bank and Trust Company of Oklahoma CityANs incorporated herein t
reference to Exhibit 1 of the Company's Form 84&dion January 18, 1996, SEC File
No. 001-04221.

Amendment to Rights Agreement dated December &,288tween the Company and
UMB Bank, N.A. is incorporated herein by referetad&xhibit 4 of the Company's
Form &K filed on December 12, 2005, SEC File No. -04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Pimcorporated herein by reference to
Appendix "A" of the Company's Proxy Statement ohestule 14A filed on January 26,
2001.

201241 Amendment to Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2000 Staadehtive Plan is incorporat
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Compau@uarterly Report on Form 10-Q to
the Securities and Exchange Commission for thetgquanded March 31, 2012, SEC File
No. 001-04221.

Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2@6ck Incentive Plan being

(i) Restricted Stock Award Agreement, (ii) Incerti8tock Option Agreement and

(iif) Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement are inporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2
to the Company's Registration Statement No. 33263h Form S-8 dated June 15,
2001.

Form of Director Nonqualified Stock Option Agreeréar the Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
2000 Stock Incentive Plan is incorporated hereimdfgrence to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the B&esiand Exchange Commission
for the quarter ended June 30, 2002, SEC File R&-04221.

Form of Change of Control Agreement for HelmericliP&yne, Inc. is incorporated her
by reference to Exhibits 10.2 and 10.3 of the CamyfsaQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q
to the Securities and Exchange Commission for tiagtgr ended June 30, 2002, SEC
No. 001-04221.

Note Purchase Agreement dated as of June 15, 268%hg Helmerich & Payr
International Drilling Co., Helmerich & Payne, Iremd various Note purchasers is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of thenpany's Form 8-K filed on July 21,
2009, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Credit Agreement dated May 25, 2012, among Helrheti®ayne International
Drilling Co., Helmerich & Payne, Inc. and Wells BarBank, National Association is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of therpany's Form 8-K filed on May 31,
2012, SEC File No. 0(-04221.
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Office Lease dated May 30, 2003, between K/B Hyhdnd Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10..the Company's Annual Report on
Form 10-K to the Securities and Exchange Commisiipfiscal 2003, SEC File

No. 001-04221.

First Amendment to Lease between ASP, Inc. and Eietim & Payne, Inc. is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.thef Company's Form 8-K filed on
May 29, 2008, SEC File No. 0-04221.

Second Amendment to Office Lease dated Decembe2(il3,, between ASP, Inc. and
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated herein éference to Exhibit 10.1 of Form 8-K
filed by the Company on December 14, 2011, SECNde00:-04221.

Third Amendment to Office Lease dated Septemb2052, between ASP, Inc. and
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated herein éference to Exhibit 10.12 of the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K to the Seiesriand Exchange Commission for
fiscal 2012, SEC File No. 0-04221.

Fifth Amendment to Office Lease dated DecemberR12, between ASP, Inc. and
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated herein éfgrence to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the B&esiand Exchange Commission
for the quarter ended December 31, 2012, SEC Fle0R1-04221.

Sixth Amendment to Office Lease dated April 24, 20etween ASP, Inc. and
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated herein éference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the B&esiand Exchange Commission
for the quarter ended June 30, 2013, SEC File Rt-04221.

Seventh Amendment to Office Lease dated Septenfhe2Q1L3, between ASP, Inc. and
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated herein éference to Exhibit 10.1 of Form 8-K
filed by the Company on September 17, 2013, SEENd. 00-04221.

Eighth Amendment to Office Lease dated March 2442®etween ASP, Inc. and
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated herein éference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the B&esiand Exchange Commission
for the quarter ended March 31, 2014, SEC File(004-04221.

Ninth Amendment to Office Lease dated June 16, 2bé&#wveen ASP, Inc. ar
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated herein éference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the B&esiand Exchange Commission
for the quarter ended June 30, 2014, SEC File Nt-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Annual Bonus Plan for ExeauOfficers is incorporated here
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's QargrtReport on Form 10-Q to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for the quartded February 7, 2013, SEC File
No. 001-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2005 Long-Term IncentivarPis incorporated herein by
reference to Appendix "A" to the Company's Proxgt&nent on Schedule 14A filed
January 26, 200¢

2012-1 Amendment to Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2006d-erm Incentive Plan is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.éhef Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q to the Securities and Exchange Commidsiotine quarter ended March 31,
2012, SEC File No. 0(-04221.
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Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc02Q.ong-Term Incentive Plan
applicable to certain executives: (i) Nonqualiftetbck Option Agreement, (ii) Incentive
Stock Option Agreement, and (iii) Restricted Stédekard Agreement are incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Compsuigrm 8-K filed on December 7,
2009, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Form of Agreements for the Helmerich & Payne, R@05 Long-Term Incentive Plan
applicable to participants other than certain eees: Nonqualified Stock Option
Agreement, Incentive Stock Option Agreement, ansitiRed Stock Award Agreement
are incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi8 d.the Company's Form 8-K filed on
December 7, 2009, SEC File No. -04221.

Form of Amendment to Nonqualified Stock Option Agmeents and Amendment to
Restricted Stock Award Agreements for the Helme&dpayne, Inc. 2005 Long-Term
Incentive Plan applicable to certain executivecaffs are incorporated herein by refere
to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company's Form 8-K filed Bacember 7, 2009, SEC File

No. 001-04221.

Form of Amendment to Nonqualified Stock Option Agmeents and Amendment to
Restricted Stock Award Agreements for the Helme&dpayne, Inc. 2005 Long-Term
Incentive Plan applicable to participants othentbartain executive officers are
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.%hef Company's Form 8-K filed on
December 7, 2009, SEC File No. -04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2010 Long-Term IncentivarPis incorporated herein by
reference to Appendix "A" of the Company's Proxgt&ment on Schedule 14A filed on
January 26, 201:

Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 20b@g-Term Incentive Plan
applicable to certain executives: (i) Nonqualifieidck Option Award Agreement is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.thef Company's Form 8-K filed on
March 14, 2012, SEC File No. 001-04221, and (ii}tReted Stock Award Agreement is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.thef Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q to the Securities and Exchange Commidsiotine quarter ended

December 30, 2014, SEC File No. -04221.

Form of Agreements for the Helmerich & Payne, B@10 Long-Term Incentive Plan
applicable to participants other than certain eiees: (i) Nonqualified Stock Option
Award Agreement is incorporated herein by referandexhibit 10.2 of the Company's
Form 8-K filed on March 14, 2012, SEC File No. 004221, and (ii) Restricted Stock
Award Agreement is incorporated herein by referandexhibit 10.2 of the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the Securities Brchange Commission for the
quarter ended December 30, 2014, SEC File Nc-04221.

Form of Agreements for the Helmerich & Payne, R@10 Long-Term Incentive Plan
applicable to Directors: (i) Nonqualified Stock @pt Award Agreement and

(ii) Restricted Stock Award Agreement are incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 10.3 of
the Company's Formr-K filed on March 14, 2012, SEC File No. (-04221.

Fabrication Contract between Helmerich & Paynerh@gonal Drilling Co. and Southe:
Texas Industries, Inc. is incorporated herein ligresce to Exhibit 10.1 of the Compatr
Form &K filed on December 7, 2006, SEC File No. -04221.

Contract dated July 18, 2007, between Helmerichagne International Drilling Co. and
Southeast Texas Industrial Services, Inc. is inm@ied herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Forr-K filed on July 18, 2007, SEC File No. (-04221.
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Amendment to Contract dated August 8, 2008, betviéelmerich & Payne International
Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas Industries, ladncorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.33 of the Company's Annual Report onnrd0-K to the Securities and
Exchange Commission for fiscal 2008, SEC File Nii-04221.

Amendment to Contract dated August 8, 2008, betWtsmerich & Payne International
Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas Industrial Sersjdac. is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.34 of the Company's AnRegbort on Form 10-K to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for fiscal 2@#C File No. 00-04221.

Second Amendment to Contract dated March 26, 20dfyeen Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas btdas, Inc. is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.24 of the Company's AnRghort on Form 10-K to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for fiscal 2GHC File No. 00-04221.

Second Amendment to Contract dated March 26, 20dfiyeen Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas btdal Services, Inc. is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.25 of the Compaiynual Report on Form 10-K to
the Securities and Exchange Commission for fis0all2 SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Third Amendment to Contract dated August 4, 20Eitwken Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas btdas, Inc. is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.26 of the Company's AnRghort on Form 10-K to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for fiscal 2&HC File No. 00-04221.

Third Amendment to Contract dated August 4, 20Eitwken Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas bidal Services, Inc. is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.27 of the Compaiynual Report on Form 10-K to
the Securities and Exchange Commission for fis0all2 SEC File No. 0(-04221.

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for SalarieplByees of Helmerich &

Payne, Inc. is incorporated herein by referendextaibit 10.1 of the Company's Quarte
Report on Form 10-Q to the Securities and Exch&wemission for the quarter ended
December 31, 2008, SEC File No. -04221.

Supplemental Savings Plan for Salaried Employeésetrherich & Payne, Inc. is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2hef Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q to the Securities and Exchange Commidsiotine quarter ended
December 31, 2008, SEC File No. -04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Director Deferred CompeiwsaPlan is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's QuartBeport on Form 10-Q to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for the quartded December 31, 2008, SEC File
No. 001-04221.

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 23, 2818nd between Helmerich &
Payne International Drilling Co. and Atwood Oceanic. is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's QuartBeport on Form 10-Q to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for the quartded June 30, 2013, SEC File
No. 001-04221.

Lock-Up-Agreement, dated as of May 23, 2013, by laiveen Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co. and Goldman, Sachs & @oincorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's Quarterly Repartrarm 10-Q to the Securities and
Exchange Commission for the quarter ended Jun2(®, SEC File No. 0(-04221.
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First Amendment to Stock Purchase Agreement dated dune 13, 2013, by and betw
Helmerich & Payne International Drilling Co. andw&tod Oceanics, Inc. is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Compau@uarterly Report on Form 10-Q to
the Securities and Exchange Commission for thetguanded June 30, 2013, SEC File
No. 001-04221.

Advisory Services Agreement dated March 5, 201#vbeeh Helmerich & Payne, Inc. and
Hans C. Helmerich is incorporated herein by refeegio Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's
Form &K filed on March 7, 2014, SEC File No. (-04221.

List of Subsidiaries of the Compar
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourfing.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13at4(a) promulgated under
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, gaedipursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuaot Rule 13a-14(a) promulgated under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, gaedipursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chieinancial Officer Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant taoBead6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

Plea Agreement dated October 30, 2013 between Hielm& Payne International

Drilling Co. and the United States Department aitibe, United States Attorney's Office
for the Eastern District of Louisiana is incorpedterein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of
the Company's Formr-K filed on November 8, 2013, SEC File No. -04221.

Financial statements from this Form 10-K formaiteXBRL.: (i) the Consolidated
Statements of Income, (ii) the Consolidated Statesef Comprehensive Income,

(i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets, (iv) the €itidated Statements of Shareholders'
Equity, (v) the Consolidated Statements of CaslwEland (vi) the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statement

* Management or Compensatory Plan or Arrangen
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Exhibit 21
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

Subsidiaries of Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

White Eagle Assurance Company (Incorporated in \éertn
Helmerich & Payne International Drilling Co. (Ingarated in Delaware)

Subsidiaries of Helmerich & Payne Internationalllibwg Co.

Helmerich & Payne (Africa) Drilling Co. (Incorpord in Cayman Islands, British West Indies)
Helmerich & Payne (Colombia) Drilling Co. (Incorded in Oklahoma)

Helmerich & Payne (Gabon) Drilling Co. (Incorpordie Cayman Islands, British West Indies)
Helmerich & Payne (Argentina) Drilling Co. (Inconaded in Oklahoma)

Helmerich & Payne (Boulder) Drilling Co. (Incorpted in Oklahoma)

Subsidiary of Helmerich & Payne (Boulder) Drillifigp.

Helmerich and Payne Mexico Drilling, S. De R.L.@4/. (Incorporated in Mexico)

Helmerich & Payne del Ecuador, Inc. (Incorporate@®klahoma)
Helmerich & Payne de Venezuela, C.A. (Incorporatedenezuela)
Helmerich & Payne Rasco, Inc. (Incorporated in G&laa)

H&P Finco (Incorporated in Cayman Islands, Britislest Indies)
H&P Invest Ltd. (Incorporated in Cayman IslandsitiBin West Indies)
TerraVici Drilling Solutions, Inc. (Incorporated Delaware)

The Space Center, Inc. (Incorporated in Oklahoma)
Helmerich & Payne Properties, Inc. (Incorporate@kiahoma)
Utica Resources Co. (Incorporated in Oklahoma)

Utica Square Shopping Center, Inc. (Incorporate@kiahoma)

Subsidiaries of Utica Square Shopping Center, Inc.

Fishercorp, Inc. (Incorporated in Oklahoma)
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by refeecincthe following Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-631@ftaining to the Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2000cBtIncentive Plan,

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-13J pértaining to the Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 20@hg-Term Incentive Plan,
and

3 Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-17691ffppeng to the Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2010 LongrT Incentive Plan;

of our reports dated November 26, 2014, with resfethe consolidated financial statements of Helohe& Payne, Inc. and the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting of letrich & Payne, Inc. included in this Annual Reféorm 10-K) of Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

for the year ended September 30, 2014.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Tulsa, Oklahoma
November 26, 201
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
[, John W. Lindsay, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKielmerich & Payne, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortdnstate a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsofimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pnegzh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial répgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princijples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and preséntai report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such

evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigisanternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasir's internal control over financial reportinggan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anglalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg's ability to record, process, summarize apobrt financial information; ar

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that ined management or other employees who have ais@mifole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 26, 2014

/s/ JOHN W. LINDSAY

John W. Lindsay
Chief Executive Office
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
[, Juan Pablo Tardio, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKielmerich & Payne, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortdnstate a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsofimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pnegzh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial répgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princijples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and preséntai report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such

evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigisanternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasir's internal control over financial reportinggan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anglalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg's ability to record, process, summarize apobrt financial information; ar

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that ined management or other employees who have ais@mifole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 26, 2014

/sl JUAN PABLO TARDIO

Juan Pablo Tardio
Vice President and Chief Financial Offic
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Exhibit 32

Certification of CEO and CFO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of mekich & Payne, Inc. (the "Company") on FormK.@er the period ended September 30, 2
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the "Report"), John W. Ligdsa Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, and Juan Pablo Tardio, as Vice PresigehCaief Financial Officer of the Company, eachehgrcertifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9€6&dBarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to the best okh@wledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejugrements of Sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the S¢éiesrExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Refairly presents, in all material respects, timamcial condition and result of operations
of the Company.

/s/ JOHN W. LINDSAY /s/ JUAN PABLO TARDIO
John W. Lindsay Juan Pablo Tardio
Chief Executive Officer Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: November 26, 201 Date: November 26, 201
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